CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Fen|anPublic Document Pack loo%

eopie
grw%n

AGENDA

PLANNING COMMITTEE

1.00 PM

COUNCIL CHAMBER, FENLAND HALL,
COUNTY ROAD, MARCH, PE15 8NQ

Tel: 01354 622424 (committee only)
WEDNESDAY, 25 JUNE 2025 e-mail: memberservices@fenland.gov.uk

Committee Officer: Jo Goodrum

1 To receive apologies for absence.

2 Previous Minutes (Pages 3 - 26)

To confirm and sign the minutes from the previous meeting of 28 May 2025.

3 To report additional items for consideration which the Chairman deems urgent by

virtue of the special circumstances to be now specified

4 To receive Members declarations of any interests under the Local Code of Conduct
or any interest under the Local Code of Conduct or any interest under the Code of
Conduct on Planning Matters in respect of any item to be discussed at the meeting.

5 F/YR23/0648/F
Land South Of 127-141, Coates Road, Coates

Hybrid application: Full planning permission to erect 18 x dwellings (2 x single-storey
2-bed, 1 x 2-storey 2-bed, 2 x single-storey 3-bed, 4 x 3-storey 3-bed, 7 x 2-storey 4-
bed 1 x 2-storey 6-bed and 1 x 3-storey 6-bed) including 2 x self-build dwellings and
the formation of 3 x accesses and a pedestrian footpath. Outline application with
matters committed in respect of access to erect 2 x self-build dwellings (Pages 27 -

48)

To determine the application.

AL
)

CUSTOMER
SERVICE

EXCELLENCE
| 38

i
%

Fenland District Coundl  Fenland Hall e County Road e March  Cambridgeshire o PE15 8NQ

Telephone: 01354 654321  Texiphone: 01354 622213
Email: info@fenland.gov.uk o Website: www.fenland.gov.uk

-

X, INVESTORS
,_ IN PEOPLE

t,«v
R



6 F/YR25/0238/0
North West Of Cherrytree House, Fallow Corner Drove, Manea
Erect up to 6no dwellings (outline application with all matters reserved) involving the
demolition of existing buildings (Pages 49 - 60)

To determine the application.

7 F/YR25/0206/F
Land West Of Cross Road, Knights End Road, March
Erect 1x self-build/custom build dwelling and detached garage (Pages 61 - 78)

To determine the application.

8 F/YR25/0251/PIP
Land South West Of Woodbury, Manea Road, Wimblington
Permission in Principle for 5 x dwellings (Pages 79 - 88)

To determine the application.

9 F/YR25/0328/F
108 High Street, March
Erect 1 x self-build/custom build dwelling involving demolition of shed within a
Conservation Area (Pages 89 - 106)

To determine the application.
10 F/YR25/0347/F
20 Nene Parade, March
Erect 2x self-build/custom build dwellings involving demolition of existing dwelling
and garage within a Conservation Area (Pages 107 - 122)
To determine the application.

11 Items which the Chairman has under item 3 deemed urgent

Members: Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor C Marks (Vice-Chairman), Councillor | Benney,
Councillor Mrs J French, Councillor R Gerstner, Councillor N Meekins and Councillor
E Sennitt Clough,



Agenda Item 2

PLANNING COMMITTEE -enland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

WEDNESDAY, 28 MAY 2025 -1.00 PM L .
Fenland District Council

PRESENT: Councillor C Marks (Vice-Chairman), Councillor | Benney, Councillor Mrs J French,
Councillor R Gerstner and Councillor E Sennitt Clough, Councillor M Purser (Substitute)

APOLOGIES: Councillor D Connor (Chairman) and Councillor N Meekins,

Officers in attendance: David Rowen (Development Manager), Alan Davies (Principal Planning
Officer), Tom Donnelly (Senior Development Officer), Stephen Turnbull (Legal Officer) and Jo
Goodrum (Member Services & Governance Officer)

P1/25 APPOINTMENT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR THE
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2025/26

It was proposed by Councillor Mrs French, seconded by Councillor Purser and resolved that
Councillor Connor be elected as Chairman of the Planning Committee for the municipal year.

P2/25 APPOINTMENT OF THE VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR
THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2025/26

It was proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and resolved that
Councillor Marks be elected as Vice-Chairman of Planning Committee for the municipal year.

P3/25 PREVIOUS MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the 30 April 2025 were signed and agreed as an accurate record.

P4/25 F/YR20/0234/0

LAND NORTH OF 3A-9 BRIDGE LANE, WIMBLINGTON

HYBRID APPLICATION: OUTLINE APPLICATION WITH MATTERS COMMITTED
IN RESPECT OF ACCESS FOR THE ERECTION OF UP TO 16 X DWELLINGS.
FULL APPLICATION FOR THE FORMATION OF AN ACCESS, INTERNAL ROAD,
OPEN SPACE AND DRAINAGE INVOLVING THE DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
DWELLING AND COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS AND PROVISION OF PASSING
BAYS AND A FOOTWAY LINK TO MARCH ROAD.

Tom Donnelly presented the report to members.

Members asked questions of officers as follows:

e Councillor Mrs French asked why this application has taken 5 years to come before
committee? David Rowen responded that it is an application that has quite a lot of different
elements within it in terms of the viability side and also the highway works. He continued
that whilst officers aim to determine applications quicker than this there have been a
number of delays, several of which do rest with the applicant in terms of providing the
necessary information.

e Councillor Mrs French stated that she does not see any recommendations or any
discussions with any of the drainage boards and there are drains in this vicinity. She asked
if it known if the applicant has been in discussion with the drainage boards? David Rowen

Page 3



responded that Middle Level were consulted but as members are aware it can be selective
in the applications that it comments upon and it is not a statutory consultee and as a
consequence no representation has been received. Councillor Mrs French stated that she
does have a drainage board meeting tomorrow and she will raise this with them. She added
that at a meeting last week they are working on a new policy and hopefully working with
Fenland’s Planning Team to see if some of the issues can be resolved.

Councillor Sennitt Clough asked about mitigation in terms of the sewage pumping station
and the odour coming from this as it is 15 metres away and also an explanation on the
covenant that restricts development to 10 dwellings? David Rowen responded that, in terms
of the impact of the sewage pumping station, Environmental Health have been consulted
and have raised no concerns on any environmental effects, which is set out at 5.5 of the
officer’s report. He continued that covenants are not a material planning consideration and
is a separate legal issue for whoever imposed that covenant to deal with.

Councillor Gerstner asked for an explanation on how the viability study was carried out and
that there is no affordable housing and how the Section 106 money came to that figure?
David Rowen responded that the requirements of the legal agreement is set out at 10.37 of
the officer’s report which is basically to secure a contribution of £300,000 to be split
between the NHS receiving £13,755 and towards off-site affordable housing of £186,244.
He continued that the application has undertaken a viability assessment and as intimated
earlier in the response to Councillor Mrs French’s question this is one of the reasons why it
has taken so long to get to the determination stage, with the background to this all within the
report.

Councillor Gerstner asked who does the affordable housing money go to? David Rowen
responded that this will be put in the ‘pot’ that the Council has to deliver affordable housing
around the District. Councillor Gerstner asked at what stages will that money be paid?
David Rowen responded that this will still need to be decided as part of the Section 106
Agreement but the housing units themselves are, at this stage, in outline so a reserved
matters detailed scheme would need to be submitted. He continued that he would guess
that the triggers would need to be a certain number of units provided on site to deliver the
contribution but it will be delivered before the completion of all 16 units.

Councillor Mrs French asked why it is taking months and months to get Section 106
Agreements signed? David Rowen responded that he did not think that this was a matter
relevant to this application and should be a separate enquiry to either himself or the Head of
Planning outside of the meeting.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

Councillor Mrs French stated that due to the length of time this application has taken to
come to a determination, being sure all the details have been worked out, she does not
think there is much need for deliberation.

Councillor Gerstner stated that this is a brownfield site and thinks it is an ideal opportunity to
build on it.

Proposed by Councillor Mrs French, seconded by Councillor Gerstner and agreed that the
application be GRANTED as per the officer’s recommendation.

P5/25

F/YR24/1000/F

LAND WEST OF 27 NORFOLK STREET ACCESSED FROM MORLEY WAY,
WIMBLINGTON

ERECT 5 DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED GARAGES AND THE FORMATION
OF AN ATTENUATION POND

Tom Donnelly presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from

Steve

Dubois, an objector. Mr Dubois stated that he lives at 31 Norfolk Street, the Listed Building

Page 4



that borders the proposed development and he opposes the proposal and welcomes the officer's
recommendation to refuse. He stated that whether or not committee agree with the heritage
assessment, when it comes to evaluating the recommendation, everyone is bound by the same
guiding principles in that great weight should be given to the assets conservation, that the Local
Planning Authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building and its
settings, and whilst these are a matter for the committee, the NPPF also states that where a
development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset, as is the case with 31 Norfolk Street, this harm should be weighted against the
public benefit of the proposal.

Mr Dubois questioned what the benefits of the proposal are, increased housing stock, opportunity
to monetize an underdeveloped parcel of land and consideration of the key themes from the 23
letters of support, which need to be weighed against the harm to the Listed Building and the loss of
green space. He expressed the opinion that there would an increased fire risk, it is a thatched
property, and there would be a loss of privacy and there is a lack of community support as
evidenced by the 78 letters of objection.

Mr Dubois stated that he appreciates that the Council is working on a new plan but as a
designated growth village Wimblington has reached nearly three times its target set in 2014 and, in
his view, there is no economic merit in building a further five homes and there is a significant
development in Wimblington and the wider March area to keep much of the local construction
industry busy for quite some time. He feels that building in what is an area favoured by older
residents has no educational merit and the proposed development would do very little to address
the undersubscription of the Thomas Eaton Primary School.

Mr Dubois expressed the view that the proposal also has no social merit, it has no affordable
housing and potentially compounds already stretched medical services. He stated that he has lived
in the village for 25 years and when he moved this house it could be seen from March Road,
hedges were much lower and looking west he could see the big skies and Fen sunsets from his
patio and that is the traditional context in which 31 Norfolk Street should be appreciated.

Mr Dubois referred to the presentation screen which shows the growth of housing and the erosion
of green spaces within the heart of the village and he showed an aerial view of the proposed site
as it stands today, the modern Morley Way development to the west, the green amenity to the
north acting as buffer between the old and the new in line with Wimblington and Stonea design
guidance and codes which stipulates “new developments in proximity to designated and non-
designated heritage assets must propose green screenings to mitigate any unpleasant visual
impact whilst also preserving key views”. He expressed the opinion that in light of this statement
the impact of the proposal need to be considered on 31 Norfolk Street, many letters of support
reference the scheme being an extension of Morley Way and there is no disputing that access is
from Morley Way but viewed from the air the photo clearly shows it to be a standalone
development.

Mr Dubois stated that supporters also place significant weight on having the same developer as
Morley Way and when a buffer between old and new is mentioned Construct Reason Ltd were the
ones responsible for siting of the green amenity now an asset of community value between Morley
Way and the heritage part of the village and that same developer is now proposing to develop a
site that is closer to the Listed Building than the very buffer they created some 20 years earlier
and, in his view, is incongruous and not a benefit. He continued that supporters of the scheme
believe that there is a need for more bungalows in Wimblington, with the proposed development
being for five three-bedroom bungalows, however, the Wimblington and Stonea Housing Needs
Assessment of January 2023 stated that the village far exceeds the national average for built
bungalows and suggests that the greater proportion of dwellings be delivered as two-bedroom
dwellings with an emphasis on affordable housing so this is not a benefit.

Page 5



Mr Dubois made the point that the Fenland Local Plan calls for a presumption in favour of
sustainable development, it talks of growth that is not for its own sake and, in his view, the only
true benefit of this proposal is the monetization of an undeveloped parcel of land and that is not a
public benefit. He expressed the opinion, in line with NPPF guidelines, there is no clear and
convincing justification or public benefit that outweighs the harm to the setting of the Listed
Building and to draw any other conclusion would be irrational.

Members asked questions of Mr Dubois as follows:

Councillor Sennitt Clough referred to the word ‘harm’ being used a lot and everybody has a
different interpretation of what harm means and asked if Mr Dubois could state what this
term means to him with regard to what he thinks it will mean with this development next to
his property? Mr Dubois responded that he is not a planning expert and he would defer that
question to the planning experts, the same people who have made a recommendation of
refusal. He expressed the opinion that there is a heritage asset and a legacy in that this
property has stood there for over 200 years in an open space and this proposal would
enclose this space. Mr Dubois stated that there is a connection between his property and
the other Listed Building at Addison Road and that is the field that separates them.
Councillor Sennitt Clough stated that she appreciates that there is a technical aspect but
was asking the question to obtain his own personal experience. Mr Dubois responded that
his house has been in existence for 200 years, it is a Listed Building and it does not have
the modern amenities in terms of things such as soundproofing, double glazing and it is a
one and a half elevation building, with upstairs being plasterboard and thatch so you can
hear everything outside. He expressed the view that it is dependent upon its isolation to
modern living and it is not conducive to being in an environment with a housing density that
you have as part of a modern development.

Councillor Benney stated that he assumes that Mr Dubois bought this house many years
ago and asked if the field was ever part of the land that was associated with that house? Mr
Dubois responded that not in his lifetime, it was always part of the farm behind the house
but does believe there was a relationship between the land and the house at Addison
House. Councillor Benney reiterated was this house ever associated with this house, has
somebody sold the land off separately? Mr Dubois responded that it was always a separate
piece of land but whilst ownership was different the location has always been in the context
of that land.

Councillor Marks referred to the photo which shows the proposal imposed on the land and
asked what distance from his property he believes the new development will be? Mr Dubois
responded that the plan is marked up and from memory he believes it is 36 metres.
Councillor Marks asked if the proximity to the other buildings surrounding his property were
at the same distance? Mr Dubois responded that the road to the right is Norfolk Street,
formerly the High Street, and the nearest building is about 25 metres away and that is the
back of the garage and is probably around 30 metres to Norfolk Street.

Councillor Marks asked for confirmation that the new proposed buildings would be 36
metres from the back as well? Mr Dubois responded that this is incorrect as 31 Norfolk
Street is set back in its plot whereas every other house along Norfolk Street is running
adjacent to the street. He stated that the one house that is most effected and nearest to the
development is the Listed Building, the thatched property at 31 Norfolk Street. Councillor
Marks requested clarification that the existing properties are 25 metres from his property
and the new proposed rear of the properties would be 36 metres. Mr Dubois responded that
his neighbours to the front of his property are roughly 25 metres in line with the road but this
development is at the rear his house and that would be effectively 36 metres. He added that
one of the things about having a thatched property is things like Guy Fawkes night are not
the greatest time of year and in his insurance they are not allowed to have any incineration
or burning within 100 metres and those back gardens will literally be the other side of the
hedge and he cannot stop people from having barbecues, setting off fireworks or from
incineration and potentially he has two if not three properties that would be incredibly close
to his thatched property. Councillor Marks made the point that he also has existing

Page 6



properties within 25 metres who could also have barbecues or fires so this problem already
exists. Mr Dubois agreed and the owners of the land have had bonfires on the land but they
have been set much further back than this proposed development and they did have to call
the Fire Service on one occasion. He added that it would be incredibly concerning and this
proposal is a lot closer than 50 metres away where the owners might have previously had
bonfires.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from Amy
Richardson, on behalf of the agent. Ms Richardson stated that they have worked closely with the
planning officer throughout the planning process and dealt with any issues proactively and as
noted within his report the scheme complies with Policy LP3 of the Local Plan, provides a scheme
that is in keeping with the surrounding pattern of development in Morley Way and Waggoners Way
and does not give rise to any unacceptable amenity impacts in accordance with Policy LP16 and
LP12. She made the point that the officer refers to the fact that the plot sizes are generous and
avoid a cramped form of development while still making an efficient use of the land.

Ms Richardson expressed the opinion that the main issue is the impact on the Listed Building at 31
Norfolk Street and as members will be aware from the officer report the previous scheme for 8
bungalows was withdrawn to try and address the impact of development on the listed property,
with the scheme being reduced to only 5 bungalows with frontage development onto a private
road, which will remain private and not be offered for adoption. She expressed the view that all
issues around drainage have been addressed and the LLFA have no objections

Ms Richardson expressed the opinion that the original listing of 31 Norfolk Street only referred to 3
windows which face east, the front elevation of the property towards Norfolk Street and part of the
original rectangular shaped cottage, with more recent additions having been added to the western
side of the property together with a detached garage. She stated that there are no first-floor
windows in the Listed Building facing towards the application site and the nearest bungalows are
over 36 metres away.

Ms Richardson stated that they have added photos of the Listed Building which confirm there are
no windows facing the development, taken from estate agents particulars as the property is
currently on the market. She stated that their heritage consultant has tried to address the concerns
raised by the Conservation Officer, noting amongst things that the village of Wimblington has
significantly changed over the last 100 years from a much smaller village to a growth village, noting
there is nothing to suggest that 31 Norfolk Street has had a direct functional connection with the
site, such as grazing or farmland, and the site is not known to have ever been grazing land and the
asset is not located within the open countryside or on the edge of the village but is surrounded by
residential development within the heart of the village.

Ms Richardson expressed the opinion that the grounds of the Listed Building primarily extend to
the east towards Norfolk Street where the majority of the bedroom windows face suggesting that
the property is clearly orientated towards the east and this has formed its primary amenity space.
She feels that Conservation Officer has given undue weight to the contribution the site makes to
the setting of the Listed Building and has failed to acknowledge the current setting asset as
experienced is one of residential built form.

Ms Richardson stated that the proposed layout was amended to offer a single line of dwellings to
the far west of the site and provide greater distances to the Listed Building within the spaces
between each dwelling, helping to ensure that the dwellings do not appear as a solid wall of
development and with a variety of roofscapes helping to break up the massing. She made the point
that the District Council is looking to sell the open space in Morley Way that the applicants
provided as part of the original Morley Way development and this will take away the nearby public
open space and, in her view, will be subject to residential development removing current green
space.

Page 7



Ms Richardson asked members to look at the benefits of this scheme and what it can provide, with
the largely supporting nature of the planning officer's comments and go against the Conservation
Officer's recommendations.

Members asked questions of Ms Richardson as follows:

Councillor Mrs French referred to Anglian Water having concerns and asked if these
concerns have been addressed? Ms Richardson responded that they have been addressed
and there are no drainage issues.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

Councillor Gerstner expressed the view that this is a difficult decision in respect of the
heritage site, with it being a greenfield site nearby and he has reservations about the impact
on noise and amenity in the questions that Councillor Marks asked the objector. He feels it
is a question of where does the committee value heritage as it looks to be a well thought out
designed development.

Councillor Benney acknowledged what the objector has said but if this was any other
development the distance between houses is 21 metres and there is 36 metres here. He
feels the developer has worked to try and mitigate the harm to the historic building and a
historic building should not be a block to development, it is a piece of land and well within
the built form of Wimblington. Councillor Benney made the point that it is land usage that
committee is looking at and is this land suitable to build on and whilst he does take on board
the fire risk comments with a thatched cottage that is a risk that is taken when a thatched
cottage is brought. He stated that this piece of land, from what the objector was saying, has
no connection to this house and, in his view, this has been well planned out and
consideration has been given to keep the distance away from the heritage asset, with other
applications having been previously passed which are a lot closer to a heritage asset.
Councillor Benney expressed the opinion that there is sufficient green space left to
safeguard the heritage asset and provide the homes that Fenland needs.

Councillor Sennitt Clough agreed with the comments already raised by councillors and
acknowledged that it is a difficult decision as she thinks that the bungalows look a very nice
design, they are some distance away but questions whether there is a need for more
properties to surround this historic building and she keeps coming back to LP18. She
reiterated that it is difficult weighing up the value of this thatched building with the need for
bungalows and as stated Wimblington is a growth village but its growth has been reached.
Councillor Gerstner stated that there seems to be a good break between the development
and the Listed Building, which, in his view, is acceptable, it does not appear to be
overdeveloped and looks to be good planned desirable buildings, with a need for these
types of buildings. He added that whether that field was part of the heritage of that building
is not known but it does not make much difference.

Councillor Purser stated that he has visited the site and feels there is a need for the
development and a need for bungalows but a lot of the people that live there already are
older, retired people and the heavy traffic going through there to access the site could have
a detrimental effect to their properties. He added that he believes there is the possibility of a
flooding issue in this area so is concerned for the people who already live here.

Councillor Mrs French expressed the view that what Councillor Purser has just mentioned is
not a planning consideration. She asked were English Heritage involved in any discussions?
David Rowen responded that English Heritage or Historic England are only consulted on
certain applications so development within the setting of a Grade Il Listed Building would
not be an application that they would be consulted on.

Councillor Benney expressed the opinion that a proposal on this site could be worse and if it
is refused today it could come back full of houses. He feels that this is a compromise, with it
having a good fire break and a break for sound and with any other development it would be
21 metres. Councillor Benney acknowledged the objector’s point of view but feels these
would be nice bungalows and would not be empty long, proving a need and, in his view, it is

Page 8



an application worthy of support.

Councillor Marks agreed, he has looked at the application and asked would he want to live
there and he would in both properties as he does not think with bungalows there will be any
overlooking, they would likely appeal to older people so noise will not be an issue and the
likelihood of having fires or bonfires or fireworks is fairly negligible but there is always that
risk but there is the same risk with all the other properties in the vicinity. He is leaning more
towards supporting this application.

Councillor Sennitt Clough referred to a comment that was made that if committee refuse it
and the future of the site and made the point that members have to stick with the application
that is in front of them today.

David Rowen referred to the separation distances, with some of the separation distances
being referenced being amenity standards and amenity is not being looked at here it is the
setting of a Listed Building and within the report there is a definition of setting that is given
by Historic England and that setting varies from Listed Building to Listed Building so in some
instances there will be a new build very close to a Listed Building because that reflects the
historic pattern of development but here it is considered that the setting is the open space
around that building and that is encroaching into that open space detrimentally impacting
upon that setting. He continued that whether that land has been in the ownership of the
Listed Building historically is not relevant, land that is in multiple separate ownerships can
still form part of the setting of a Listed Building. David Rowen stated that if members are
minded to grant the application, he would remind them of the legal duty set out in the
officer’s report that within the 1990 Listed Building Act that “Local Planning Authority when
considering development should pay special attention to preserving a Listed Building or its
setting” so the lawful duty on a Council is to give great weight to preserving the setting of a
Listed Building. He added that, if members are minded to grant the application, within that
context he would advise that any reason for doing that needs to be clearly articulated and
set out in respect of the public interest benefit or balance to ensure it is a robust and
unchallengeable decision.

The Legal Officer confirmed that what David Rowen has said is correct, there is a legal duty
to pay special attention to preserving the setting of a Listed Building so if members decide
that this proposal can proceed notwithstanding some degree of harm to that setting then
they must explain whether they think that level of harm is low enough to justify the proposal
or whether there is a public benefit to overcome the harm that is involved. He stated that
setting is not the same as ownership, with the two being separate concepts so the setting of
a building transcends its ownership and ownership is irrelevant.

Proposed by Councillor Sennitt Clough to go with officer's recommendation to refuse the
application but no seconder was forthcoming.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Gerstner and agreed that the
application be GRANTED against the officer’s recommendation, with authority delegated to
officers to apply conditions.

Members do not support officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they feel it
will not detrimentally harm the setting of the Listed Building with there being sufficient space
around it, it is relevant land use for this site and houses are needed within Fenland.

(Councillor Purser declared, in accordance with Paragraph 2 of the Code of Conduct on Planning
Matters, that he had been lobbied on this application)

P6/25

F/YR25/0211/PIP

LAND NORTH WEST OF 1C EASTWOOD END, WIMBLINGTON

PERMISSION IN PRINCIPLE TO ERECT UP TO 4 X DWELLINGS INCLUDING THE
FORMATION OF A NEW ACCESS

Page 9



Tom Donnelly presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Matthew Hall, the agent. Mr Hall stated that this is a Principle in Planning (PIP) application and he
is pleased to see it recommended for approval. He referred to the points that the objectors have
raised, where they are saying that trees are being removed but there are no trees being removed
as part of this application, all the trees that can be seen in the photos surrounding the site are not
even owned by this applicant and are owned by someone completely different.

Mr Hall expressed the view that the site is not in the open countryside, there are various built out
and approved residential developments abutting this site and when he visited the site on Friday 23
May the new footpath that has been approved is being set at the moment linking in to the bypass.
He referred to the plan on the presentation screen, which shows the site and other sites that have
been approved or built out in the vicinity, making the point that the character of the area is
changing all the time.

Mr Hall stated that he has submitted an indicative drawing to give members an idea of what might
be proposed at the next stage if this application is approved, which shows low density
development similar to the other sites at Eastwood End. He feels the officer's report sums up the
application very well, with good service being received from the officer and it is being
recommended for approval and other applications in Eastwood End have been supported, in some
instances by officers and some by members.

Mr Hall stated that the site lies in Flood Zone 1 and there is an existing access, which they are
proposing to widen and improve, with the applicant owning the house immediately adjacent the
access so it can be carried out, with there being no highway objection or other technical objections.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Mrs French expressed the view that this is a good application, others have been
approved in this vicinity and this will probably be the last piece to complete that whole area.
She stated that she supports it.

e Councillor Gerstner stated that he agrees with Councillor Mrs French, it is an on-going
building out of the area, with this application just a PIP so there will more details come along
which can be discussed at a further planning meeting if it comes to the committee.

e Councillor Benney agreed, stating this is a PIP application, it is not known what the details
will be and this will come forward in a later application and others have been passed in the
area.

Proposed by Councillor Gerstner, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the
application be GRANTED as per the officer’s recommendation.

(Councillor Marks declared that the applicant is a customer of a business that he is director of and
took no part in the discussion and voting thereon. Councillor Benney chaired this application)

(Councillor Benney declared that the agent has undertaken work for Chatteris Town Council and
himself personally, but he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open
mind)

(Councillor Purser declared that the agent is undertaking work for him, but he is not pre-
determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

P7/25 F/YR24/0970/FDC
LAND TO THE SOUTH OF 8 CROWN AVENUE, CHRISTCHURCH
ERECT 1X DWELLING

Page 10



Members agreed to defer this application for further information to be submitted and considered.

P8/25 F/YR25/0001/F
SHELTERED HOUSING ACCOMMODATION, ROMAN COURT, LEVERINGTON
ERECT 4 X SINGLE-STOREY EXTENSIONS TO FLATS 3, 12, 13 AND 14

David Rowen presented the report to officers and drew attention to the update report that had
been circulated.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Benney stated that this is a policy complaint application, it is a good solid
proposal, with officers undertaking a good job working to get the conclusion before
members today. He feels it does not need much debate.

e Councillor Purser agreed, sheltered housing is needed, it is nice and tidy and harming
nothing.

Proposed by Councillor Mrs French, seconded by Councillor Sennitt Clough and agreed
that the application be GRANTED as per the officer’s recommendation.

P9/25 F/YR25/0072/F
5 ROBINGOODFELLOWS LANE, MARCH
CHANGE OF USE FROM DRINKING ESTABLISHMENT/CLUB TO 3NO FLATS
INVOLVING THE REMOVAL OF EXTERNAL STAIRCASE

Alan Davies presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Matthew Hall, the agent. Mr Hall stated that the officer's report highlights that there had been a
previous approval for the conversion of the first floor to a residential flat and the proposal before
the committee also includes that as well. He made the point that the application site is located in a
built-up residential area and, in his opinion, that it will be classed as a town centre location.

Mr Hall explained that when he submitted the application as part of the submission, he included a
list of public houses and clubs within March, and there are 14 other drinking establishments and
clubs with Wetherspoons probably being the largest one which is located 170 metres away from
the application site, with the business which used to operate from the application site having been
closed for 12 months. He stated that he has reviewed some of the comments made by the local
residents as the site is surrounded by residential properties and the site it is located right next door
to people’s gardens.

Mr Hall explained that the existing parking space will be utilized as there is a space available and
the Highway Authority have not raised any objection and the existing bin storage will be kept and
there have been no concerns highlighted. He referred to the first floor windows and the ground
floor windows located to the front of the property where concerns have been raised are already in
place and on the rear elevation there is a staircase and a door and the proposal plans to remove
that due to the fact that when you stand on the staircase then you can see into three of the
surrounding gardens.

Mr Hall stated that the former landlady is in support of the proposal, who was the landlady of the
business for 14 years, and as stated in the officer's report she has confirmed that the business
closed as it was not viable to continue and was closed down prior to the applicant purchasing the
building. He explained that there are no technical objections to the proposal from any of the
consultees to the application and within the officer’s report it makes reference to space standards,
but stated that the application is for a conversion and, therefore, he will be working with the
existing structure and has no plans for it to be extended as there is very limited room, making the

Page 11



point that he intends to keep the outside of the building as it is.

Mr Hall stated that the officer has pointed out that flat one and flat three are satisfactory but flat two
is below standard and referred to another application for three flats in Norfolk Street in Wisbech
from 2019 which was recommended for approval and was supported by members of the
committee, with that proposal being for three new flats and flat one was 38 metre squared which
was below standards. He explained that flat 2 was 41m squared which was 2 bedrooms and was
below standard and flat 3 was 46 metres squared and was also below standards and he stated
that all areas on the current proposal are all in excess.

Mr Hall expressed the opinion that the site it is not in a rural location, it is located in the middle of
the town centre and surrounded by residential properties. He expressed the view that he believes
that there some benefit to residents as opposed to what is there now as there is an external
staircase which currently abuts neighbouring amenity for three properties and overlooks their
gardens as well as an external door and he explained that this staircase will be removed.

Mr Hall added that by changing the premises to residential will mean that there is less of a noise
issue in a built-up area and the officer report states that it does not have an overbearing impact,
and it is very detailed with regards to the openings on all elevations. He expressed the opinion that
by converting the building from a closed drinking establishment to residential usage it will mean
that it will match in with the character of the area and, therefore, be residential development all
round.

Members asked Mr Hall the following questions:

e Councillor Mrs French asked why the commercial business has not been advertised for
sale? Mr Hall explained that he has spoken to the applicant who has advised him that the
site was advertised for six months with Maxey Grounds before he purchased it. He added
that he has not advertised the building since as the business has been closed and it was not
felt that it was viable to reopen the business and, therefore, a marketing exercise was not
undertaken.

e Councillor Gerstner questioned that when the building was trading as a drinking
establishment was a trade waste collection in operation? Mr Hall stated that there does
appear to be a large commercial sized bin at the site as well as a brown bin and anticipates
that they will be kept or there will be separate bins for residents if the application is
approved. Councillor Gerstner stated that as the proposal is for three flats there is the
possibility of there being three bins for each flat along with food waste. Mr Hall explained
that when it was a drinking establishment, they did also serve food which would have
resulted in food waste. He added that he would look to ascertain advice from the Council’s
refuse and recycling team with regards to waste collections and bin requirements.
Councillor Gerstner made the point that there is the potential for all bins to be placed out on
the pavement on collection days. Mr Hall confirmed this to be correct.

e Councillor Mrs French stated that there will not be three brown bins at the site as the
properties will not have gardens.

e Councillor Benney stated that the point had been made that the property had been
marketed by Maxey Grounds for six months and he asked whether that had been prior to
the applicant purchasing the building or was it marketed after that for six months? Mr Hall
stated that it is his understanding that it was prior to the applicant purchasing the site.

e Councillor Mrs French asked whether the site is still on the market? Mr Hall confirmed that it
is not.

e Councillor Marks stated that it is being referred to as a drinking establishment but to him it
sounds more like a club, rather than a walk in off the street pub and he asked whether it
was a member only club meaning that the members have now gone elsewhere? Mr Hall
explained that it is his understanding that the premises was used for events including quiz
nights, pool and darts where it was members only. He added that prior to its closure, people
could just walk in off of the street, but there were some instances where it was for members

Page 12



only.

Councillor Sennitt Clough referred to the floor space of the flats and the fact that one of the
flats does not meet the required standard and another which does not have any storage
area. She asked whether it was just the internal design of the building which was not
followed through without changing it drastically? Mr Hall stated that he would agree and
added that he has tried to work around the existing structure that is there, with two out of the
three flats complying, and one does not.

Councillor Marks asked for clarification as he was under the impression that it was two flats
which were not compliant? Alan Davies explained that there is one flat which does not
comply in terms of overall space standards (flat two) and flat three complies with the overall
requirement but does not have any built-in storage space, with nationally described space
standards having two elements, one being the overall floor space and the other being the
storage. He explained that officers would give more consideration to the overall floor space
and flat three does not have built in storage space but that could be rectified because the
floor space for flat three, which is a first-floor flat, is more than sufficient in terms of
combined space standards of overall space.

Councillor Marks asked for the square meterage of the flat which does not meet the space
standards? Mr Hall explained that it is just over 58 square metres.

Members asked officers the following questions:

Councillor Sennitt Clough asked, with regards to the flat which does not have adequate floor
space, what are the legal and safety implications of that? Alan Davies explained that when
considering the national described space standards, there is a requirement to ensure that all
future residential development has a minimum floor space, it is not legislation but is national
guidance and, therefore, it is incumbent on each local authority to adopt the guidance. He
added that the Council have not adopted it as a policy, but it is generally used as guidance
to determine planning applications to ensure that future occupants of any residential
scheme have sufficient amenity space. Alan Davies continued that with regards to fire and
building regulations they are all separate matters.

Councillor Purser stated that there is only one parking space for the three flats and it is his
understanding that it is not a requirement to provide any parking spaces, but he asked for
clarification. Alan Davies stated that the application is for three flats, the actual parking
standards are 1.25 parking spaces per dwelling which is far more than what is currently
provided. He added that as part of the application the Highways Authority have been
consulted, and they are happy with the one parking space and have raised no objection.
Alan Davies made the point that the site is in the town centre and, therefore, there are
facilities within a walkable distance, as well as connections to sustainable transport and,
therefore, there are no concerns with regards to the under provision of parking spaces.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

Councillor Mrs French stated that it is a town centre location and at the top of the road there
are 15 car parking spaces which belong to the Council and 72 car parking spaces in Darthill
Road. She added that she does have concerns over the size of the flats as there is a lack of
compliance and she added that it is a shame that the application is not just for two flats as it
would have had amenity space.

Councillor Marks stated that the committee has in the past approved temporary
accommodation in Wisbech which are containers. He added that Mr Hall has explained that
the flat which does not accord with national space standards is of a size of 58 square
metres, however, a shipping container is 14.86 metres is a lot smaller and that is still being
used to house people.

Councillor Benney stated that, with regards to the non-marketing, whilst he accepts that
there is policy, it is the duty of the committee to look at applications and if it is felt that there
is benefit in any way policies can be worked around to reach a satisfactory solution. He
added that he has visited the site and, in his opinion, the building is a mess and is a blot on
the landscape. Councillor Benney added that it has been marketed for six months and now

Page 13



somebody has purchased it which, in his view, should be welcomed and he feels that the
site is never going to open as a pub or a club again as it would never work as a commercial
enterprise again and it is an ex commercial premises in the middle of a residential area,
which, in his opinion, is crying out for renovation. He explained that he looked at the floor
plans and if it was changed into two flats it would never be viable and it would end up being
another building in another market town that sits there until it becomes dilapidated, referring
to a site in Chatteris which has suffered from a building collapse and questioned whether
the residents of March want the same thing to happen to this site. Councillor Benney stated
that the application is positive and will bring three flats forward which will provide homes
which are in very short supply and whilst he appreciates that they are small flats there are
many people who do not want expensive houses to rent, and they just want somewhere to
live, and the application will provide that. He stated the fact that it was on the market for six
months and eventually found somebody to purchase it is, in his opinion, excellent.
Councillor Benney referred to an application in Orange Grove in Wisbech in 2021 which was
developed in the back of a public house in Wisbech and fronted onto the A47, with it being a
three-storey building and a new build which, in his opinion, was one of the worst
applications he has seen come before the committee. He expressed the view that it
appeared to be cramped, and he would not wish to live there but the officer
recommendation was for one of approval and it was not up to the same standard as the
application being determined now. Councillor Benney referred to the national space
standards, making the point that they are only guidelines and do not have to be adhered to
and, in his view, not to pass this application would be remiss of the committee and they
would be missing an ideal opportunity to bring a building back into use. He made the point
that planning is about land usage, and it is an unattractive building, but he questioned what
else it could be used for and it could become a blot on the landscape. Councillor Benney
stated that the site was marketed, somebody bought it after 6 months who has decided not
for it to be a pub but for it to converted to flats and that is what the building lends itself to
and he can see no reason why it should be refused.

Councillor Mrs French stated that the benefit to the wider community needs to be
considered and by removing the external staircase it will restore privacy to the three
individual properties who have suffered from overlooking. She added that the Buffs Club
was there for many years, and does not know how the external staircase was ever allowed,
and she does feel that the application will be of a benefit to the community.

Councillor Marks stated that he agrees and the benefit to the community is also not having a
building which is going to stand empty for a long period of time as it could encourage
squatters and become at risk of arson attacks. He added that there have been other
premises empty for a period of time such as the George Public House which has been
empty for seven years and although it has been marketed nobody has chosen to purchase
the site. Councillor Marks added that the benefit to the community will be for the premises to
be changed to flats rather than in its current state.

Councillor Purser stated that by turning the empty building into flats will be a far better viable
proposition although he would have preferred to see it converted into two flats rather than
three.

Councillor Gerstner stated that he wholeheartedly agrees that the building should be
converted into flats which will be of benefit to the community. He added that he would prefer
to see the building converted into two flats rather than three and made the point that whilst
he does not know the details concerning the viability or how much the building has cost the
applicant or how much the conversion is going to cost, the applicant will know that himself.
Councillor Gerstner stated that the application is recommended for refusal by officers and
should the application be refused and come back to the committee for two flats then he
would fully support that, but in its current format for three flats he cannot support it.
Councillor Benney stated that to convert the building into two flats would mean that they
would be larger but for anybody to do anything to a property does mean that they need to
make money out of it and if they do not make money then it does not come to fruition. He
expressed the opinion that if this application is not approved then the building will end up

Page 14



falling down and nothing will happen with the site and why should something positive be
refused which will bring a building back into use. Councillor Benney added that the building
is not a new build, and the applicant is working with the existing constraints and there is no
possibility to add an extension to bring the building up to the national space standards as it
would not work. He questioned whether members want to see another blot on the
landscape in March which is what will happen should the application not be approved, with
there being a need for housing and the need to bring this type of building back into use.
Councillor Benney added that if the application is refused then the town of March will suffer.

e Councillor Marks stated that Collingwoods is located just around the corner, and it is scruffy,
making the point that when considering the significant investment which has been spent on
the rest of the town when you compare the Collingwoods corner which has a dilapidated
building and is going to rack and ruin, it lets down the town. He made the point that he is
pleased to see that the George Public House has been purchased and will tidy that end of
town up and he agrees with Councillor Benney that if something is not done with the
application site then it will end up being a blot on the landscape if something is not done
with it very soon. Councillor Marks also reiterated the point that Fenland is also short of
houses and homes for young people to afford to live.

e Councillor Sennitt Clough added that she did have concerns over the floor space but the
application before the committee needs to be determined and, in her view, the good far
outweighs the harm and she will support the proposal.

e David Rowen stated that planning is an evidential process and part of the problem with this
application from an officer’s perspective is that the lack of evidence which has been
provided to officers. He explained that it has been stated during the agent’s presentation
that the building has been marketed, but nothing has been submitted as part of the
application. David Rowen added that members have debated the issue of two flats as
opposed to three but there has been no information submitted and, in his view, officers are
working in the dark and to a degree the committee are as well. He stated that speculation
about the condition of the building and what may or may not happen to it in the future is not
material to the determination of the application and the building has only been vacant for a
year and does not appear to be in any sort of structural disrepair. David Rowen made the
point that given the evidence that policy requires which would justify the lessening of the
space standards then ultimately it might have led to a different officer's recommendation.

¢ David Rowen stated that with regards to comparisons made to other sites, applications are
dealt with on a case-by-case basis, and added that reference has been made to Orange
Grove in Wisbech from 2019 which was a vacant site within a Conservation Area and
weight was given to developing what was an eyesore. He added that members have also
referred to the size of homeless accommodation in Wisbech and explained that the
containers were very much units which were for people whose only option was to live on the
streets, and they were interim accommodation as opposed to potentially longer-term
accommodation as the application before the committee today. David Rowen expressed the
view that there are distinct differences between the current application and some of the
other cases that have been highlighted, making the point that there has been no evidence
provided to support a lot of the issues that have been raised by members as justification for
granting the application.

e Councillor Benney stated that he understands the points made by David Rowen as officers
are guided by the Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework, however, he
added that the committee are in place to look at the overall proposal and to consider the
community benefit in parts of this which is the softer side of planning. He added that he fully
understands the decision which officers have made with the application, but whilst he
appreciates that there are policies, there also has to be an element of common sense and
there is compassion within planning and this is the compassion being considered in this
case where the building can be saved from going into disrepair and from being a blot on the
landscape.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Sennitt Clough and agreed that

Page 15



the application be GRANTED against officer’'s recommendation, with authority delegated
to officers to apply conditions.

Members do not support officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they feel by
bringing the building back into use there will be a community benefit and it will provide much
needed housing and the National Space Standards are only a guideline, and other applications
have been approved previously which are smaller, with the Council having a duty to provide
housing.

(All members present declared that the applicant is a fellow councillor, but they do not socialise
with him and will consider the application with an open mind)

(Councillor Benney declared that the agent has undertaken work for Chatteris Town Council and
himself personally, but he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open
mind)

(Councillors Mrs French and Purser declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of
Conduct on Planning Matters, that they are members of March Town Council but take no part in
planning)

(Councillor Purser declared that the agent is undertaking work for him, but he is not pre-
determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

P10/25 F/YR25/0156/F
SHARMAN FABRICATIONS, GAUL FARM, GAUL ROAD, MARCH
ERECT 1 X SELF-BUILD/CUSTOM BUILD DWELLING AND ERECT 1 X STORAGE
SHED INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING SHED AND STABLE (B2)

Alan Davies presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Matthew Hall, the agent. Mr Hall explained that the proposal at the site is for a shed to expand the
existing business and an occupational on-site dwelling, which is not a separate residential dwelling
but is a dwelling tied to the exiting business which has been at the current location since 2004. He
stated that originally the business was located off of Gaul Road at a Council depot which was sold
and the business relocated to its current site, being a fabrication business which makes and
repairs various steelwork products which are predominantly play equipment, gates and structural
steelwork and the business also works with local businesses to carry out repairs to vans, lorries
and trailers.

Mr Hall made the point that out of hours working does take place and on HGV repairs and trailers
which can often be an emergency repair at any time, with the work being usually UK based for the
play equipment, structural steelwork and gates with the occasional component sent abroad. He
explained that the HGV and trailer repair work is generally local work for local businesses.

Mr Hall stated that the application is for an occupational dwelling tied to the existing building and
they wish to remain at the same location as it is established at this site rather than move the entire
business which is why other sites have not been looked at. He made the point that there are no
technical objections and no local objections to the application and there has been support from
local businesses including Fen View Motors, Rutterford Construction and Griffin Roses.

Mr Hall referred to the presentation screen and highlighted the application site which is located on
the edge of the bypass along with an application he was involved with in 2013 which was for a
dwelling in conjunction with an existing HGV repair business which has been built out and is
located in Flood Zone 3. He explained that there is also a site on the map which was approved in

Page 16



2020 by the committee and the agent for the application had advised members that it was for
persons to live on site in conjunction with the existing business and that was also located in Flood
Zone 3.

Mr Hall referred to the screen and stated that the site located at the south of the map was given
approval by officers in 2024 and was for an occupational dwelling in conjunction with the existing
rose business. He explained that all of the areas that he has highlighted to members are located
on the fringes of the bypass and added that there are no objections to the application and the
business wishes to expand further by introducing the shed and also to allow a person to live on the
site as an occupational dwelling rather than off site and to allow an office on the site.

Mr Hall expressed the opinion that the dwelling will help to secure the business by allowing
persons to live on the site as well as out of hours working including emergency call outs which is
carried out at the moment.

Members asked Mr Hall the following questions:

e Councillor Sennitt Clough questioned why it was now felt necessary to build a dwelling
considering that the business has been on site for twenty-one years? Mr Hall explained that
there are three family members working for the business, Mr George Sharman who started
the business is future proofing his business in order that one of his sons can live on the site.

e Councillor Gerstner asked for confirmation that one of the employees of the business will be
looking to live on the site? Mr Hall confirmed that it will be one of the sons who will reside in
the dwelling and is employed by the business.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Sennitt Clough stated that she can see the need for one of the family members to
live on the site and she would like to think that the Council supports local businesses. She
made the point that throughout Fenland there are properties which are located in isolation,
however, she stated that she does have questions with regards to this self-build custom
design and whether or not there are any restrictions associated with that.

e Councillor Benney stated that he would like to have seen something included in the
application which demonstrates that there is a need on site, there is already a workshop on
the site and if there is another workshop then that means that there is going to be more
work coming. He added that workplace homes have been passed previously for people who
are out in the countryside and this application is located on the other side of the March
bypass, with the committee having considered applications in the past and the issue of rural
security which is a very valid reason for anybody who has a business and the need for
having somebody residing on the site is there. Councillor Benney questioned whether it is a
self-build property and added that the building needs to be tied in some way to the business
and although the workshop shed is being erected there have been previous applications
where there was no justification, and the committee just took the proposal at face value. He
questioned whether the business is a genuine family March business which is expanding as
there is no evidence to support that fact and he would be happy to support the application if
the missing information could be provided.

e Councillor Mrs French confirmed that it is a genuine business and has been in existence
and operating for 21 years. She added that she has not seen the sequential test and she
would like to see further information so would be happy to see the application deferred for
further information.

e Councillor Marks stated that he agrees, and he would also like to see the application
deferred as there is not enough information included with the application to make a
decision.

e Councillor Purser stated that he totally disagrees with the statement made earlier that the
application is an out of character development. He added that he knows some of the family
members although he has not seen them for many years and he added that they are a very
hardworking family. Councillor Purser added that there have been other applications

Page 17



approved previously where security has been one of the reasons members have passed
applications, with, in his view, it being very important to have a dwelling on site and he will
be supporting the application.

Councillor Marks added that the committee have approved an application in New Road at
the Flying Club where livestock where also on the site.

Councillor Gertsner stated that there have been several applications similar to the current
proposal and to be consistent, he believes that further information would have been
beneficial, but feels that the applicant has put forward a strong enough case.

Councillor Benney stated that he does not know the business but if this is a genuine
business and you want to erect a shed which is double the size then that could mean that
the business could be at risk of more thefts. He added that by having a dwelling on site it
will help as a deterrent and with regards to the sequential test there is already a business on
the site and, in his view, it is an application with need and a deferment for further
information to be provided to the committee would be the best course of action. Councillor
Benney added that it is not a self-build, and, in his view, it is a workplace home that should
have justification, however, there is not enough information which has been provided to the
committee for them to make a decision.

Councillor Marks asked Councillor Benney whether he was proposing a deferment.
Councillor Benney stated that he would like to see the application deferred in order for
further information to be provided to enable the committee to decide whether it is a proper
business. He added that the application at Wisbech St Mary did not require any financial
information, but some further information would provide the committee with some assurance
that they are making the correct decision as at the current time there is nothing to support
the application.

Councillor Mrs French added that there is no such thing as a policy for workplace homes as
it was removed in 2009.

David Rowen stated that in the design and access statement there is no mention at all of
the issue of security or any evidence to support that concern but the issue of whether the
business is genuine or whether the employees are hardworking is not a material planning
consideration. He explained that there is no real information contained as part of the
application which sets out why a dwelling is required on site, why somebody needs to live
on site and why it is essential that somebody lives on site. David Rowen added the
application does not contain any details with regards to how the building has operated for 20
years and why is it now necessary to have a dwelling and it does not contain any
information with regards to the financial viability of the business. He made the point that
effectively officers and the committee are determining an application with minimal details
and added that, whilst the committee may have made similar decisions elsewhere, there are
examples of dwellings that have been granted tied to businesses but applications need to
be considered on a case by case basis given that the ethos behind this area of planning is
to respond to the needs of the specific business. David Rowen expressed the opinion that
the application before the committee has very limited information on which to base any kind
of positive decision.

Councillor Mrs French agreed that there is a lack of information, and she stated that the
committee approved an application which was recommended for refusal and at that time the
applicant was present at the committee and was able to respond to members questions.
She added that in this case it is a shame that the applicant is not present to answer
members questions, and she would like to see the application deferred.

Councillor Benney stated that in terms of security he feels that the application could be
supported, and he added that he agrees with Councillor Purser that the application is not a
blot on the landscape and the applicant is looking to expand his business. He added that he
would like to see some kind of information around the business, including a business plan
which shows that they are going to expand the business with the extra shed. Councillor
Benney explained that the way the business operates does mean that by living on the
premises they would be able to respond to the customer’s needs, and due to the nature of
the business you would not want to see it located next to a house or in the middle of a

Page 18



housing estate. He added that it is in the right place if the criteria around it is correct which
is why he would like to see further information.

e David Rowen stated that an economy statement has been submitted as part of the
application which does indicate that there will be no additional jobs created as part of the
proposal. He added that there have been other instances where the committee have made
decisions due to lack of information being submitted as part of the application process and
ultimately it is the responsibility of the agent or applicant to provide that information. David
Rowen added that he does have concerns that the committee are effectively giving
applications that are lacking in information a second chance rather than incentivizing people
to get it right the first time with the information.

e Councillor Mrs French stated that there are several dykes and ditches near the application
site, and she attended a March Third Internal Drainage Board which is the drainage board
for this area and, therefore, she does have concerns.

e Councillor Mrs French stated that the committee are asking for additional information, the
application submitted is not incomplete but requires additional information and the
committee are justified to defer the application if they want to.

e Councillor Benney stated that it would be very difficult to put every single possibility of
information in an application as it does cost money and sometimes officers approve
applications where some of the information provided is not required, however, it has cost
the applicant money to obtain it. He questioned how much information an applicant has to
pay for to satisfy every aspect of the application form and he suggested that maybe
feedback be provided to applicants before an application comes before the committee,
which could alleviate some of those issues.

e Councillor Marks stated that the extra information will help him to inform his decision.

e David Rowen stated that planning policy is quite clear on the tests which need to be
undertaken to demonstrate that such a dwelling is acceptable and that is set out in the Local
Plan and the NPPF. He added that this is not a new issue, or a new area of legislation and
the tests have been established for quite some time and because of that it really is
incumbent on agents and their applicants to submit the relevant information. David Rowen
explained that the information provided does not comply with any of the policy boxes and, in
his view, it does need highlighting.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the
application be DEFERRED for further information to be provided to demonstrate the
operating model of the business, including details of the expansion, to prove that the
business is viable and to substantiate the need for the dwelling on the site including
evidence to prove that the employees listed as working there actually do.

(Councillor Benney declared that the agent has undertaken work for Chatteris Town Council and
himself personally, but he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open
mind)

(Councillors Mrs French and Purser declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of
Conduct on Planning Matters, that they are members of March Town Council but take no part in
planning)

(Councillor Purser declared that he knows of the applicants and the agent is undertaking work for
him, but he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

P11/25 F/YR25/0260/F
7 WEST PARK STREET, CHATTERIS
ERECT A SINGLE-STOREY REAR EXTENSION INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF
EXISTING CONSERVATORY
F/YR25/0261/LB
7 WEST PARK STREET, CHATTERIS

Page 19



EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL WORKS TO A LISTED BUILDING: SINGLE STOREY
REAR EXTENSION INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING CONSERVATORY,
INSTALLATION OF NEW GATES AND AIR SOURCE HEAT PUMP TO SIDE OF
DWELLING AND REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING SASH WINDOWS WITH NEW
TIMBER SASH WINDOWS

Alan Davies presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Duncan and Sarah Worsley, the applicants. Mrs Worsley stated that the applications are similar to
previous applications which have been made in 2024 which were due to come before the
committee, however, due to some confusion the 2024 applications were declined in March 2025.
She explained that in July 2024 she met with Sam Falco, the Conservation Officer, with the
principles of the extension being discussed as well as reviewing the historic fabric of the house and
various options were discussed with an extension on the left-hand side being discarded due to the
requirements to leave a one metre gap between the neighbour’s extension and a lack of natural
light in that area.

Mrs Worsley explained that at that time everyone’s preferred option is what has formed the
application and is on the right-hand side of the house, with the current applications including more
historic fabric being retained such as keeping the existing door in its current location and a smaller
opening created into the new kitchen area. She explained that there are no local objections to the
scheme from people who live close to the proposed extension and alterations and Chatteris Town
Council have not objected to the proposal.

Mrs Worsley referred to the presentation screen which shows the scullery, and she added that the
Conservation Officer report of 25 April 2025 states that the room has not had a 20" century
makeover yet. She explained that the ground floor shower room was approved by the Council and
two thirds of the space was converted into a ground floor shower room back into 2016 and the
work was completed, with the remains of the scullery no longer being fit for purpose, it is a damp
dark space accessed via the shower room and it is not currently being used to the full benefit of the
house due to its distance from the current kitchen.

Mrs Worsley explained that it has a modern portioned wall which splits the existing sash window
and the window into the scullery bathroom cannot open. She explained that the next slide outlines
the front elevation and that the extension will not be seen from the street and the rear elevation
which demonstrates a mismatch of materials containing a mixture of brickwork, plastic casement
windows and a poorly constructed conservatory and all of these aspects will be significantly
improved by the proposed extension with the brickwork being repaired, windows replaced with in
keeping sash timber windows and the conservatory will be removed.

Mrs Worsley explained that the next slide shows the proximity of the neighbours extension at 9
West Park Street which was approved in May 2022. She made the point that with the position of
existing services and making better use of the existing floor plan, the proposed extension works
appear to work better on the right-hand side of the rear elevation.

Mrs Worsley explained that the next slide depicts a street sketch view which shows how the
proposed extension will be viewed when walking south along West Park Street and, in her opinion,
with existing fencing and vegetation to the front of 5 West Park Street the impact will be minimal,
and views of the rear garage block and the old dove cote will still be maintained. She made the
point that the proposed extension will be flat roofed and the existing stained-glass window at the
stair landing will be retained.

Mrs Worsley explained that a simple coping stone to the parapet will run around the extension and
will offer a sympathetic detail and with brickwork chosen to match the existing brickwork on the

Page 20



main dwelling. She explained that a sympathetic roof lantern will provide additional light into the
new space, and the proposed extension and alterations will be sympathetic to the house and wiill
improve the existing dwelling which will provide accommodation fit for a modern family and offer a
positive addition to the Listed Building which will be of public benefit when viewed from West Park
Stret.

Mrs Worsley made reference to section 10 of the officer’s report where it states that the single
storey extension would result in lesser substantial harm to the significance of the Listed Building
and its setting, adding that there is a small section of the existing fabric which is being removed,
however, in her view, that must be viewed against the wider benefit of adapting the house to
modern living standards. She stated that she does not believe that this has a significant
detrimental impact on the Listed Building and asking members to consider the benefits of the
scheme along with the largely supporting nature of the Planning Officer's comments and go
against the Conservation Officer's recommendations, with the scheme beings a sustainable
development and according with the development plan as a whole.

Members asked Mr and Mrs Worsley the following questions:

e Councillor Marks stated that Mrs Worsley had referred to ‘everyone’ being in agreement and
asked whether that included the Conservation Officer? Mr Worsley stated that it did.
Councillor Marks asked why they think that the Conservation Officer has now changed their
mind? Mr Worsley stated that he believes that the next-door neighbours’ extension is
somewhat out of keeping and he believes that the Conservation Officer wants them to hide
it and that is the only reason that they can think of which would make the officer change his
mind.

e Councillor Marks asked what the plans are for the scullery and will it be removed or are
there plans to reuse it? Mr Worsley explained that the floor in the shower room is above the
scullery floor and the floor will be kept and the scullery will be turned into a kitchen. He
added that they had proposed to have a drop down to the kitchen to keep it, but the
proposal now is to use the brick that will be removed. Mr Worsley stated that it will be fixed
as best as it can be and the modern PVC windows will be taken out and replaced with
wooden sash windows and, therefore, that side of the house would be restored whilst
perhaps doing a small bit of damage to the other side.

e Councillor Benney stated that some people purchase Listed Buildings without knowing what
type of property they are taking on and there are other people who purchase Listed
Buildings because they like that type of property and they are aware of the additional
excessive costs which are associated with that type of property. He added that residents
who own Listed Buildings appreciate the value of having a Listed Building or a building with
historic value to it, with the applicants changing the brickwork and recycling the brickwork
which is being removed. Councillor Benney asked Mr and Mrs Worsley whether they have
owned a Listed Building before, and did they realise what they were purchasing or was it
purchased as a project with a view to reinvigorate the house when it was purchased? Mr
Worsley explained that it is the first Listed Building which they have owned and initially it
was not the plan to buy it to add an extension onto it. He made the point that they fell in love
with the property, and they like the area which is why they moved and then they considered
what they wanted to do with the property by involving their agents who instructed an
architect. Mr Worsley explained that they then engaged with the Conservation Officer to
gain an understanding of what would be deemed acceptable, and they decided that they
would only undertake what works they were allowed to do. He stated that the conservatory
is ugly, and they want to have it removed and they wish to keep as much character of the
dwelling as possible including the fixing of the scarring and replacement of the windows. Mr
Worsley explained that he is looking to restore as much as they can and the scullery is a
downstairs bathroom at the moment which is not required as they already have two
bathrooms upstairs at the moment and it was added before for an elderly lady who could no
longer use the stairs. He stated that consideration has been given with regards to what
could be done with that room as it is only usable as it is at the current time as a bathroom

Page 21



and, therefore, they have decided that it could be used as a larger dining area and kitchen
and build an extension out. Mr Worsley added that there was never the intention to rip a
Listed Building down and the plan was to restore it as best as possible and try to make use
of it as a modern family, especially when nobody has a useable scullery anymore. Mrs
Worsley stated that it is their first Listed Building, but they have owned old properties before
and have undertaken painting before but not large extensions. She added that they love
their home but just want to make it more usable and the current kitchen will be changed into
a utility room, with it currently being a very dark kitchen requiring the lights to be on most of
the time. Mrs Worsley stated that to build a bigger darker extension there was discussed
with the architect and the Conservation Officer but it was seen to be impractical by
extending an already dark room into an even darker room.

Councillor Sennitt Clough asked for confirmation that as applicants they have undertaken
the right course of action and have sought advice as well as having a site visit with the
Conservation Officer before receiving an officer recommendation of refusal. Mr Worsley
stated that is correct and clarified that the officer recommendation was for refusal and was
due to come to planning committee, however, it was his understanding that the Chairman
wished to undertake a site visit but was unable to do so and because of that the application
went to default refusal which cannot be undone and he added that as a result the
application has had to be resubmitted.

Members asked officers the following questions:

Councillor Mrs French referred to the officer’s report where it refers to Government planning
guarantee, and asked officers to explain what that statement means? She added that she
would also like an explanation with regards to the application being refused on the 12 March
2025, however, a period has lapsed, and the application is back before the committee.
David Rowen explained that the Government planning guarantee now appears on the
majority of committee reports as a response to the issues of 12 months ago and the
proximity of designation that the Council was facing in terms of performance on planning
applications. He added that with regards to applications that come before the committee
that are either due to expire or where the Council are due to give the fee back, the
statement is provided for information purposes for members. He stated that with regards to
the previous applications which were refused back in March, they were determined entirely
in accordance with the scheme of delegation at the time, with one being determined as a
straightforward delegated decision and the other was referred to the Chairman and then
ultimately determined through the correct paths. David Rowen explained that in terms of the
applications coming to committee there was never a guarantee of that happening and they
were determined entirely in accordance with the scheme of delegation. He added that now
the applications have been returned within a number of weeks and one of the changes is
that there are now six letters of support which triggers the applications coming to the
planning committee under the scheme of delegation.

Councillor Mrs French stated that if officers refused the applications that should have been
the end of the matter, and she questioned why the applications have come back to the
committee ten weeks later. David Rowen stated that a further applications have been
submitted, and it has been progressed and due to the scheme of delegation and the fact
that there are six letters of support it has to be determined in front of the committee.
Councillor Mrs French stated that she finds that explanation quite surprising, making the
point that the first application determined this afternoon took 5 years to come before the
committee due to the significant amount of information involved and questioned how an
application can be submitted for the exact same thing and be brought before the committee
within such a brief period, having been refused on 12 March. David Rowen stated that the in
theory the application is a house extension which as members are aware officers have 8
weeks to determine and the application which took 5 years was an application for sixteen
dwellings with a number of technical issues and there is no comparison.

Members asked questions, made comments and received responses as follows:

Page 22



Councillor Benney stated that has been in the yard of the property previously as he knew
somebody who used to own it, with front in the Conservation Area being a lovely building,
and worthy of conservation and keeping in good order, however, the back of the property is,
in his view, a mess. He made the point that the applicants wish to remove the conservatory
and replace it with a modern room and in doing so they will reuse the bricks to change the
awful bricks which have been used and he assumes that they will use lime and plaster so
that it all fits back in and if it is done nicely that is how conservation should be done.
Councillor Benney stated that it is going to change the property from the street scene but it
is at the back of the house and although it can be seen it is a very minor part and there is
nothing to say that it is not going to enhance the street scene. He added that it is dependent
on whether it is seen as a positive change, referring to the presentation screen and
expressing the view that he can see nothing wrong with the proposal. Councillor Benney
expressed the opinion that the building does have protection and does have historic use to it
but people do need to reside here and when considering public benefit there are two
members of the public who live there and they should be able to have a modern house
within a Listed Building, with this being a case of where conservation and a modern building
go hand in hand. He stated that you read architecture, with the old building being at the front
and you read the back of that building and in 50 years’ time you should not be able to tell
from the style of the architecture when the changes were undertaken. Councillor Benney
referred to a building in Doddington where there is an old building with a contemporary part
on the back and that is a lovely building as it the house before the committee. He added that
you can tie a Listed Building and put it into a modern context for a modern home and that is
what the application does. Councillor Benney explained that some of the back wall is being
repaired, and the bricks are being recycled into the fabric of the building. He reiterated that
people need to live in the dwelling and the public benefit should be that the people who live
there actually end up with a genuinely nice house to live in and not have restraints forced on
them by planning applications and planning policy which is more concerned with bricks than
it is with people. Councillor Benney expressed the view that this application is a good
application, and the changes will enhance the building. He referred to the architecture at the
front of the building including the soffits and other features and made the point that those
are the things that should be conserved, to take some bricks out of a wall and cover them
up with a conservatory should not be seen as detrimental to damaging the fabric of the
building, in his opinion, and it is enhancing the building so that in 50 years’ time someone
will read the architecture of the building. Councillor Benney stated that he sees nothing
wrong with the application whatsoever.

Councillor Mrs French referred to the presentation screen and expressed the view that she
finds the conservatory to be appalling. She made the point that she is more concerned with
the neighbours and questioned whether the extension at the neighbouring property received
planning permission or was it permitted development. Councillor Mrs French asked whether
the house next door is Listed, and officer confirmed that it was not Listed. She added that if
the house next door obtained planning permission it detracts from a Listed Building and, in
her view, it should be looked at as well.

Councillor Sennitt Clough stated that she concurs with the points made by Councillors
Benney and Mrs French, and added that the applicants have abided by the rules, sought
advice and did everything that they could, and it was refused. She added that she now sees
an opportunity like other members have suggested to put things right.

Councillor Benney stated that this makes a mockery of the earlier application with regards to
the setting of a Listed Building. He added that, in this case, the extension is located right
next door to a Listed Building and questioned where is the consistency because that is the
setting of a Listed Building and he questioned whether it enhances the Listed Building which
is being looked at because he does not think so. Councillor Benney made the point that the
people who purchased the house knew the extension next door was in place and are
content with it and the residents who built the extension are happy with it. He questioned
how the extension can be passed and agreed that as it is within the setting of a Listed
Building it does not work in his view. He added that he knows each application must be

Page 23



considered on its own merits, but it is very subjective.

Councillor Marks stated that he agrees with Councillor Benney with the point he made
concerning the house in Doddington where the new element and the old really does work
together. He added that whatever works are undertaken on this house by taking down the
plastic conservatory and adding something nicer it will all match in over a period of time and
he cannot see any reason not to support the applications.

Councillor Purser referred to the adjacent property and added that it is not known whether
the house has received planning permission for their extension.

David Rowen stated that planning permission was granted for the house next door, and he
made the point that each application has to be considered on its own merits and each Listed
Building has its own setting, and the setting of this Listed Building is very much a residential
environment where you would expect buildings in close proximity to one another. He added
that some of the criticism of that decision from members is somewhat unjustified. David
Rowen stated that with regards to improving the Listed Building there are improvements
proposed which the Conservation Officer does support, and he added that the removal of
the conservatory and the replacement of the brickwork could actually be done without
necessarily needing the extension of the building. He explained that the loss of the historic
fabric of the building in terms of the creation of the extension is what the reason for refusal
is based on, it is nothing to do with the street scene or front elevation, it is the loss of his
historic fabric through the removal of the scullery and through the internal works to create
that area. David Rowen referred to the earlier application in relation to a Listed Building and
the issue of giving special regard to preserving a Listed Building or a setting, he explained
that consideration is being given to works to the fabric of the Listed Building which would, in
the view of officers, detrimentally impact upon the historic significance of that building
through the loss of that historic fabric and that is the issue. He stated that in terms of public
benefit there is no wider public benefit and whilst he appreciates that applicants may get a
slightly better standard of living accommodation that is not a public benefit it is a private
benefit to those individuals.

The Legal Officer stated that he wished to remind members that the Planning Code of
Conduct requires a development which has been previously refused and if a member
wishes to propose approval then that members must explain the change in planning
circumstances. He added that as there was a refusal in March 2025 then it is incumbent on
the member who proposes approval to explain the change in circumstances and the fact
that the previous decision was under officer delegation is not a change in circumstances.
Councillor Mrs French asked whether the original extension had planning permission?
David Rowen stated that as far as he is aware that predates any planning requirements.
Councillor Mrs French stated that she has considered what the Legal Officer has stated and
she cannot come up with the justification to go against the officer's recommendation.
Councillor Benney stated the issues need to be addressed with regards to what the
difference is and he agrees with Councillor Mrs French to a certain extent, but he has not
looked at the previous application to see what the differences are and, therefore, if there is
not a significant difference then that is down to the agent not undertaking their role correctly.
He added that the agent should know that there has to be significant changes so that
members do not go against their own code of conduct. Councillor Benney added that he
does not know what the previous application was to be able to say what is different.

David Rowen explained that the at paragraph 9.2 of the report it states that the
amendments made to the current submission include reducing the opening in the kitchen
and the retention of the existing rear door from the hallway which are quite minor changes in
the overall scheme.

Councillor Benney stated that if it was a like for like application then it would have to be
refused but by reducing an opening is a change.

The Legal Officer stated that the Code of Conduct requires a member to point out what
significant change in planning circumstances justifies approval.

Councillor Benney stated that if the committee feel that the change at the opening is
significant enough then in their view it is, however, it comes down to how people define

Page 24



significant. He expressed the view he feels it is significant enough of a change to grant
approval.

e The Legal Officer stated that the Code does not define what is significant and it is a matter
for members to determine provided that they act rationally and if members decide that
something is significant then that is down to them.

e David Rowen referred to the presentation screen and indicated to members that the
doorway which is proposed was originally going to be a double door and it is now going to
be a single door and that is the only change.

e Councillor Marks stated that this is changing the fabric of the building which is the old
building. Alan Davies stated that is correct as it is the historic fabric which forms part of the
rear elevation.

e Councillor Mrs French stated that the discussion appears to be focussing on what and what
is not significant, and, in her view, she does not think that it is a significant change to
warrant an approval. She added that it is a shame, but it is a Listed Building, and she does
not feel that the changes are significant.

e Councillor Sennitt Clough stated that she feels that the changes that are proposed bring
with them the potential for long term sustainability of the building and there is no damage to
the structural integrity, and it creates resilience to the building and is reversable. She added
that for those reasons she will support the application.

F/YR25/0260/F

Proposed by Councillor Mrs French to agree the officer's recommendation but no seconder was
forthcoming.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Purser and agreed that the
application be GRANTED against officer’'s recommendation of refusal, with authority
delegated to officers to apply conditions.

F/YR25/0261/LB

Proposed by Councillor Mrs French, seconded by Councillor Gerstner to agree the officer’s
recommendation, which was not supported on a vote by members.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Sennitt Clough and agreed that
the application be GRANTED against officer’'s recommendation of refusal, with authority
delegated to officers to apply conditions.

Members do not support officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they feel
that the changes made in making the opening smaller are significant enough to be different to a
previous refusal making this a different application and the removal of the conservatory, reuse of
the bricks and replacement of the windows to be more in keeping will enhance the Listed Building,
bring benefit to the building and will not have a detrimental effect.

(Councillor Benney declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on
Planning Matters, that he is a member of Chatteris Town Council but takes no part in planning)

(Councillor Marks declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on Planning
Matters, that he attends meetings of Chatteris Town Council but takes no part in planning)

4.30 pm Chairman

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

F/YR23/0648/F
Applicant: Mr Brent Warner Agent : Mr Gordon Smith
Postland Developments Matrix Planning Ltd

Land South Of 127-141, Coates Road, Coates, Cambridgeshire

Hybrid application: Full planning permission to erect 18 x dwellings (2 x single-
storey 2-bed, 1 x 2-storey 2-bed, 2 x single-storey 3-bed, 4 x 3-storey 3-bed, 7 x 2-
storey 4-bed 1 x 2-storey 6-bed and 1 x 3-storey 6-bed) including 2 x self-build
dwellings and the formation of 3 x accesses and a pedestrian footpath. Outline
application with matters committed in respect of access to erect 2 x self-build
dwellings

Officer recommendation: Grant

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer
recommendation

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. The proposal is a hybrid application with full planning permission sought for the
erection of 18no. dwellings. The outline element is for the erection of 2no. self-
build dwellings with access the only matter committed.

1.2. The application is considered to be acceptable in principle by virtue of an extant
outline planning permission on site, granted under F/YR20/0441/O for the same
quantum of development proposed under this application.

1.3. The detailed scheme as submitted is considered to be acceptable in terms of its
character and appearance, amenity impact, flood risk and drainage, and
highway safety impact; with no objections received from statutory consultees on
these grounds.

1.4. The objections received from Natural England in respect of insufficient
information to determine the impact on protected sites. However, regard has
been given to the extant permission on site that could be built out without the
submission of further information in this regard. As such, it is considered in
terms of the planning balance that the proposal is acceptable in this regard,
when having regard to these material considerations.

1.5. Whilst the applicant is unable to meet the financial contributions requested as
part of the consultation process of this application due to a demonstrated lack of
viability, it is considered that the proposal provides sufficient contributions to
mitigate against its impacts on healthcare, education and affordable housing, in
exceeding the position applied by the LPA to applications submitted prior to
November 2024 in requesting a contribution of £2,000 per plot.

1.6. As such, in the overall planning balance, it is considered that the proposal is
acceptable in planning terms and is accordingly recommended for approval,
subject to conditions and the completion of the necessary legal agreement.

Page 27



2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

5.1.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site is located at Land South of 127-141 Coates Road in Coates.
The site comprises an agricultural field measuring approximately 1.18 hectares in
size.

The site is currently screened from Coates Road due to the presence of an
established hedgerow that runs along the frontage of the site.

The site is situated on the eastern end of the built form of the settlement of Coates
but is also in close proximity to the settlement of Eastrea. There is residential
development located to the north and east of the site, with undeveloped
agricultural fields to the west and south of the site.

The site falls within Flood Zone 1, meaning that it is at low risk of flooding, and is
also at very low risk of surface water flooding.

PROPOSAL

The proposal is a hybrid application with full planning permission sought for the
erection of 18no. dwellings. The outline element is for the erection of 2no. self-build
dwellings with access the only matter committed.

The housing mix proposed in the full element is as follows:

- 2 x single-storey, 2-bed
- 1 x two-storey, 2-bed
- 2 x single-storey, 3-bed
- 4 x three-storey, 3-bed
- 7 x two-storey, 4-bed
- 1 x two-storey, 6-bed
- 1 x three-storey, 6-bed

The proposal includes the creation of 3no. access points and a pedestrian footpath
along Coates Road.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

F/YR18/0405/0 | Erection of up to 21no. dwellings (outline Refused
application with all matters reserved) 25.10.18

F/YR20/0441/O | Erect up to 20no. dwellings (outline application with | Granted
all matters reserved) including 4no. self-build 04.10.24
dwellings

CONSULTATIONS

Lead Local Flood Authority — 25.02.25

No objection in principle to the proposed development, subject to conditions to
secure the following:

Page 28



https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

- Detailed Surface Water Drainage Scheme
- Scheme for managing surface water run-off during construction

5.2. Natural England - 06.09.24

Insufficient information submitted in respect of the Nene Washes SPA and Ouse
Washes SPA Functional Land IRZ, particularly in relation to geese and swans.

Natural England object on this basis.
5.3. East of England Ambulance Service — 04.07.24

No objection subject to contribution of £6,540 towards the Ambulance Service
5.4. Whittlesey Town Council — 30.08.23

The Town Council recommend refusal under policy LP12 purely because we wish
to retain the green space instead of it being developed.

5.5. CCC Highways — 11.06.24

Following the submission of information in relation to the width of the junction at
5m, the Highway Authority have no objections subject to conditions securing the
following:

- Highways drainage to prevent surface water run-off
- The provision of off-site highway works in terms of the provision of a footpath
along the frontage of the site

5.6. Designing out Crime — 11.06.24
No objections. Would welcome conditions relating to:

- External lighting plan
- Plans of cycle sheds
- Fencing/Boundary Treatments

5.7. Environmental Health — 22.08.23

No objection subject to condition securing submission of Construction Environment
Management Plan (CEMP) and unexpected contamination condition.

5.8. Anglian Water - 06.06.24
No objection
5.9. Cambs Fire Service — 03.06.24

No objection subject to Section 106 obligation or condition securing adequate
provision of fire hydrants.

5.10.CCC Archaeology — 29.05.24

No objection subject to condition securing protection and enhancement of the
Whitecross Stone.

5.11.FDC Tree Officer — 16.10.23

Page 29



No objection
5.12.CCC Education — 01.09.23
The following S106 contributions should be secured:
- Early Years Provision: £43,548
- Primary Provision: £174,192
- Secondary Provision: £131,830
5.13.NHS England - 30.08.23
S106 contribution of £14,783.92 required.
5.14.FDC Housing — 16.08.23

While the Council aims to deliver policy compliant 25% affordable Housing
provision on qualifying schemes where possible, it is acknowledged that a reduced
percentage of affordable housing via planning obligations to a maximum of 20%,
will be achievable in most instances.

Since this planning application proposes the provision of 20 number of dwellings,
our policy seeks to secure a contribution of 25% affordable housing which equates
to 5 affordable dwellings in this instance. Based on the provision of 20% affordable
housing 4 affordable dwellings would be required in this instance.

Fenland’s current approach is to agree that sites that yield less than 10 (i.e. 9 or
fewer) affordable homes through planning obligations can be discharged by way of
a financial contribution rather than on-site provision.

If the applicant chooses to provide a financial contribution rather than seek an RP
partner to deliver the on-site affordable housing, the affordable housing financial
contribution will be calculated in accordance with the mechanism provided in the
Local Plan policy and as follows:

- The applicant should submit the necessary open market values of homes which
would otherwise have been affordable housing to FDC.

- FDC will assume that RPs would usually pay 55% of OMV for a rented dwelling
and 65% of OMV for a shared ownership dwelling.

- FDC will assume that 70% of all affordable homes will be rented tenure and 30%
will be shared ownership tenure.

5.15. Local Residents/Interested Parties

Objectors

A total of 16 letters of objection were received from residents of Coates, Eastrea
and Whittlesey on the application, with the nearest representations received from
Coates Road & Minuet Paddocks. The following points were raised:

- Loss of defined boundary between Coates and Eastrea

- 3-storey dwellings out of keeping

- Loss of wildlife habitat

- Local services and facilities inadequate to accommodate new development
- Creation of 3no. access points excessive

Page 30



- Highway network inadequate

- Overlooking from 3-storey properties fronting onto Coates Road
- Disturbance on properties opposite from headlights at access

- Inadequate pedestrian facilities

- Noise and pollution disturbance

- Phase 1 development (Minuet Paddocks) not complete

- Poor drainage

Supporters

A total of 10 letters of support were received from residents of Coates, Eastrea and
Whittlesey on the application, raising the following points:

- Development reflects local housing needs

- Good landscaping scheme and informal open space

- First phase of Postland Development housing on Minuet Paddocks completed to
high standard

- General plot and amenity space

- Creation of new habitats

Representations

A total of 2 letters of representation were received on the application, raising the
following points:

- The site is in Eastrea, Not Coates
- Another application in Coates for 3no. dwellings was refused as village threshold
was exceeded

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014) the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local Plan
(2021) and the Whittlesey Neighbourhood Plan (2023).

POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Chapter 16 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
Chapter 17 — Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

Page 31



National Design Guide 2021
Context

|dentity

Built Form

Movement

Nature

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 - A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 - Meeting Housing Need

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP13 — Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP18 — The Historic Environment

LP19 — The Natural Environment

Whittlesey Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2040

Policy 1 — Spatial Planning

Policy 2 — Local Housing Need

Policy 7 — Design Quality

Policy 9 — Coalescence of Villages

Policy 10 — Delivering Sustainable Transport

Policy 11 — Adapting to and Mitigating Climate Change

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014
DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Developer Contributions SPD 2015
Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2016

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

Page 32



LP13: Custom and Self Build

LP18: Development in the Countryside
LP20: Accessibility and Transport
LP22: Parking Provision

LP23: Historic Environment

LP24: Natural Environment

LP25: Biodiversity Net Gain

LP27: Trees and Planting

LP28: Landscape

LP31: Open Space and Recreational Facilities
LP32: Flood and Water Management

8 KEY ISSUES

Principle of Development

Character and appearance

Amenity Impact

Landscape and Ecology

Parking Provision and Highway Safety
Flood Risk and Drainage
Viability/Section 106 Contributions
Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

9 BACKGROUND

9.1. The site currently benefits from extant planning permission granted under
F/YR20/0442/0, which sought outline permission or the erection of 20no.
dwellings, with permission granted on the 4% of October 2024 following the
completion of a legal agreement.

10 ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

10.1. The application site is located adjacent to the settlement of Coates, which is
defined as a Limited Growth Village in the Fenland Local Plan under Policy LP3.
This Policy states that for ‘Limited Growth Villages’, a small amount of
development and service provision will be encouraged and permitted, and that
such development may be appropriate as a small village extension. As such, there
is a degree of support for the proposals in accordance with Local Planning Policy
LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

10.2. Further, as stated in paragraph 9.1 of this report, the application site benefits from
extant outline planning permission for the erection of 20no. dwellings, thereby
establishing the principle of the residential development of the site.

10.3. Given that the outline consent is extant and could be built out, subject to the
approval of an acceptable Reserved Matters scheme, the principle of development
is considered to be acceptable in this instance.

Housing Mix

10.4. The proposed housing mix is as follows:

House Size Number
2 bed bungalows 3

Page 33



3 bed houses

4 bed houses

5/6 bed houses

Not yet known

(Plots 4 & 5 are in outline)

NIN|N O

20 total

10.5. The proposed mix demonstrates a good distribution of house types, sizes and
scales, which will provide housing for a variety of family types and sizes.

10.6. The proposal will also contribute a total of 4no. self-build dwellings towards the
Council’s supply of such units.

10.7. Policy 2 of the Whittlesey Neighbourhood Plan requires that development
proposals contribute towards the needs identified in the Whittlesey Town Council
Housing Needs Assessment (2017). This found that there was a need for smaller
dwellings — namely 2 and 3 bed properties. Notwithstanding this, the report also
concluded that there will be a future need for larger family-sized homes in the
future.

10.8. As such, the housing mix set out above would contribute towards the supply of
both of these needs. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal has appropriate
regard to Policy 2 of the Whittlesey Neighbourhood Plan and Policy LP5, Part C of
the Fenland Local Plan in respect of proposed housing mix.

Character and appearance

10.9. On the basis that outline planning permission has been granted for the erection of
20no. dwellings, it has been established that the development of the site for
residential purposes is acceptable in principle having regard to Policy LP12 in
respect of its impact on the landscape character.

10.10. This is to say that the development of the site would not result in the coalescence
of settlements — Eastrea and Coates in this instance — and would be in keeping
with the core shape and form of the settlement, without extending linear features or
resulting in ribbon development.

10.11. Policy LP9 of the Whittlesey Neighbourhood Plan offers detail in this respect. It
seeks to ensure that a distinct separation is retained between Eastrea and Coates.
This separation is sought through the inclusion of a buffer zone as set out on ‘Map
8’ of the Whittlesey Neighbourhood Plan. The site appears to be located outside of
the identified buffer zone and it is therefore considered that the proposal is in
compliance with Policy LP9 of the Whittlesey Neighbourhood Plan in terms of
avoiding the coalescence of settlements.

10.12. Whilst this proposal does not seek approval of Reserved Matters following the
grant of outline planning permission and instead seeks the granting of a new
planning permission, it is noted that the quantum of development remains the
same as that approved at outline stage. Therefore, it is not considered that there
are any further issues to be addressed in respect of Policy LP12 of the Fenland
Local Plan.

10.13. The submitted site layout plan (Dwg No. D(--)10M) identifies the creation of 3no.
access points onto Coates Road, with the central access point serving the majority

Page 34



of the development — 14no. dwellings — with two further access points created on
either side of this to serve the remaining 6no. dwellings.

10.14. The proposed layout is similar to that on the adjacent site to the east which was
built out by the same developer. The depth of built form matches that of the site
adjacent, albeit with residential gardens of plots 7-11 extending further south - and
will therefore be in keeping with the form of development seen in the locality
without resulting in any further, significant encroachment into the open countryside.

10.15. Further to this, the house types proposed tend to be similar in appearance to
those on the adjacent site — Minuet Meadows. As such, the general design
approach of the proposal is generally consistent with the character and
appearance of the dwellings seen in the locality.

10.16. A precise palette of materials is not provided in support of the application.
However, it is considered likely that these will be similar to the materials used on
the adjacent development — Minuet Paddocks — which was built out by the same
applicant. It is recommended that a condition is imposed requiring precise details
of materials to be submitted to ensure that these are sympathetic to the character
of the area and provide an appropriate mix of external appearances across the
site, in accordance with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

10.17. The site layout plan identifies a relatively low density of development of 17
dwellings per hectare. It is considered that this density of development is
appropriate in an edge of village setting, and avoids a cramped form of
development, with all plots benefitting from suitable private amenity space
provision.

10.18. It is also noted that ‘Site Levels Plans’ have been submitted alongside the
application which state a ‘Finished Floor Level’ of 5.000 for the plots fronting onto
Coates Road. This remains generally consistent throughout the site, with the
rearmost plots having a ‘FFL’ of 4.550, therefore suggesting a slipe decline in
height from the front of the site to the rear. However, the levels plans also identify
the frontmost plots of the development to the east as having FFL'’s of 5.2.
Therefore, the levels on the site are considered to be acceptable and would not
result in a form of development that would be out of keeping in this regard.

10.19. The proposal is overall considered to be in accordance with Policy LP16 of the
Fenland Local Plan (2014) in respect of its character and appearance.

Amenity Impact

10.20. The submitted site layout plan identifies that each of the plots will benefit from a
suitable level of private amenity space provision, proportionate to the size of the
dwelling. The smallest plot measures approximately 150m2, which is a two and a
half storey dwelling; and the largest measuring approximately 655m2, which is to
serve a self-build plot.

10.21. The generous plot sizes ensure appropriate private amenity space provision and
also ensure that there will be no loss of amenity arising from overlooking or over-
dominance in terms of the intra-dwelling relationships.

10.22. The properties adjacent to the eastern boundary of the site with, which borders
existing residential development, is set approximately 12.4m away from the
boundary of the site. This separation distance will ensure that no unacceptable
overlooking occurs from any first floor or higher windows onto the existing
properties to the east.

Page 35



10.23. The proposals include an area of informal open space along the western
boundary of the site. However, due to its narrow width - 5.5m at its narrowest and
8.75m at its widest - it is considered that its functional contribution towards the
amenities of occupiers would be limited.

10.24. Notwithstanding this, it is considered that the site layout, plot sizes and private
amenity space provision offer a good level of residential amenity for the occupiers
of the site. The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with Policy
LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) in this regard.

Landscape and Ecology

10.25. It is noted that there is an outstanding objection from Natural England in respect
of the absence of information relating to the impact of the development on the
Nene Washes SPA and Ouse Washes SPA Functional Land IRZ, particularly in
relation to geese and swans.

10.26. Regard has been given to the extant outline planning permission that exists on
site that could be built out following approval of an appropriate Reserved Matters
scheme. The previous application was not subject to a request for information in
this respect and therefore could proceed without the submission of such
information at Reserved Matters stage. As such, it is considered unreasonable in
this instance to request information as part of this application.

10.27. The Ecological Appraisal submitted in support of the application concludes that
the impacts of the scheme on protected species or habitats on site can be suitably
mitigated against though the inclusion mitigation and safeguarding measures
during construction, along with further enhancement measures to provide an uplift
in biodiversity on-site.

10.28. The comments from the Council Ecologist and Natural England do not raise
objections to the scheme in respect of its impact on protected species and habitats
on-site.

10.29. Therefore, it is considered on balance that the proposal is acceptable in terms of
its biodiversity impact, having regard to Policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

10.30. Furthermore, no objections were made by the Tree Officer in respect of the
impact of the development on existing soft landscaping features on site that may
be impacted by the development.

10.31. It is recommended that a condition is imposed requiring the submission of a
detailed Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AlA) and Method Statement prior to the
commencement of works on site to ensure that the trees shown for retention are
not damaged or lost during the development. It is further recommended that a
condition requiring the submission of a landscaping scheme is imposed to ensure
that completed development is acceptable in this regard.

10.32. It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms of its impact on
trees and landscaping, having regard to Policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

Parking Provision and Highway Safety

10.33. The Highway Authority have considered the proposal and have raised no
objections to the development, subject to conditions securing adequate highway

Page 36



drainage measures and the provision of the off-site highways works as shown on
the submitted drawings.

10.34. Due to the geometry of Coates Road, each of the proposed access points benefit
from good visibility in each direction, allowing for safe access and egress of the
site. This is further supported by the site including sufficient space for vehicles to
turn on-site, thereby allowing them to exit the site in forward gear.

10.35. Appendix A of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) sets out the parking standards that
are required for new development. This specifies that any properties of up to 3
bedrooms require the provision of 2 spaces, and dwellings with 4+ bedrooms
requiring the provision of 3no. parking spaces.

10.36. These standards are met with each plot being provided with the appropriate
amount number of parking spaces, with additional garages provided for most plots.
It is therefore considered that the parking provision on site is in accordance with
Appendix A of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

10.37. The comments received in respect of the surrounding highway network are
noted. However, the Highway Authority have raised no objections in respect of the
impact of the development on the wider highway network. It is considered unlikely
that the traffic movements generated by 20no. additional dwellings would result in
a severe impact on the highway network that would justify the refusal of the
application on this basis.

10.38. The proposal is therefore considered to satisfy the requirements of Policy LP15 of
the Fenland Local Plan (2014) in respect of its parking provision and highway
safety impact.

Flood Risk and Drainage

10.39. The application site is within Flood Zone 1 and is at very low risk of surface water
flooding. As such, it is considered that there are no issues to address in respect of
flood risk and drainage in relation to Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014)
and Chapter 14 of the NPPF (2024).

10.40. It should also be noted that the LLFA have raised no objection to the scheme
subject to a condition securing a detailed surface water drainage scheme, and a
scheme to manage surface water run-off during the construction period.

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

10.41. The Environment Act 2021 requires development proposals to deliver a net gain
in biodiversity following a mitigation hierarchy which is focused on avoiding
ecological harm over minimising, rectifying, reducing and then off-setting. This
approach accords with Local Plan policies LP16 and LP19 which outlines a primary
objective for biodiversity to be conserved or enhanced and provides for the
protection of Protected Species, Priority Species and Priority Habitat.

10.42. There are statutory exemptions, transitional arrangements and requirements
relating to irreplaceable habitat which mean that the biodiversity gain condition
does not always apply. In this instance, one or more of the exemptions /
transitional arrangements are considered to apply and a Biodiversity Gain
Condition is not required to be approved before development is begun because the
application was submitted prior to the requirement for statutory net gain coming
into force.

Page 37



Viability/Section 106 Contributions

10.43. The scheme attracts the following financial contributions towards mitigation of its
impacts on healthcare and education, with each figure calculated on the basis of a
quantum of development of 20 dwellings:

- East of England Ambulance Service — £6,540
- Cambridgeshire County Council Education — £349,570 total, split as follows:
oEarly Years Provision: £43,548
oPrimary Provision: £174,192
oSecondary Provision: £131,830
oNHS England — £14,783.92
10.44. These figures represent an overall total of £370,803.92.

10.45. The proposed off-site highway works, necessary to meet the highway impacts of
the development are also recommended to be captured in a Section 106
agreement.

10.46. Policy LPS5 sets out that for sites of 10 or more dwellings, there is a requirement
to provide 25% affordable housing, rounded to the nearest whole dwelling. In this
case, that would equate to the provision of 4no. dwellings. The Council’s own HDH
district-wide viability appraisal suggests that 20% affordable plus a financial
contribution of £2000 per dwelling (£40,000 total) is generally a realistic sum,
unless a bespoke site viability assessment indicates otherwise. While the HDH
appraisal is considered to be somewhat out of date, given it is now over 5 years
old, the council is still treating this as a material planning consideration in relation
to those application submitted prior to November 2024.

10.47. A S106 agreement was completed in relation to application F/'YR20/0441/O on
the 4th of October 2024. This would have attracted a total financial contribution of
approximately £350,000, based on the current housing mix proposed as part of this
application in relation to affordable housing and education.

10.48. Essentially the current application seeks to secure a lower level of contribution
and as such a viability appraisal (White Land Strategies LTD — December 2024)
has been submitted in support of the application. The appraisal concluded that the
scheme was not viable and it should therefore not be made to meet the full
financial contributions as set out above. The report concluded that a global
financial contribution of £66,000 was achievable.

10.49. The applicant’s position on viability has been assessed by the Council’s
appointed viability assessor (CPV) and a number of discussions and appraisals
have been undertaken, considering matters of differences in market values, plot
costs, garage costs, profit and debt interest.

10.50. Through ongoing discussion and testing, the Council’s assessor has concluded
that a total cash contribution of £133,000 can viably be provided by the
development.

10.51. This position has been considered by the applicant, who has subsequently
agreed to a global financial contribution of £133,000 to be made via a S106

Page 38



agreement, to be put towards healthcare mitigation, education and a commuted
sum for affordable housing.

10.52. Clearly this figure represents a shortfall relative to the requested contributions
and also a reduction from the previously agreed contributions. However this has
been independently verified in terms of viability and notwithstanding the shortfall
identified, the proposed contribution of £133,000 is significantly greater than the
amount that would be achieved based on the position applied by the LPA of £2,000
per plot, a position applied on applications pre-dating November 2024.

10.53. As such, it is considered on balance that the proposed financial contribution
meets the tests as set out by current CIL regulations and provides sufficient
mitigation to meet the requirements of Local Plan Policies LP5 and LP13 in respect
of its developers’ contributions.

11  CONCLUSIONS

11.1.The proposal is a hybrid application with full planning permission sought for the
erection of 18no. dwellings. The outline element is for the erection of 2no. self-build
dwellings with access the only matter committed.

11.2. The application is considered to be acceptable in principle by virtue of an extant
outline planning permission on site, granted under F/YR20/0441/O for the same
quantum of development proposed under this application.

11.3. The detailed scheme as submitted is considered to be acceptable in terms of its
character and appearance, amenity impact, flood risk and drainage, and highway
safety impact; with no objections received from statutory consultees on these
grounds.

11.4. The objections received from Natural England in respect of insufficient information
to determine the impact on protected sites. However, regard has been given to the
extant permission on site that could be built out without the submission of further
information in this regard. As such, it is considered in terms of the planning
balance that the proposal is acceptable in this regard, when having regard to these
material considerations.

11.5. Whilst the applicant is unable to meet the financial contributions requested as part
of the consultation process of this application due to a demonstrated lack of
viability, it is considered on balance that the proposal provides sufficient
contributions to mitigate against its impacts on healthcare, education and
affordable housing, when considering the position applied by the LPA prior to
November 2024 in requesting a contribution of £2,000 per plot.

11.6. As such, in the overall planning balance, it is considered that the proposal is
acceptable in planning terms and is accordingly recommended for approval,
subject to conditions.

12 RECOMMENDATION

Members are recommended to APPROVE the application in accordance with the
following terms;

1. The Committee delegates authority to finalise the terms and completion of the
S.106 legal agreement and planning conditions to the Head of Planning; and,

Page 39



2. Following the completion of the S.106, application F/YR23/00648/F be approved
subject to the draft planning conditions set out below; or,

3. The Committee delegates authority to refuse the application in the event that
the Applicant does not agree any necessary extensions to the determination
period to enable the completion of the S106 legal agreement or on the grounds
that the applicant is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary to make the
development acceptable, or that the applicant is unwilling to agree to any
necessary pre-commencement conditions associated with the FULL element of
the permission, as per the requirements of S100ZA of the Act.

Draft Conditions

1. | The development permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. | Approval of the details of:

(i) the layout of the site (including road construction details)
(i) the scale of the building(s);

(i)  the external appearance of the building(s);

(iv)  the landscaping (including boundary treatment details)

(hereinafter called "the Reserved Matters" shall be obtained from the
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development).

Reason: To enable the Local Planning to control the details of the
development hereby permitted and to ensure the development meets
the policy standards required by the development plan and any other
material considerations including national and local policy guidance.

3. | Application for approval of the Reserved Matters shall be made to the
Local Planning Authority before the expiration of 3 years from the date
of this permission.

Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 92 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

4. | The development of the self-build dwellings hereby permitted shall begin
before the expiration of 2 years from the date of approval of the last of
the Reserved Matters to be approved.

Reason: To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

5. | The dwellings shown on plots 4-7 shall only be developed in accordance
with the definition of self and custom build housing contained within the
Self Build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 (as amended).

Reason: The permission is granted without the requirement for provision
of affordable housing on the site or other infrastructure contributions due
to the nature of the proposal to provide plots for those people building or

Page 40



commissioning their own properties in line with paragraph 64 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019). Development of the site by
a business or commercial organisation would therefore require the
consideration of such provision and the need for a legal agreement
securing any agreed contributions.

Prior to the commencement of development, full details of the proposed
arrangements for future management and maintenance of the proposed
streets within the development shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The streets shall thereafter be
maintained in accordance with the approved management and
maintenance details until such time as an Agreement for their adoption
has been entered into under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory development of the site and to ensure
estate roads are managed and maintained thereafter to a suitable and
safe standard, in accordance with policy LP15 of the Fenland Local
Plan, adopted May 2014

Prior to the commencement of development a detailed scheme for the
construction of estate road(s), associated footway(s) and cycleway(s)
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved detailed scheme shall be constructed to at
least binder course surfacing level to the adjoining highway; prior to the
first occupation of any dwelling served by the estate road.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of
occupiers in accordance with Policies LP15 and LP16 of the Fenland
Local Plan (2014).

Prior to the commencement of any development, a scheme for the
provision and implementation of foul water drainage shall be submitted
and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The scheme
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the
relevant parts of the development are first brought into use and
thereafter retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory method of foul water drainage and to
prevent the increased risk of pollution to controlled waters in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy LP14 of the
Fenland Local Plan 2014.

A pre-commencement condition is necessary in order to ensure that foul
water drainage is adequately dealt with and thereafter retained in
perpetuity.

Prior to the commencement of any development, a scheme for the
provision and implementation of surface water drainage shall be
submitted and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details
before the relevant parts of the development are first brought into use
and thereafter retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory method of surface water drainage and
to prevent the increased risk of flooding in accordance with the National

Page 41



Planning Policy Framework and Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan
2014.

A pre-commencement condition is necessary in order to ensure that
surface water drainage is adequately dealt with and thereafter retained
in perpetuity.

10.

No development, including preparatory works, shall commence until
details of measures indicating how additional surface water run-off from
the site will be avoided during the construction works have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The applicant may be required to provide collection, balancing and/or
settlement systems for these flows. The approved measures and
systems shall be brought into operation before any works to create
buildings or hard surfaces commence.

Reason: To ensure surface water is managed appropriately during the
construction phase of the development, so as not to increase the flood
risk to adjacent land/properties or occupied properties within the
development itself; recognising that initial works to prepare the site
could bring about unacceptable impacts in accordance with Policy LP14
of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

11.

Prior to any work commencing on the site a Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to, and agreed in writing
by, the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall include, but shall not
be limited to, mitigation measures for noise, dust and lighting during the
construction phase. The CEMP shall be adhered to at all times.

Reason: To mitigate environmental and amenity impacts during the
construction phase of the proposed development, in accordance with
Policies LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014. The condition is
pre-commencement as it would be unreasonable to require applicants to
undertake this work prior to consent being granted.

12.

Prior to the commencement of development, the developer should
provide a management plan for the protection and enhancement of the
Whitecross Stone. Development shall only be carried out in accordance
with the agreed details.

Reason: To preserve an area of archaeological/historical importance, in
accordance with Policy LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

13.

Prior to the commencement of any works on site, an Arboricultural
Impact Assessment and Method Statement, including a timetable for
delivery, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved scheme.

Reason: To protect the trees on site during construction, in accordance
with Policy LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

14.

No works shall take place until a Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP shall

Page 42




include the following:

a) Summary of potentially damaging activities

b) ldentification of biodiversity protection zones

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working
practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (these may be
provided as a set of method statements) include a pre-works check for
non-native species undertaken by a suitably qualified ecologist and any
additional measures required to manage and control any invasive
species present.

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to
biodiversity features

e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be
present on site to oversee works

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication

g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works
(ECoW) or similarly competent person.

h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout
the construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details,
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To meet the requirements of para.180(d) of the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Chapter 19 of the Fenland
Local Plan (2014).

15.

No development other than groundworks and foundations shall take
place until full details of the materials to be used in the development
hereby approved for the walls and roof are submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details submitted for
approval shall include the name of the manufacturer, the product type,
colour and reference number. The development shall then be carried out
in accordance with the approved details and retained in perpetuity
thereafter.

Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance
with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May 2014.

16.

No development other than groundworks and foundations shall take
place until full details of the materials to be used in the development
hereby approved for the walls and roof are submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details submitted for
approval shall include the name of the manufacturer, the product type,
colour and reference number. The development shall then be carried out
in accordance with the approved details and retained in perpetuity
thereafter.

Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance
with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May 2014.

17.

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until
such time as a refuse collection strategy has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed strategy
shall be adhered to thereafter in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of refuse collection in accordance

Page 43




with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

18.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, the
proposed on-site parking area shall be laid out in accordance with the
approved plans, surfaced in a bound material and drained within the
site. The parking area, surfacing and drainage shall thereafter be
retained as such in perpetuity.

Reason: In order to ensure adequate parking provision and in the
interests of highway safety, in accordance with policies LP15 and LP16
of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

19.

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, a scheme
for the provision of external lighting shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be
implemented prior to commencement of use/occupation of any dwellings
and retained thereafter in perpetuity.

Reason: In order to ensure that the site meets the crime prevention
guidelines in accordance with Policy LP17 of the Fenland Local Plan
2014.

20.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a
scheme for the provision of fire hydrants or equivalent emergency water
supply shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The approved details shall be implemented and
made available for use prior to the occupation of the first dwelling.

Reason: In the interests of the safety of the occupiers and to ensure
there are available public water mains in the area to provide for a
suitable water supply in accordance with infrastructure requirements
within Policy LP13 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

21.

The development shall not be occupied/brought into use until all of the
works have been completed in accordance with the approved details
shown on Drawing Number 4528-D-(--)-10-M (Site Layout).

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure compliance
with Policies LP15 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May
2014.

This is a pre-commencement condition because the off-site highway
works are required to make the development acceptable and in addition
to planning approval will require permission from the Highway Authority
under the Highways Act.

22.

The approved access and all hardstanding within the site shall be
constructed with adequate drainage measures to prevent surface water
run-off onto the adjacent public highway and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To prevent surface water discharging to the highway in
accordance with policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan, adopted May
2014

23.

If during development, contamination not previously identified, is found

Page 44




to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority (LPA)) shall be
carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written
approval from the LPA, a Method Statement detailing how this
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

Reason: To protect the amenities of future occupiers of the site in
accordance with Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

24.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
plans.

Page 45



F/YR23/0648/F
Scale = 1:2,500 A




Revisions -

Rev G - March 23 - Southern boundary extended, notes

Dimensions shown are to be verified by site measure

PARSONS PLACE

Om

27deg from North

amended,self build plots added
Rev H - March 23 - Green area adjusted

Rev J - July 23 - Site section positions shown, roof plot 7 amended

notes on boundaries added

Rev K - Jan 24 - Road access width and turning area changed,
plots 8-11 adjusted, car parking/turning plots 1-2&17-20 altered
Rev L - Feb 24 - car parking space dimensions added, bin spaces

added, plot 13 handed, etc.

Rev M - April 24 - Service strips, bin stores, FFL's levels added

ments

Project

PARSONS PLACE
COATES ROAD, COATES

The Churchill

The Hornsby

garden

Plot 1
The
Yorke

inexisting hedge
dary with hedging
w7
,//

Plot 16
The Fulton

=

\

Z

Z\

W

Z

B

retain and infill existing
boundary hedge with
hedging to match

and add trees on
boundary

40m 60m

SCALE BAR

SITE PLAN

Site Area = 1.18h

>

Infill existing hedge

Self build

Self build

\\\\

Title . .
with hedging to match
SITE . and add trees on
1| AYOLIT Serial number: 137067 hatindan,
Peterborough PEGOBN . . 7
© Crown copyright and database right 2018
Ordnance Survey licence 100048957

Y Scale Date TobNo Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited
é‘;’ 1:500 | June 22 4528 without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey
(] Category CiSfb Element | Sequential No | Revisions
N -- 10 M
a D | )

2

=

.

2

\

=

The Yorke

Self build

\
W

\

N

>

3\

Q

3\

\x

W

\u

\

A\

4 beéi
retain existing hedge
Qn boundary

" “\ trees on boundary

new hedge and
trees on boundary

Lily
Plot 12

ghicular
v, a AYAY)
turning area

530300

Minuet
Stable

The Paddocks

A new hedge and Q

~ Whitecross Field

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2015. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

F/YR25/0238/0
Applicant: Mr Fred Simpson Agent : Swann Edwards
F J S Services Swann Edwards Architecture Limited

North West Of Cherrytree House, Fallow Corner Drove, Manea,

Erect up to 6no dwellings (outline application with all matters reserved) involving
the demolition of existing buildings

Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Parish Council comments contrary to Officer
recommendation

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. The proposal seeks outline planning permission with all matters reserved for the
erection of 6no. dwellings following the demolition of existing buildings on site.

1.2. The proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of the broad principle of
development, amenity impact, highway safety impact, and biodiversity impact, in
accordance with local and national planning policy.

1.3. However, the backland form of development that would arise from the re-
development of the site, along with the density of development, would be at
odds with the prevailing pattern of development on the northern side of Fallow
Corner Drove, resulting in landscape and character harm contrary to Policies
LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

1.4. Further to this, the proposal is considered to be unacceptable in flood risk terms
by virtue of the site predominantly falling with Flood Zone 3 and failing to satisfy
the sequential and exception test, contrary to Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local
Plan (2014) and Chapter 14 of the NPPF (2024).

1.5. The proposal is therefore considered to be unacceptable in planning terms and it
is accordingly recommended that planning permission is refused in this instance.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1. The application site is located on land North West of Cherrytree House, Fallow
Corner Drove in Manea. The site is currently occupied by a company known as
‘FJS Services’, who provide agricultural engineering services.

2.2. The front of the site is covered in hardstanding with various items of agricultural

machinery stationed on it. To the rear of the site is a large barn with a further area
of hardstanding to the rear.

Page 49



2.3. The site is adjoined on both sides by residential development. The site falls
predominantly within Flood Zones 2 & 3 and is at very low risk of surface water
flooding.

3 PROPOSAL

3.1. The application seeks outline planning permission with all matters reserved for the
erection of 6no. dwellings following the demolition of existing buildings on site.

3.2. The application is supported by an indicative site layout plan showing a tandem
form of backland development served by a spine road off the existing access point,
with two plots fronting onto Fallow Corner Drove.

3.3. Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:

https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

4  SITE PLANNING HISTORY

F/YR12/0879/F | Change of use of building from general purpose Granted
agricultural to agricultural engineering (B2) 25.01.13

5 CONSULTATIONS

5.1. Manea Parish Council — 29.04.25
No Objection
5.2. FDC Ecology — 03.04.2025

| would raise no objections to the above application on Ecology grounds —

The application site does not support any semi-natural habitat, and has only very
low potential to support any notable species.

Although the Ouse Washes is within 1.5km of the site, the nature and scale of
development planned will not affect the special nature conservation interest of the
Washes.

The development proposal will involve the creation of new areas of greenspace,
including gardens, tree planting and a pond, and therefore could achieve an overall
enhancement in local biodiversity.

| would advise that, if permission is to be granted to the application,

A Construction Environmental Method Statement should be required to be
prepared, giving details of how any water pollution is to be avoided during the
course of any development (there is a drain immediately to the north of the site).

A tree protection method statement should be required to be prepared, to ensure
that trees adjacent to the site are suitably protected during the course of any
Works.

5.3. CCC Highways — 04.04.2025

Page 50


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

On the basis of the information submitted, from the perspective of the Local
Highway Authority, | consider the proposed development is acceptable.

This application is for an “All Matters Reserved” approval. Therefore my comments
are based on the principal of the development and not the shown arrangement.
The development site benefit from an existing access with the highway that has
good visibility in either direction. Any access to this number of dwellings should be
a minimum of 5m in width.

Environmental Health — 06.04.2025

Although | can find no indication of an industrial legacy, with the consequential
potential for contaminated land, the current use as agricultural engineers and
machinery yard does raise the issue of potential contamination and its effect on the
intended end user warrants consideration. Therefore, in the interests of protecting
those who will reside at the property should prior approval be granted, this service
recommends that the full contaminated land condition is imposed

Environment Agency — 22.04.2025

We have no objection to the proposed development, but strongly recommend that
the mitigation measures proposed in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA)
prepared by Ellingham Consulting Ltd, dated August 2024, are adhered to.

Local Residents/Interested Parties

No letters of representation were received on the application.

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014) the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local Plan
(2021).

POLICY FRAMEWORK - please delete as appropriate

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 6 — Building a strong, competitive economy

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

National Design Guide 2021

Page 51



Context

Identity

Built Form
Movement

Uses

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 — Meeting Housing Need

LP6— Employment, Tourism, Community Facilites and Retail

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP19 — The Natural Environment

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014
DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2016

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

LP13: Custom and Self Build

LP18: Development in the Countryside

LP22: Parking Provision

LP24: Natural Environment

LP25: Biodiversity Net Gain

LP27: Trees and Planting

LP28: Landscape

LP32: Flood and Water Management

LP33: Development on Land Affected by Contamination

KEY ISSUES

Page 52



9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

Principle of Development

Character and appearance

Impact on amenities

Flood Risk and Drainage

Parking Provision and Highway Safety
Biodiversity Impact

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan sets out the settlement hierarchy for
development within the district, grouping settlements into categories based on the
level of services available, their sustainability and their capacity to accept further
development. In this policy, Manea is classed as a Growth Village, where
development and new service provision either within the existing urban area or as
small village extensions where appropriate. The site is considered to fall within the
built-up settlement of Manea. The broad principle of the re-development of this site
for residential purposes is therefore considered to be in accordance with Policy
LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan.

The proposal will result in the loss of Employment Land, and therefore Policy LP6
of the Fenland Local Plan is relevant to the principle of development in this
instance.

The policy seeks to retain premises currently or last used for B1/B2/B8 purposes,
unless it can be demonstrated through a marketing exercise that there is no
reasonable prospect for the site being used for these purposes.

The submission detail is silent on this matter, with no information provided to
demonstrate that the site is no longer viable for employment development. Whilst it
has not been demonstrated that this policy has been complied with, it is noted that
the development in the surrounding area is largely residential in nature. Further,
the site is not considered to be in a high-quality location for employment
development given that it is on the edge of the settlement.

Therefore, whilst the development would result in the loss of employment land and
fails to satisfy the requirements of Policy LP6, it is considered that this would be
difficult to substantiate as a reason for refusal in this instance especially given the
support for the re-development of brownfield sites in paragraphs 124 & 125 of the
NPPF (2024).

Character and Appearance

Policy LP12 (Part A) supports development in villages subject compliance with 11
criteria (a to k), providing the site is in or adjacent to the existing developed
footprint of the village, does not result in coalescence with any neighbouring
village, and does not have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of
the surrounding countryside. Similarly, the proposal must be in keeping with the
core shape and form of the settlement, without resulting in the extension of linear
features or create ribbon development, and must retain natural boundaries, respect
ecological features, important spaces etc. Finally, the proposal must be served by
sustainable infrastructure and must not put people in danger from identified risks.

Page 53



9.7. In addition, Policy LP16(d) seeks to ensure that development makes a positive
contribution to the distinctiveness and character of the area, enhances its local
setting, reinforces local identity and does not adversely impact, either in design or
scale terms, on the streetscene, settlement pattern or landscape character of the
surrounding area.

9.8. The proposal seeks outline planning permission for the erection of 6 dwellings on
land currently occupied by an agricultural engineering business — a site that
extends north, away from the public highway. Whilst the indicative site layout plan
identifies two dwellings fronting onto Fallow Corner Drove, 4no. dwellings are
shown as ‘backland’ development. By virtue of its backland nature, the proposed
development would be discordant with the existing core shape and linear built form
of development that is present on the northern side of Fallow Corner Drove. It is
further considered that the proposal is at odds with the prevailing character of
Fallow Corner Drove in the vicinity of the site, which is characterised by dwellings
set back from the public highway and in large plots. This conflict is further
highlighted by Plots 1 & 2 shown to be located immediately adjacent the highway —
a type of development completely at odds with the surrounding area.

9.9. Consideration is also given to a recent refusal under F/YR25/0124/PIP to the west,
along Fallow Drove Corner. The circumstances of the site were similar in as much
as the site extended away from the highway and would constitute backland
development, contrary to the existing core shape of development in the locality. It
is considered that the conclusions made in respect of this application, particularly
given its relative close proximity to the current application site, would also apply to
the current application with the same harm arising in terms of conflict with the
existing core shape of development and character harm arising from the proposals.

9.10.1t is not considered that the brownfield nature of the site, and the support afforded
to re-development of such sites within the NPPF, is sufficient to outweigh the
character harm that would arise from the development of the site.

9.11. The indicative site layout plan identifies small plot sizes in relative terms to the
plots seen in the surrounding area. It is therefore also considered that the density
of development would appear cramped and at odds with the general density of
development along Fallow Corner Drove, where dwellings generally benefit from
generous plot sizes.

9.12.1t is therefore considered that the proposal would inherently result in landscape
character harm, and a form of development contrary to the prevailing pattern of
development in the locality in terms of layout and density, contrary to Policies LP12
and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

9.13.1t is noted that the adjacent site to the east was granted Permission in Principle for
up to 5no. dwellings under reference number F/YR23/0939/PIP. However, no
application for technical details consent has yet to be made. As such, it is
considered that the PIP approval would carry limited weight in the determination of
this application in terms of the character and appearance impact of backland
development.

Amenity Impact

9.14. The submitted indicative site layout plan identifies that the site would be capable of
accommodating the proposed development, whilst providing an adequate level of
private amenity space provision. It is considered that a suitably designed detailed
scheme could be provided at Reserved Matters stage that would avoid any undue

Page 54



impacts arising from overlooking or overbearing impacts in respect of the inter-
dwelling relationships both on-site and with existing dwellings off-site.

9.15.1t is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable in respect of its amenity
impact, having regard to Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

Flood Risk and Drainage

9.16. A large part of the site, including the frontage and site access, falls within Flood
Zones 2 & 3, and is therefore at a far higher risk of flooding. National and Local
Planning Policies set out strict tests to the approach to flood risk, aiming to locate
development in the first instance to areas at lowest risk of flooding (Flood Zone 1).
Policy LP14 requires applicants to demonstrate this through the application of the
sequential test. In order to justify the development in Flood Zone 3, the sequential
test would be expected to demonstrate that there are no reasonably available sites
in areas of lower flood risk that could accommodate the development.

9.17.The application is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment which states that the
sequential test is passed on the basis that the site is protected by the Middle Level
Barrier Bank, which it states was not considered in the preparation of the
Environment Agency Flood Maps. It concludes, on the basis of the “actual
probability of flooding and the footprint of the proposed dwellings being within
Flood Zone 17, that the sequential test is passed.

9.18. Whilst the Environment Agency have raised no objections to the proposal on Flood
Risk grounds, it is disagreed that the footprint of the proposed dwellings would be
in Flood Zone 1. Whilst no overlay of the flood zone has been provided with the
indicative site plan, it is considered extremely unlikely that a suitable detailed
scheme could be provided whereby the entirety of the built form would be located
in Flood Zone 1. Certainly, on the indicative site layout plan, the entirety of the built
footprint would appear to fall within Flood Zone 3.

9.19. A further Sequential & Exception Test document has been provided which explores
alternative sites that have had planning permission granted for residential
development. These have, however, been dismissed as unsuitable and
unavailable for the following reasons:

- Site located in Flood Zone 3

- Development already commenced
- Development for self-build plots

- Quantum of development too small

9.20. The report goes on to state that the exception test is passed by virtue of the site
currently comprising a high level of hardstanding that would be removed, resulting
in an improvement in the permeability and drainage capabilities of the site.

9.21.1t is considered that the sequential test submitted incorrectly discounts a number of
sites which would, individually and cumulatively be classed as reasonably available
and that consequently would be sequentially preferable. Therefore, the sequential
test is not considered to be passed in this instance.

9.22. With regards to the exception test this contains two elements which must both be
satisifed:

Page 55



a) Development to demonstrate that it achieves wider community sustainability
benefits having regard to the district’s sustainability objectives, and

b) That it can be made safe for its lifetime and will not increase flood risk
elsewhere (‘flood risk management’)

The FRA concludes that the overriding sustainability benefits are met through the
contribution of the development towards the housing target in Fenland. However, it
is not considered that the benefit of 6no. new dwellings would be sufficient to
outweigh the risk arising from flooding on the site, and indeed the SPD discounts
the provision of housing in itself as being a sustainability benefit. With regards to
the development being made safe from flooding this is considered to be
achievable, however would not render the exception test as being passed.

9.23. 1t is therefore considered that the application fails to satisfy the sequential and
exception test in respect of flood risk, and the proposal is therefore considered to
be contrary to Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) and Chapter 14 of the
NPPF (2024) in this regard.

Parking Provision and Highway Safety

9.24. The Highway Authority have considered that the proposal and have raised no
objection to the principle of development in terms of its impact on highway safety. It
is noted, however, that the access should be a minimum width of 5m, which could
be provided at Reserved Matters stage.

9.25. The indicative site layout provided identifies that the site is capable of providing
ample parking and turning provision on site for the dwellings proposed.

9.26. It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable in principle in terms of
parking provision and highway safety, and that a suitable detailed scheme can be
provided at Reserved Matters stage, in accordance with Policy LP15 of the
Fenland Local Plan (2014).

Biodiversity Impact

9.27.The Council Ecologist has considered the proposal and has raised no objections to
the scheme, subject to conditions in relation to the submission of a Construction
Environmental Method Statement and a Tree Protection Method Statement.

9.28.1t is not considered that the site as existing supports any semi-natural habitat and
has low potential to support notable species. Further, the re-development of the
site will result in an uplift in green space creation, thereby offering opportunities for
enhancements in terms of local biodiversity.

9.29.1t is therefore considered that the proposal satisfies the requirements of Policy
LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) in terms of its biodiversity impact.

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

9.30. The Environment Act 2021 requires development proposals to deliver a net gain in
biodiversity following a mitigation hierarchy which is focused on avoiding ecological
harm over minimising, rectifying, reducing and then off-setting. This approach
accords with Local Plan policies LP16 and LP19 which outlines a primary objective
for biodiversity to be conserved or enhanced and provides for the protection of
Protected Species, Priority Species and Priority Habitat.

Page 56



9.31. There are statutory exemptions, transitional arrangements and requirements
relating to irreplaceable habitat which mean that the biodiversity gain condition
does not always apply. In this instance, one or more of the exemptions /
transitional arrangements are considered to apply and a Biodiversity Gain
Condition is not required to be approved before development is begun because the
development is de-minimis for the purposes of BNG.

10 CONCLUSIONS

10.1. The proposal seeks outline planning permission with all matters reserved for the
erection of 6no. dwellings following the demolition of existing buildings on site.

10.2. The proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of the principle of
development, amenity impact, highway safety impact, and biodiversity impact, in
accordance with local and national planning policy and that the loss of the site for
employment would not be a sustainable reason for refusal.

10.3. However, the backland form of development that would arise from the re-
development of the site, along with the density of development, would be at odds
with the prevailing pattern of development on the northern side of Fallow Corner
Drove, resulting in landscape and character harm contrary to Policies LP12 and
LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

10.4. Further to this, the proposal is considered to be unacceptable in flood risk terms by
virtue of the site predominantly falling with Flood Zone 3 and failing to satisfy the
sequential and exception test, contrary to Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014) and Chapter 14 of the NPPF (2024).

10.5.In terms of the overall planning balance of the scheme, it is considered that there
would be economic and social benefits arising from the creation of 6no. dwellings,
however these would be relatively modest and therefore insufficient to outweigh
the aforementioned harm arising from the development. Also, it is recognised that
the re-use of brownfield land should be given weight. However, again, it is not
considered that this would outweigh the harm arising from the development.

10.6. Therefore, the proposal is therefore considered to be unacceptable in planning
terms, and it is accordingly recommended that planning permission is refused in
this instance.

11 RECOMMENDATION

Refuse; for the following reasons:

1. | Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) sets out the settlement
hierarchy within the district; Policy LP12 details a range of criteria

against which development within the villages will be assessed and Policy
LP16 seeks to ensure that proposed development responds to

and improves the character of the local built environment. The application
site proposes the construction of up to six dwellings located on land
extending north, away from Fallow Corner Drove, Manea. By virtue of its
backland nature, and introduction of development close to the frontage of
the public highway, the proposed development would be discordant with
the existing core shape and built form of the development along Fallow
Corner Drove to the detriment of the character and appearance of the area

Page 57



and would create a precedent for further backland development at sites
with similar geometry. Thus, the proposal would therefore fail to comply
with the requirements of Policy LP12 and Policy LP16 (d) of the Fenland
Local Plan (2014).

The site is located largely within Flood Zones 2 & 3 where there is a high
probability of flooding. Due to insufficient information, the application fails to
demonstrate that there are no alternative sites to accommodate the
development which are reasonably available and with a lower probability of
flooding. The proposal would therefore place people and property at an
increased risk of flooding without justification contrary to Policy LP14 of the
Fenland Local Plan (2014), Section 4 of the Cambridgeshire Flood & Water
Supplementary Planning Document (2016) and Chapter 14 of the National
Planning Policy Framework (2024).

Page 58



Biggins
House

— 7T .. 23m

The White
House

Witcham
Farm

CAMBRIDGESHIRE
© Crown Copyright and database - . B T »
rights 2025 Ordnance Survey 10023778 Scale = 1:1 ,250 Fenland District Council

Created on: 01/04/2025 FIYR25/0238/0 }N\ Fenland

Page 59



09 abed

General Notes

1. All dimensions are shown in 'mm' unless otherwise stated.

2.The contractor, sub-contractors and suppliers must verify all
dimensions on site prior to the commencement of any work.

3.This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant engineers
and specialist sub-contractors drawings and specifications.

4.Any discrepancies are to be brought to the designers attention.

/ 2031 2015

' hardcore

- '1 979
4997

880
: B +1.900
2018 933 907 1.93
956 1949 A
g - 1.938
. 3 4
E 1.93
".035 1.936 o))
1.93 1.926
4 FE_Jem ey
1.926
2018 v .
I

4931,

/ 4934
‘,
/ 1959
$
o
g

155

Water
1}

.1.962 Oak Hill Hou|

Biggins House

concrete I
' The White House

The Old Risi
Boliards
Farmhouse

Witcham Farm
Cottage

23,
EAA

a>
23 3
% ¥ 23,

*

23y,
35

82 TVOEC

+
0f

hardcore E : \
TN

oy

o . 0 15 50 0 5 10 15 20 0 25 50 75 100
Existina Site PI Indicative Proposed Site Plan [ I — — Location Plan e I m—
xisting Site Plan 5 N I Sealor 1500 Soalor 12500
Scale: 1:500 o metres o metres
s metres

Indicates position of Indicates proposed grass areas Indicates proposed tarmac B Indicates surveyed trees / ] Indicates features to be

un-surveyed buildings taken private access road hedging B . demolished

from OS maps : ! Status

Proposed dwellings Indicates proposed hard Indicates proposed pond Indicates site levels taken Indicates existing 1.8m high

surfacing on driveways J-005 from datum / timber panel fence
1.840
134‘4 A
Indicates position of surveyed Indicates proposed paving Indicates proposed trees / Indicates site access Indicates proposed 1.8m high
buildings on site hedging / \ timber panel fence
~
; \ ~
/
/

A°AR CH I TEOGCTUR E

Swann Edwards Architecture Limited, Black Barn, Fen Road,
Guyhirn, Wisbech, Cambs. PE13 4AA
t 01945 450694 e info@swannedwards.co.uk w www.swannedwards.co.uk

. . Job Title Date Drawn by
Proposed Residential Development BR
Land at Fallow Corner Drove, Sep

Manea, PE15 OLT 2024 Checked by

For: Mr F Simpson G
. Drawing Title T 500" N, Sheet Size

Planning Drawing SE-2144 AT

Dwg No. Revision

PP1000

Swann Edwards Architecture Limited ©



Agenda Item 7

F/YR25/0206/F

Applicant: Mr M Graham Agent : Mr Rory Canham

Peter Humphrey Associates Ltd

Land West Of Cross Road, Knights End Road, March, Cambridgeshire

Erect 1x self-build/custom build dwelling and detached garage

Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer
recommendation

1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1The application seeks permission to build a four-bedroom self-build home and
detached garage on land off Knights End Road, March. The site is currently used
as paddocks and stables, with an access already in place.

1.2The site lies within open countryside, in Flood Zone 3, outside the built-up area of
March. It is classified as being in an ‘Elsewhere’ location under local policy, where
development is tightly restricted.

1.3The location is not supported for new residential development under local and
national policy unless essential to rural activities. The information provided for on-
site accommodation (linked to animal welfare and security) is considered
insufficient.

1.4 There are no concerns in terms of the design of the house in isolation. However,
the construction of a dwelling and introduction of residential paraphernalia in this
location is considered to undermine the rural character of the area by introducing
domestic features into open countryside.

1.5The site lies in a high flood risk area (Zone 3). The sequential test was not
adequately satisfied, and there is insufficient evidence that the development
provides wider sustainability benefits to pass the required Exception Test.

1.6 The proposal includes sufficient parking and safe access. No objections were
raised on these grounds. Similarly, no adverse impact is expected on neighbouring
properties, and ample private amenity space is proposed.

1.7 The proposal conflicts with key planning policies due to its unsustainable location,
landscape harm, flood risk, and insufficient ecological evidence. The limited
benefits do not outweigh these harms

1.8 The application is subsequently recommended for refusal.

2

SITE DESCRIPTION

Page 61



2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4

The application site sits to the northern side of Knights End Road, March, to the
west of the A141, in proximity to Cross Drove, and currently consists of open
paddocks, with some hardstanding, directly to the north of the site as outlined in
red are stables, with further agricultural buildings along the eastern boundary.

The site benefits from an existing access off Knights End Road, to serve the
existing stables and paddock area, alongside entrance gates. The surrounding
area predominately consists of open countryside and agricultural land with
associated agricultural buildings. To the eastern end of Knights End Road are
commercial uses and the Crematorium.

The site sits within Flood Zone 3.

PROPOSAL

Planning permission is sought for the construction of a four-bedroom, self-build
dwelling which would have a maximum height of 8.5 metres with an eaves height
of 5.55 metres, a maximum width of 14.65 metres (including the single storey
mono-pitched roof section to eastern side elevation) and a maximum depth of
12.25 metres. The dwelling would benefit from a central gable feature to the front
elevation, with a larger gable projection to the rear.

The proposal also includes the construction of a detached garage to the east of the
proposed dwelling. This would have a maximum height of 4.65 metres with an
eaves height of 2.8 metres, a width of 5.55 metres and a depth of 5.55 metres.

These would have a brick finish (Vandersanden Flemish Antique) with slate effect
solar roof tiles in grey and timber joinery. (as per the application form and Plan
7078/04C)

The proposal would utilise the existing access to the site and would create a new
entrance point to the western side of this to serve the proposed dwelling, a gravel
drive would be provided with three vehicular parking spaces. Other works include
the planting of native hedging to the sites southern, western and northern
boundaries with new post and rail timber fence to the northern and western
boundaries. A bin store will be provided adjacent to the proposed garage.

It is advised within the supporting Design and Access Statement by Peter
Humphrey Associates that the dwelling is required to allow for the family to live on
site and assist with the daily running of their paddocks and stable blocks.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:

https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision

F/YRO08/0554/F | Change of use of land to paddocks Approved

involving erection of a stable block 19 August 2008
comprising of 4 stables, hay store,
formation of poultry and fruit cages, and

Page 62


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

| raised planting beds

5

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

CONSULTATIONS
March Town Council
Recommend Approval
Environment Agency

No objection on flood risk grounds — the site is at low risk of flooding in respect of
tidal and main river flood sources. Main source of flood risk is associated with
watercourses under jurisdiction of IDB.

A number of recommendations and advice are offered to the Applicant.
CCC Highways

The proposed development is acceptable. Note the inclusion of a gravel
driveway, the vehicular access should not be gravelled for 5m from the existing
carriageway

FDC Environmental Health
No objections
Local Residents/Interested Parties

Six letters of support have been received from residents on The Avenue,
Whittlesey Road, Knights End Road, Wisbech Road, Burrowmoor Road and
Wimblington Road, March these are summarised below:

- Enhancements to site since applicants took it on with tree and hedge planting
and associated ecological and environmental benefits.

- Primary objective is to allow the owners of the land to live on land they own
whilst providing dedicated care for the animals under their ownership,
implementing environmental improvements and providing security.

- Installation of bee boxes and bird boxes / biodiversity and ecological
enhancements

- The proposed dwelling is of a suitable design and scale for this plot.

- The proposed dwelling would not result in a loss of privacy to neighbouring
properties.

- The property would not detract from the countryside; views will be across the
open countryside as is for the two neighbouring properties.

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014) the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local Plan
(2021) and the March Neighbourhood Plan (2017).

Page 63



POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
of minerals

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

National Design Guide 2021
Context

Identity

Built Form

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 — Meeting Housing Need

LP9 — March

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP19 — The Natural Environment

March Neighbourhood Plan 2017
H2 —  Windfall Development
H3 — Local Housing Need

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014

DM2 — Natural Features and Landscaping Schemes

DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

Page 64



9.1

9.2

9.3

LP1:  Settlement Hierarchy

P2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP7: Design

LP8: Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

LP13: Custom and Self Build

LP18: Development in the Countryside
LP20: Accessibility and Transport
LP22: Parking Provision

LP24: Natural Environment

LP25: Biodiversity Net Gain

LP28: Landscape

LP32: Flood and Water Management
LP39: Site allocations for March

KEY ISSUES

. Principle of Development

o Design and Impact on Character and Appearance of the Site and
Surrounding Area

. Ecology

° Flood Risk

ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

Policy LP1 overarching policy supporting a presumption in favour of sustainable
development, planning applications that accord with the policies within the LDP will
be approved without delay unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) sets out the settlement hierarchy
within the District, setting out the scale of development appropriate to each level of
the hierarchy. Furthermore, Policy LP9 confirms that March is a focus for housing,
employment and retail growth. The application site is located to the west of the
March bypass, beyond the built up parts of the settlement. For planning policy
purposes this is defined as an ‘Elsewhere’ location. This stance is supported in
Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan.

Policy LP5 sets out the housing targets for the District and the Council has
undertaken a full assessment of the Five Year Housing Land Supply in the District
and has concluded that the Council is able to demonstrate a supply of specific
deliverable sites sufficient to provide for more than Five Years’ worth of housing
against the Council’s identified requirements. This is material consideration and
means that any application for new development must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Similarly, Policy H3 of the March Local Plan requires all housing
proposals to contribute towards meeting local housing need, which includes starter
homes, family homes, executive homes and self-build homes; and mixed tenure
that will result in a diverse community, where this is reasonably achievable.

Policy LP3 advises that development will be restricted to that which is

demonstrably essential to the effective operation of local agriculture, horticulture,
forestry, outdoor recreation, transport or utility services and to minerals or waste
development. It is noted within the supporting Design and Access Statement that

Page 65



9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

some justification has been provided to demonstrate the proposed need for the
development, namely, to improve the safety of the site following multiple incidents
of burglary, theft and robbery over the last 5 years and animal care and welfare.

Whilst these points are noted, the application is not supported by any further
evidence in regard to the specific welfare and care needs of the animals on site
and therefore, it is considered insufficient information has been provided to
demonstrate the need for accommodation on site in this respect. Furthermore, in
regard to the security of the site, whilst the provision of a dwelling and occupants
on site would deter any anti-social behaviour, this in isolation is not considered to
overcome the resultant harm from the provision of a dwelling in an ‘Elsewhere’
location

Paragraph 83 of the NPPF states that in order “to promote sustainable
development in rural areas, housing should be located where it will enhance or
maintain the vitality of rural communities”.

The proposed dwelling would be located approximately 2 kilometres (as the crow
flies) from the facilities offered within the built up area of March, which can be
accessed via Cross Road and Burrowmoor Road or Isle of Ely Way, Knights End
Road and the B1101. However, neither Cross Road, Burrowmoor Road or Knights
End Road benefit from formalised footpaths or lighting, and therefore, does not
promote pedestrian access, especially, in inclement weather. The closest bus stop
to the site sits within March which offers regular services to surrounding amenities
and services however, as assessed above, this is not accessible by foot or
sustainable means of transport. It is considered that the site’s Elsewhere location
would result in an unacceptable form of residential development, contrary to the
above mentioned policies.

Taking into account the above assessment, it is not considered that the principle of
providing a dwelling, in this location is accepted. The proposal would be contrary to
policies LP1 and LP3 of the Fenland Local Development Plan and Policies H2 and
H3 of the March Neighbourhood plan. Other material considerations are discussed
below.

Self-Build and Custom Housing

Policy LP5 of the Local Plan also seeks to ensure that housing solutions are
provided which meet market expectations, this included self-build homes. This
stance is reflected by Policy H3 of the March Neighbourhood Plan. Under section
1 of the Self Build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015, local authorities are
required to keep a register of those seeking to acquire serviced plots in the area
for their own self-build and custom house building. They are also subject to duties
under sections 2 and 2A of that Act to have regard to this and to give enough
suitable development permissions to meet the identified demand.

As set out in the Regulations, Part 1 of a register comprises those people and
organisations who meet all the eligibility criteria, including the local connection
test. Part 2 comprises those people and organisations who meet most, but not
necessarily all, the eligibility criteria. The Council has a duty to ‘give suitable
development permission in respect of enough serviced plots of land to meet the
demand for self-build and custom housebuilding in the authority’s area’ (i.e. to
meet the demand for the number of applicants on Part 1 of their register) within a
3 year period, post the end of the base period.

Page 66



9.10 The permissions granted demonstrate that the demand for self-build and custom
housing (as identified by the register) is comfortably being met in Fenland.
Therefore, no weight will be given to the delivery of self/ custom build housing at
this time.

Design and Impact on Character and Appearance of the Area

9.11 Policies LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, sets out a number of criteria
in which proposals are required to meet, to ensure that high quality environments
are provided and protected. Policy LP12 focuses on development in rural areas
with Policy LP16 focusing specifically on design criterion. This stance is also
supported by Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan

9.12 Further guidance is provided within the Delivering and Protecting High Quality
Developments SPD.

9.13 The proposed provision of a dwelling on the site, will result in the inherent
domestication of the site. Despite the presence of other agricultural, commercial
and limited residential development to the eastern end of Knights End Road and
Cross Road, the site is considered to be open and rural in nature, representing
the visual transition to open countryside as you travel westward along Knights
End Road, this is a major contributing factor to the overall character of the area.
Policy LP12 (d) requires development to be in keeping with the core shape and
form of the settlement. The provision of a dwelling would erode this openness, to
the detriment of the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area.

9.14 It should be noted that there are no objections to the design, scale and form of
the proposed dwelling in itself. However, for the above reason, it is not
considered that the proposal would be characteristic of the area by way of the
inherent domestication of open countryside and it is therefore considered that the
proposal would be contrary to policy LP16 of the LDP and H2 of the March
Neighbourhood Plan.

Residential Amenity

9.15 Policy LP2 of the Fenland Local Plan seeks to promote high levels of residential
amenity. Similarly, Policy LP16 requires development proposals to not adversely
impact on the amenity of neighbouring users such as noise, light pollution, loss of
privacy and loss of light.

9.16 Given the spacious nature of the site, the closest neighbouring properties sit over
150 metres to the east of the site. It is therefore considered that the proposal
would not have a detrimental impact on neighbouring occupiers amenity.

9.17 Similarly, given the spacious nature of the site, the proposed dwelling would
benefit from a spacious high-quality, usable amenity space in excess of the
standard required by Policy LP16 of the LDP. Therefore, there are no objections
to the proposal on these grounds.

Landscaping and Ecology
9.18 Policy LP16 requires all development to contribute to high quality environments;

in respect of landscaping criterion ¢) and d) requires proposals to retain and
incorporate nature and historic features of the site, such as trees, hedgerow and

Page 67



field patterns, to retain and preserve landscape character and settlement pattern
of the surrounding area.

9.19 From the plans provided, all existing hedges on site are to be retained, with
supplementary soft planting and landscaping proposed, as to mitigate the impact
of the proposed new rear boundaries will be 1.8m high close boarded timber
fence, with a range of native tree plantings to front, side & rear of site. Whilst the
supplementary planting is a welcomed enhancement, and would mitigate some
impacts of the proposal, in terms of reducing the visual impact of the residential
paraphernalia to be constructed as part of the proposal, this alone is not
considered to overcome, the identified harm of the proposal identified above.

9.20 Policy LP12 (g) requires development proposals to ensure that the site retains
and respects ecological, heritage and biodiversity features. Furthermore, policy
LP19 requires development proposals to conserve, enhance and promote the
biodiversity and geological interest of the natural environment throughout
Fenland. The Biodiversity Checklist has been completed and submitted in
support of this application, which does not raise any concerns in terms of
presence of protected species or priority habitat.

9.21 ltis noted that representations have been received which reference the
installation of bat boxes and other ecology enhancements to the site. However,
no reference to this is made within the supporting documentation and plans and
therefore, does not form part of the proposal.

Parking, Access and Highway Safety

9.22 Policy LP15 requires all new development proposals to contribute to the delivery
of the sustainable transport network by providing well designed, safe, convenient
access for all. Development proposals should provide well designed car and
cycle parking appropriate to the amount of development proposed, ensuring
parking provision is provided in accordance with the standards. Appendix A sets
out that parking provision for two vehicles is required for three+ bedroom
dwelling. Appendix A also sets out that a garage can be counted as a parking
space provided the size of the garage exceeds 7.0m x 3.0m (internal
dimensions).

9.23 Sufficient space is provided to the front of the dwelling to accommodate adequate
parking provision for a minimum of two vehicles. Furthermore, the driveway area
is of a sufficient size to enable vehicles to manoeuvrer safely and therefore, enter
and exit the site in forward gear. It is noted that a garage is also proposed as part
of this application however, the internal dimensions fall short of the requirements
as outlined within Appendix A of the LDP and therefore, would not contribute to
usable parking provision on site, in policy terms. Notwithstanding this, there is no
objection to the proposal on highway and parking grounds. Furthermore,
Cambridgeshire County Council Highways have raised no objection to the
proposal on highways grounds, subject to conditions should the application be
approved.

Flood Risk
9.24 Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and paragraphs 170-182 of the National
Planning Policy Framework set out the approach to developing land in relation to

flood risk, with both documents steering development in the first instance towards
land at a lower risk of flooding. This is achieved by means of requiring

Page 68



9.25

9.26

9.27

9.28

9.29

9.30

development proposals to undertake a sequential test to determine if there is land
available for development at a lower risk of flooding than the application site and
only resorting to development in those higher flood risk areas if it can be
demonstrated that there are no reasonably available sites at a lower risk of
flooding. Similarly, Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan requires
residential development to be located in areas at lower risk of flooding.

Sequential testing has been undertaken by Ellingham Associates Ltd which
states that around the towns of March and Chatteris, given the location between
the River Nene and River Great Ouse lie in Flood Zone 3 and therefore,
opportunities for development at an alternative site with a lower flood risk are
limited.

This stance is considered to be insufficient, especially as the area to the east of
the site along Knights End Road and the A141 does not fall within Flood Zone 2
or 3 and therefore, is less susceptible to flooding than the application site. It is
therefore considered that more detailed testing could have been undertaken in
this respect as such, the application fails to satisfy the first key test for residential-
led development in areas liable to flooding.

Notwithstanding the above, the NPPF confirms that where it is not possible to
locate development in zones of lower flood risk, the Exception Test may be
applied. This test provides a framework for assessing whether development can
proceed safely, whilst recognising the wider sustainability needs of a community.

The Exception Test comprises two elements, both of which must be satisfied:

a) Development to demonstrate that it achieves wider community sustainability
benefits having regard to the district’'s sustainability objectives, and

b) That it can be made safe for its lifetime and will not increase flood risk
elsewhere (‘flood risk management’)

The first limb of the Exception Test requires that the development provides wider
sustainability benefits to the community that clearly outweigh the flood risk. The
second limb requires that the development will be safe for its lifetime, taking
account of the vulnerability of its users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere,
and where possible, reducing overall flood risk. Whilst it is ordinarily the
applicant’s responsibility to demonstrate compliance with both elements, the
Local Planning Authority must still make its own objective assessment of the
evidence and reach a reasoned conclusion on whether both parts of the test are
met

a) Wider community sustainability benefits

Given the proposal is to provide one dwelling, in an elsewhere location it is not
considered that the proposal achieves a wider community sustainability benefit,
as discussed in the previous sections of this report, the proposal would not
contribute to the Districts sustainability objectives and therefore, it is not
considered the proposal would satisfy this limb of the exceptions test.

b) That it can be made safe for its lifetime and will not increase flood risk
elsewhere (‘flood risk management’)

Page 69



9.31 Section 5 of the accompanying Flood Risk Assessment sets out flood mitigation
measure and the management of the residual risks, concludes that the proposed
development would be safe and not increase flood risk elsewhere with the
following mitigation proposed:

- The floor level of the dwelling is 0.3m above ground level with 0.3m of flood
resilient construction above finished floor level.

- The occupier of the dwelling should register to receive flood warnings.

- Surface water run-off is managed so that stormwater from the development
will not affect any adjoining properties or increase the flood risk elsewhere

9.32 Itis considered that subject to suitably worded conditions, the above would be
sufficient to ensure the development would not increase flood risk elsewhere and
would therefore, satisfy this limb of the exceptions test.

9.33 Notwithstanding the above, based on the information submitted, insufficient
information has been submitted to adequately satisfy the sequential test.
Furthermore, the Applicant has failed to demonstrate any further public benefit of
the proposal and has not satisfied part 1 of the exceptions test. Whilst the LPA
have been proactive and undertaken their own assessment in this respect and
found the proposal does satisfy part b, given the lack of information and clarity
surrounding the matter, it is not considered that the proposal satisfies both parts of
the exceptions test. Whilst it is noted that the Lead Local Flood Authority has
raised no objection to the proposal, the LPA has a duty to undertake their own
assessment in applying the sequential and exception test and it is deemed that the
proposed benefits of the scheme do not overcome the identified harm. The
proposal is therefore contrary to policy LP14 of the LDP, policy H2 of the March
Neighbourhood Plan and the guidance contained within the NPPF.

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

9.34 The Environment Act 2021 requires development proposals to deliver a net gain in
biodiversity following a mitigation hierarchy which is focused on avoiding ecological
harm over minimising, rectifying, reducing and then off-setting. This approach
accords with Local Plan policies LP16 and LP19 which outlines a primary objective
for biodiversity to be conserved or enhanced and provides for the protection of
Protected Species, Priority Species and Priority Habitat.

9.35 There are statutory exemptions, transitional arrangements and requirements
relating to irreplaceable habitat which mean that the biodiversity gain condition
does not always apply. In this instance, one or more of the exemptions /
transitional arrangements are considered to apply and a Biodiversity Gain
Condition is not required to be approved before development is begun because the
nature of the development being self / custom build is exempt from statutory net
gain.

Other Matters
Sustainability

9.36 It is advised within section 4.0 of the accompanying Design and Access Statement
that the proposed dwelling will feature high levels of thermal insulation, low air

tightness targets, renewable energy systems, and car charging facilities. Whilst this
would result in better living conditions and costs savings for future occupants of the

Page 70



proposed dwelling, this is considered to be of a limited benefit, that would not
outweigh other identified harm.

Waste Collection

9.37 Section 7.0 of the Design and Access Statement advises that bin collection has
been allocated at the entrance, for collection of waste by the local authority,
including recyclable waste in accordance with the local authority’s policy. T There
are no objections to this aspect of the proposal.

Drainage

9.38 Section 8.0 of the Design and Access Statement advises that Surface water from
the new dwelling will discharge to new soakaways in the rear garden, to be
designed as part of the building regulation application. Foul water will discharge to
a treatment plant located in the rear garden which will be connected to an existing
private drainage system. Further details of this could be secured via condition
should the application be approved, to ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere
in accordance with policy LP14 of the LDP.

Interested Party Comments

9.39 It is noted that a number of supporting comments have been received in relation to
the ecological enhancements and supplementary planting that has taken place on
site to date, whilst this is a positive enhancement to the site, this does not form a
material consideration in the determination of this planning application.

Planning Balance

9.40 In terms of sustainability the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states
that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of
sustainable development. Achieving sustainable development means that the
planning system has three overarching objective; economic, social and
environmental which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually
supportive ways (so that opportunities can be taken to secure net gains across
each of the different objectives)

9.41 This stance is supported by Local Plan Policy LP1. In respect of the first of these,
the current proposal would provide economic benefits, for example in respect of
employment during the construction phase, as well as support for existing and
future businesses, services, and facilities by introducing additional residents that
would make use of them and provide future spend in the local economy. However,
given this relates to the provision of a single self-build dwelling, this is considered
to be negligible.

9.42 In respect of the social objective, it is noted that a number of minor benefits would
be provided, including improving the security of the site and providing a house for
the Applicants to improve animal welfare, however, these benefits do not extend to
the wider community and therefore, this is not considered to weigh in favour of the
scheme.

9.43 Lastly, in terms of the environmental objective ,whilst the proposal would include
the potential for some enhancements and supplementary landscaping, alongside
increased measures in terms of thermal insulation, low air tightness targets,
renewable energy systems, and car charging facilities; the proposal would result in

Page 71



the inherent domestication of what, in policy terms is considered open countryside,
this is considered to result in a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of the site and surrounding area. Furthermore, given the ‘Elsewhere’
location of the site, it is considered that the future occupants of the dwelling, would
be dependent on private motor vehicle to access everyday services and facilities,
exacerbating the identified harm above. This is considered to heavily weigh against
the scheme, with the above mentioned benefits insufficient to overcome this harm.
It is therefore, considered that the proposal is contrary to policies LP2, LP3, LP14
and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan and Policies H2 and H3 of the March
Neighbourhood Plan and the NPPF.

10 CONCLUSIONS

10.1 Taking into account the above assessment, the proposed development does not
represent sustainable development and can therefore not be supported in
principle. Furthermore, the proposal, is considered to result in the inherent
domestication, of what in policy terms, is open countryside, resulting in detrimental
harm to the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area. Insufficient
information has been provided in order for the Local Authority to adequately
assess the impact of the proposal in terms of its ecological impact.

10.2 The application site is located entirely within Flood Zone 3 and fails to meet the
sequential test by virtue of alternative sites being available elsewhere in the district
to accommodate the development that are at lower risk of flooding. Furthermore,
the proposal fails to meet the first limb of the exceptions test, in that there is no
wider public sustainability from the proposal. The proposal is therefore considered
to be contrary to Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) and Chapter 14 of
the NPPF

11 RECOMMENDATION

Refuse, for the following reasons:

1. | The application site is located in an ‘Elsewhere’ location as identified in Policy LP3,
where development is restricted to that which is essential for agriculture, or other
uses requiring a rural location. The proposal is supported by insufficient justification
to demonstrate that there is an essential need for the development as required by
Policy LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) and Paragraph 84(a) of the NPPF
2024. The proposal would therefore result in unwarranted development in an
unsustainable rural location contrary to the aforementioned policies.

2. | The proposal, by virtue of the inherent domestication of an open site in a rural
location, would be harmful to the character of the open countryside, contrary to
Policies LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan.

3. | The application site is located within Flood Zone 3 and fails to fully satisfy the
sequential or exception test. It is considered that the proposal is at an
unacceptable risk of flooding without sufficient justification. The proposal is
therefore considered to be contrary to Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014) and Chapter 14 of the NPPF (2024).

Page 72



Page 73



N

Created on: 18/03/2025 FIYR25/0206/F N Fenland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE
© Crown Copyright and database - . Sl e
rights 2025 Ordnance Survey 10023778 Scale = 1 2,500 Fenland District Council

Page 74



0 5m 10m 15m

20m 25m

1:500

Existing native hedge to
site boundary retained

Paddock

Paddock

Existing native hedge to
site boundary retained

Paddock

Proposed native hedge
to site boundary

New Post & Rail timber
fence to Boundary

Proposed native hedge
to site boundary

Proposed native hedge
to site boundary

N SN

D ———

Container ~_

Chicken Coop(s)

Chicken Run

Paddock Yard

Stables

Muck

New Post & Rail timber
fence to Boundary ]

/

Rear Garden Ya rd

—)

12800

New
Entrance

Existing Access
retained

\ Existing Chicken Coops

Unaffected by proposals

proposals

Existing Stables & muck

/_ Unaffected by proposals

Existing yard unaffected by

/_ proposals

| —— Existing Timber post & Rail

fence unaffected by
proposals

Existing Timber post & Rail

/_ fence unaffected by

proposals

\ Existing Yard Unaffected by

KNIGHTS END ROAD

PROPOSED SITE BLOCK PLAN
SCALE 1:500

G/ abed

~

)

N

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

SCALE 1:200

i

i

A

12700

Patio

G =
I S—

L

Il

15950,

il

—————
————

L

Rear Garden

-

n

B
- Store

B - Amended ahead of formal planning submission (05.02.2025)
A - Roof plan updated, following client request. (14.01.2025)

REVISIONS

PETER HUMPHREY
ASSOCIATES

ADDRESS: 2 CHAPEL ROAD, WISBECH, CAMBS, PE13 1RG.

TELEPHONE: 01945 466966
E-MAIL: info@peterhumphrey.co.uk
WEB: www.peterhumphrey.co.uk

CLIENT

MR M GRAHAM

PROJECT

PROPOSED NEW SELF BUILD DWELLING

SITE

LAND AT KNIGHTS END ROAD
MARCH

CAMBS

PE15 0YR

DRAWING

PROPOSED SITE BLOCK PLAN

PAPER SIZE DATE

DEC 2024

JOB NO.

7078/003B A2

Notes:
This drawing is the permission of Peter Humphrey Associates Ltd. and may not be

reissued, loaned or copied in whole or part without written consent.

All dimensions shown on the drawing are in millimeters unless stated otherwise. If
the drawing is received electronically (PDF) it is the recipient's responsibility to
ensure it is printed to the correct paper size. All dimensions to be checked on site
prior to commencing work and any discrepancies to be highlighted immediately.

The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015:

Peter Humphrey Associates' form of appointment with the client confirms whether
the agent is appointed as 'Designer’ or 'Principal Designer' under these
regulations. Nevertheless, the design phase has been carried out with due
consideration for the safety during construction, occupation and maintenance of
the finished project. No extraordinary hazards or risks were identified outside of
the routine construction operations that would not already been apparent to a
competent contractor.



AutoCAD SHX Text
Patio

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Rear Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Gravel Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Bin  Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Existing Access retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Proposed native hedge to site boundary  

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Proposed native hedge to site boundary  

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Bin  collection  point 

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Existing Stables & muck Unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Existing Timber post & Rail fence unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
New  Entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Existing Timber post & Rail fence unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
New Post & Rail timber fence to Boundary 

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Existing native hedge to site boundary retained  

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Existing native hedge to site boundary retained  

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Existing Chicken Coops Unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Existing Yard Unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Existing yard unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
New Post & Rail timber fence to Boundary 

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Proposed native hedge to site boundary  

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
12700

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
13950

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
12800

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
4500

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Patio

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Rear Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Gravel Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Bin  Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
12700

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
13950

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
12800

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
4500


T
<}
Q
(¢
\l
(e}

Existing
Road

Site

A/

7N
X

Knights End
Road

7

Site Boundary o m m e

EXISTING SITE SECTION A/A
SCALE 1:200

Existing
Road

Front 1x Proposed

Garden self—build dwelling Rear Garden

Site Boundary e

7N
x

MAIN RIDGE +8.500
AV4

AN

MAIN EAVES +5.550
AV4

N/

’——] N

tables

Paddock

KNIGRTS END ROAD

—]
A

* SITE SECTION KEY
SCALE 1:1250

FLOOD RISK PREVENTION:-

Dwelling to be constructed in accordance with Ellingham Consulting
Flood Risk Assessment, which recommends that the finished floor level
of the new dwelling is set 0.3m above existing ground level.

The flood resilient measures at the dwelling will include:

—  Water and electricity meters to be located above predicted flood
10m level.

| | —  Position light switches , plugs, TV sockets etc to be between
L1l

450mm and 1200mm above floor level, and consumer units to

L.

Knights End

Bedroom 03 Bedroom 04

FF FFL+2.850
AV4

Road

7

Site Boundary o m m e

PROPOSED SITE SECTION A/A
SCALE 1:200

T
) En g

M Study Kitchen
PO

Side 1x Proposed

Garden self—build dwelling Garage

Proposed native hedge
to site boundary

:”////

Site Boundary s s m =

Existing Access

N/

N
7]

K 7

Side Garden
K X

MAIN RIDGE +8.500
AV4

T-----
1=
T =

MAIN EAVES +5.550
AV4

be mounted between 1350mm and 1450mm above floor level.
—  Provision of underfloor heating in joint less plastic pipes.

—  Provision of fittings that are not affected by flooding and easily
cleaned.

—  The occupiers of the building should also register with the
governments floodline warning direct system to ensure they
recieve up to date information regarding possibility of flooding.

A - Amended for validation comments (13.03.2025)
REVISIONS

. PETER HUMPHREY
ASSOCIATES

ADDRESS: 2 CHAPEL ROAD, WISBECH, CAMBS, PE13 1RG.

TELEPHONE: 01945 466966
E-MAIL: info@peterhumphrey.co.uk
WEB: www.peterhumphrey.co.uk

10m CLIENT

|....| MR M GRAHAM

PROJECT

PROPOSED NEW SELF BUILD DWELLING

SITE

LAND AT KNIGHTS END ROAD
MARCH

CAMBS

PE15 0YR

DRAWING

Existing native hedge to
site boundary retained

vy / sy, ———

PROPOSED STREET SCENE
SCALE 1:200

‘!
;

i E—
[]

i

== I
R

] | | E—
I~ ——

Site Boundary s m

p=>G0
IN
s S| =~

GARAGE EAVES +27550

SITE SECTION(S) & STREET SCENE(S)

JOB NO. PAPER SIZE DATE

Existing Access retained
(Unaffected)

_____________-_______+_____

7078/006A A2 DEC 2024

Notes:

///

Site Boundary —

This drawing is the permission of Peter Humphrey Associates Ltd. and may not be
reissued, loaned or copied in whole or part without written consent.

a

All dimensions shown on the drawing are in millimeters unless stated otherwise. If
the drawing is received electronically (PDF) it is the recipient's responsibility to
ensure it is printed to the correct paper size. All dimensions to be checked on site
prior to commencing work and any discrepancies to be highlighted immediately.

The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015:
Peter Humphrey Associates' form of appointment with the client confirms whether
the agent is appointed as 'Designer’ or 'Principal Designer' under these

10m regulations. Nevertheless, the design phase has been carried out with due

| | consideration for the safety during construction, occupation and maintenance of
L1l

the finished project. No extraordinary hazards or risks were identified outside of
the routine construction operations that would not already been apparent to a

competent contractor.



AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Site Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Site Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Knights End Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
Existing Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Site

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
Patio

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Rear Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Gravel Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Bin  Store

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Existing Access retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Proposed native hedge to site boundary  

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Proposed native hedge to site boundary  

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Bin  collection  point 

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Existing Stables & muck Unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Existing Timber post & Rail fence unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
New  Entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Existing Timber post & Rail fence unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
New Post & Rail timber fence to Boundary 

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Existing Yard Unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Existing yard unaffected by proposals

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
New Post & Rail timber fence to Boundary 

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
Proposed native hedge to site boundary  

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
12700

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
13950

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
12800

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
4500

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Site Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Site Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Existing Access retained (Unaffected)

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
1x Proposed  self-build dwelling

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Side  Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
MAIN EAVES

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
+5.550

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
GARAGE EAVES

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
+2.550

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Side Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
MAIN RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
+8.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
Existing native hedge to site boundary retained  

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
Existing Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
GF FFL +0.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
Site Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
Site Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
1x Proposed  self-build dwelling

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
Front Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
Rear Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Proposed native hedge to site boundary  

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Knights End Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
MAIN EAVES

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
+5.550

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
FF FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
+2.850

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
MAIN RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
+8.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
GF FFL

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
+0.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Existing Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Walls: Vandersanden Flemish Antique facing bricks. Roof : Smooth grey Slate effect Solar tiles Windows: Timber Joinery.  Main door: Timber Joinery. Rainwater goods: Black UPVC. Foul water = Discharge to treatment plant located in rear garden.  Surface water = Discharge to soakaways in rear garden.  Time scales = Both will be installed and operation before occupation.  Dwelling to be constructed in accordance with Ellingham Consulting Flood Risk Assessment, which recommends that the finished floor level of the new dwelling is set 0.3m above existing ground level.  The flood resilient measures at the dwelling will include: - Water and electricity meters to be located above predicted flood Water and electricity meters to be located above predicted flood level.  - Position light switches , plugs, TV sockets etc to be between Position light switches , plugs, TV sockets etc to be between 450mm and 1200mm above floor level, and consumer units to be mounted between 1350mm and 1450mm above floor level.  - Provision of underfloor heating in joint less plastic pipes. Provision of underfloor heating in joint less plastic pipes. - Provision of fittings that are not affected by flooding and easily Provision of fittings that are not affected by flooding and easily cleaned.  - The occupiers of the building should also register with the The occupiers of the building should also register with the governments floodline warning direct system to ensure they recieve up to date information regarding possibility of flooding.  


[

4350 [14'-4"]

O

12250 [40°'-2"]

3950 [12'-117]

2500 [8'-3"]

I I —
Slate effect solar roof
tiles in grey /“&
Timber joinery fascia e — 5
& bargeboard M ~
N g =
ﬁ , —
aiin sl . N
—— = El ¢ 8
| ¢ o
= ¢ &
Flat arch brick soldier TR . ¢ ©
””””””” S
Timber Joinery Windows/
Doors
stonework sub cill —
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE 1:100 SCALE 1:100
14650 [48'-1"]
4200 [13'-97] 3550 [11'=77] 2350 [7'-97] 1900 [6'-3"]
O b O
o——
6_ —
T Dinin
= 9 Sun Room
2
3
8— I I
— Kitchen 00O
é O O
(@) ngs
2 Utility
e T
< . .
< Living Room
2 - Coats
- Study WC
FFL +0.3m above FGL
e_

o— Hall

1

4200 [13'-9"] 2300 [7'-6"] 3850 [12'-8"]

3050 [10°-1"]

14650 [48'~1"]

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE 1:50

) ) abed

11200 [36'-10"]

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
SCALE 1:50

— —
—
— //\\ [
— ,/ \\\ o—
Slate effect solar roof
tiles in grey
A T ' =
- S EESr— 5
L} - I g} /
0 NRNN 3 ] i
N = s} ~N Vandersanden Flemish
—_ T o) —_ 1 . . .
o —| © o Antique facing brick
o A o
N ™~ N
TR ERRRERRRORID SRR RRCRRRCRRA .
—— T —— ] o
N
o Timber Joinery
Windows/Doors
[ ]
0000000000000, 000 A A A LIS L UL TL0000000000 A A A e A A A A R A e s e A
MATERIAL SCHEDULE:-
8500 [28'-0"]
Walls: Vandersanden Flemish Antique facing bricks.
Roof : Smooth grey Slate effect Solar tiles
Windows: Timber Joinery.
4200 [13’—9"] 3550 [1 1 ’—7"] Main door: Timber Joinery.
0 D Rainwater goods: Black UPVC.
DRAINGAGE:-
o— Foul water = Discharge to treatment plant located in rear garden.
~ Surface water = Discharge to soakaways in rear garden.
Y Time scales = Both will be installed and operation before occupation.
FLOOD RISK PREVENTION:-
Dwelling to be constructed in accordance with Ellingham Consulting
Flood Risk Assessment, which recommends that the finished floor level
E n S it e of the new dwelling is set 0.3m above existing ground level.
u — The flood resilient measures at the dwelling will include:
bl olo Bed room 02 - Water and electricity meters to be located above predicted flood
s d level.
%L — Position light switches , plugs, TV sockets etc to be between
— 450mm and 1200mm above floor level, and consumer units to
: - be mounted between 1350mm and 1450mm above floor level.
2 —  Provision of underfloor heating in joint less plastic pipes.
™ —  Provision of fittings that are not affected by flooding and easily
—  The occupiers of the building should also register with the
— governments floodline warning direct system to ensure they
recieve up to date information regarding possibility of flooding.
8 [ o
- B
AN —
2 "
&, -
~
3 =
& B
~— " ~
I Landing - { 5
:I_l B B &I~_|
~ msu =
| I
S ©
~
S Master Bedroom 01 —8 &
S o
0 S
~ @
=
g'_|
N
A
o
[Te]
n ©
~
-~
P Ensuite —
4200 [13'-9"] 2300 [7'-6"] 3850 [12'-8"]

C - Amended for validation comments (13.03.2025)

B - Amended ahead of formal planning submission (05.02.2025) CLIENT

A - Revised Layout following client feedback (15.01.2024)

REVISIONS MR M GRAHAM
JOB NO. PAPER SIZE DATE PROJECT

7078/04C A1 DEC 2024

PROPOSED NEW SELF BUILD DWELLING

Notes:
This drawing is the permission of Peter Humphrey Associates Ltd. and may not be
reissued, loaned or copied in whole or part without written consent.

All dimensions shown on the drawing are in millimeters unless stated otherwise. If
the drawing is received electronically (PDF) it is the recipient's responsibility to
ensure it is printed to the correct paper size. All dimensions to be checked on site
prior to commencing work and any discrepancies to be highlighted immediately.

The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015:

Peter Humphrey Associates' form of appointment with the client confirms whether
the agent is appointed as 'Designer' or 'Principal Designer' under these
regulations. Nevertheless, the design phase has been carried out with due
consideration for the safety during construction, occupation and maintenance of
the finished project. No extraordinary hazards or risks were identified outside of
the routine construction operations that would not already been apparent to a
competent contractor.

SITE

LAND AT KNIGHTS END ROAD
MARCH

CAMBS

PE15 0YR

DRAWING

PROPOSED PLANS & ELEVATIONS

PETER HUMPHREY
ASSOCIATES

ADDRESS: 2 CHAPEL ROAD, WISBECH, CAMBS, PE13 1RG.

TELEPHONE: 01945 466966
E-MAIL: info@peterhumphrey.co.uk
WEB: www.peterhumphrey.co.uk



AutoCAD SHX Text_91
stonework sub cill

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Timber joinery fascia  & bargeboard 

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
Flat arch brick soldier

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Slate effect solar roof tiles in grey

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Timber Joinery Windows/ Doors

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
5250 [17'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
8400 [27'-7"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
6950 [22'-11"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
14650 [48'-1"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
4200 [13'-9"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
3550 [11'-7"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
12250 [40'-2"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
7500 [24'-7"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
3950 [12'-11"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
2350 [7'-9"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
1900 [6'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
14650 [48'-1"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
4200 [13'-9"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
2300 [7'-6"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
3850 [12'-8"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
3050 [10'-1"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
12250 [40'-2"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
2500 [8'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
4350 [14'-4"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
3950 [12'-11"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
8500 [28'-0"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
4200 [13'-9"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
3550 [11'-7"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
12250 [40'-2"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
7500 [24'-7"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
3950 [12'-11"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
11200 [36'-10"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
4200 [13'-9"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
2300 [7'-6"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
3850 [12'-8"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
8200 [26'-10"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
3650 [11'-11"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
3750 [12'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
FFL +0.3m above FGL

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
6950 [22'-11"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
7200 [23'-8"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
2250 [7'-5"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
5200 [17'-1"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
8350 [27'-6"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Timber Joinery Windows/Doors

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
Slate effect solar roof tiles in grey

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Vandersanden Flemish Antique facing brick 

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
7200 [23'-8"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
Walls: Vandersanden Flemish Antique facing bricks. Roof : Smooth grey Slate effect Solar tiles Windows: Timber Joinery.  Main door: Timber Joinery. Rainwater goods: Black UPVC. Foul water = Discharge to treatment plant located in rear garden.  Surface water = Discharge to soakaways in rear garden.  Time scales = Both will be installed and operation before occupation.  Dwelling to be constructed in accordance with Ellingham Consulting Flood Risk Assessment, which recommends that the finished floor level of the new dwelling is set 0.3m above existing ground level.  The flood resilient measures at the dwelling will include: - Water and electricity meters to be located above predicted flood Water and electricity meters to be located above predicted flood level.  - Position light switches , plugs, TV sockets etc to be between Position light switches , plugs, TV sockets etc to be between 450mm and 1200mm above floor level, and consumer units to be mounted between 1350mm and 1450mm above floor level.  - Provision of underfloor heating in joint less plastic pipes. Provision of underfloor heating in joint less plastic pipes. - Provision of fittings that are not affected by flooding and easily Provision of fittings that are not affected by flooding and easily cleaned.  - The occupiers of the building should also register with the The occupiers of the building should also register with the governments floodline warning direct system to ensure they recieve up to date information regarding possibility of flooding.  


g/ abed

2800 [9'-3"]

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR

SCALE 1:50

5550 [18'-3"]

4650 [15'-3"]

2800 [9'-3"]

SCALE 1:100

5550 [18'-3"]

FFL 4+0.3m above FGL

Garage

4650 [15'-3"]

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

2800 [9'-3"]

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

4650 [15'-3"]

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
SCALE 1:50

2800 [9'-3"]

4650 [15'-3"]

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

A - Amended ahead of formal planning submission (05.02.2025)

REVISIONS

PETER HUMPHREY
ASSOCIATES

ADDRESS: 2 CHAPEL ROAD, WISBECH, CAMBS, PE13 1RG.

TELEPHONE: 01945 466966
E-MAIL: info@peterhumphrey.co.uk
WEB: www.peterhumphrey.co.uk

CLIENT

MR M GRAHAM

PROJECT

PROPOSED NEW SELF BUILD DWELLING

SITE

LAND AT KNIGHTS END ROAD
MARCH

CAMBS

PE15 0YR

DRAWING

PROPOSED GARAGE

JOB NO. PAPER SIZE DATE
7078/005A A2 DEC 2024
Notes:

This drawing is the permission of Peter Humphrey Associates Ltd. and may not be
reissued, loaned or copied in whole or part without written consent.

All dimensions shown on the drawing are in millimeters unless stated otherwise. If
the drawing is received electronically (PDF) it is the recipient's responsibility to
ensure it is printed to the correct paper size. All dimensions to be checked on site
prior to commencing work and any discrepancies to be highlighted immediately.

The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015:

Peter Humphrey Associates' form of appointment with the client confirms whether
the agent is appointed as 'Designer’ or 'Principal Designer' under these
regulations. Nevertheless, the design phase has been carried out with due
consideration for the safety during construction, occupation and maintenance of
the finished project. No extraordinary hazards or risks were identified outside of
the routine construction operations that would not already been apparent to a
competent contractor.



AutoCAD SHX Text_140
5550 [18'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
5550 [18'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
FFL +0.3m above FGL

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
2800 [9'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
4650 [15'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
2800 [9'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
2800 [9'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
4650 [15'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
2800 [9'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
4650 [15'-3"]

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
4650 [15'-3"]


Agenda Iltem 8

F/YR25/0251/PIP
Applicant: Mr M Joyce Agent: Mr J Scotcher
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd
Land South West Of Woodbury, Manea Road, Wimblington, Cambridgeshire
Permission in Principle for 5 x dwellings
Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer
recommendation

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application seeks Permission in Principle (PiP) for the development of up to
five dwellings on land to the east of the A141, outside the developed footprint of
Wimblington. The proposal follows the refusal of a previous application
(F/YR24/0590/PIP) for seven dwellings, reduced in this submission in an attempt to
address earlier concerns.

1.2 Under Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan, the site is considered to
be in an 'Elsewhere' location, where new housing is only supported if it is
demonstrably essential to a rural-based enterprise. No such justification has been
provided. The development would therefore be in direct conflict with the settlement
hierarchy and spatial strategy of the Local Plan.

1.3 While the number of proposed dwellings has been reduced, the site remains
visually and physically detached from the main settlement and would result in the
domestication of open countryside, with associated harm to rural character. The
proposal would introduce residential use into a location affected by both noise from
adjacent commercial uses and traffic on the A141, raising further concern about
residential amenity.

1.4 Although the density of development proposed is low and could be accommodated
physically on the site, this does not overcome the fundamental policy objections
regarding location and use. Other technical details, including highway safety, would
be addressed at the second stage (Technical Details Consent), though no
objections have been raised by the highways authority at this stage.

1.5 Therefore, the proposed development fails to comply with the Local Plan's spatial
strategy. The revised scheme does not overcome the reasons for refusal of the
previous application, and the site's location remains unsuitable for residential
development in principle.

1.6 Accordingly, this application is recommended for refusal.

Page 79



2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site is located outside of the settlement footprint of Wimblington.
The site is situated to the east of the A141 Isle of Ely Way and is therefore
divorced from the main residential area to the west of the highway. The site has a
dwelling named Woodbury at the northern boundary, with low level timber fencing
and trees along the frontage. This dwelling fronts Manea Road close to the junction
with the A141. Established lines of trees approximately 8 metres high are located
along the eastern and western boundaries. Trees and a field access are located
along the southern boundary. The Grade Il Listed St Peters Church is located 70
metres to the north-west of the site, adjacent to the western side of the A141.

There is a residential dwelling, known as ‘Limes’ opposite the site entrance.
Neighbouring the site to the east and to the northeast on the opposite side of
Manea Road are large commercial warehouse buildings. The site is located within
Flood Zone 1 (low risk).

The site is currently used for a dog grooming and kennelling business to the rear of
the dwelling, which was granted planning permission under reference
F/YR18/0087/F. There is also a family member living beyond the residential
curtilage on site in a static caravan which does not benefit from planning
permission. Additionally, the site is being used for the storage of work vehicles and
materials in connection with the applicant’s groundworks business. Planning
permission has not been granted for the storage of work vehicles and materials

PROPOSAL

A location plan, existing site plan and indicative site layout (although not a
requirement of a PiP application) at scales of 1:500 accompany this submission.
These indicate the removal of the existing buildings on the site and the provision of
five detached dwellings with associated parking and landscaping together with the
provision of an access road utilising the existing site access.

The current proposal is the first part of the Permission in Principle application; this
first stage’ establishes whether a site is suitable in principle only, and assesses
the ‘principle’ issues, namely; (1) Location (2) Use, and (3) Amount of development
proposed

Should this application be successful the applicant will have to submit a Technical
details application covering all the other detailed material planning considerations.
The approval of Permission in Principle does not constitute the grant of planning
permission.

The applicant is only required to submit a completed application form, a plan which
identifies the land to which the application relates (drawn to scale and with a north
point) and the application fee.

This application is a re-submission of a previously refused application
F/YR24/0590/PIP, which was refused for the following reason:

‘The application site constitutes an area of land located outside the developed
footprint of Wimblington. The development proposal will be in an 'elsewhere’
location contrary to Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). As
such any residential development on this site will be contrary to the above policy

Page 80



considerations and thus, in terms of location and use, the Planning in Principle
application fails.’

3.6 The amendments proposed as part of this scheme relate to the reduction in the
number of units to be provided from 7 to 5 and a minor alteration to the red line
boundary which now removes land from the northwestern corner and the host
dwelling known as Woodbury.

3.7 Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:

https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

4  SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision
F/YR24/0590/PIP Permission in Principle for | Refused
7 x dwellings 1 November 2024
FIYR22/1217/PIP Permission in Principle for | Application withdrawn 6th
up to 5 x dwellings, November 2023

involving the demolition of
existing buildings
F/YR18/0087/F Erection of 2 kennel Approved — 6th April 2018
blocks including outdoor
runs for a maximum of 20
dogs
FIYR17/1235/CERTP Certificate of Lawful Use | Permission required —
(Proposed): Siting of a 13th February 2018.
caravan ancillary to the
main dwelling
F/YR09/0205/F Change of use of Refused — 29th May 2009
outbuildings from
domestic workshops to
commercial workshops for
racing car manufacture,
repair & servicing

(retrospective)
F/YRO8/0891/F Change of use of Refused — 18th
outbuildings from November 2008.

domestic workshops to
commercial workshops for
racing car manufacture,
repair & servicing

(retrospective)
F/94/0843/F Construct vehicular Approved — 24th March
access 1995.

5 CONSULTATIONS
5.1 Wimblington Parish Council

Object to the proposal on the following grounds:
- High quality residential environmental design would be compromised

Page 81


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

- Congestion and high impacts on the junction
- Not meeting housing needs
- Outside the village Settlement area

5.2 CCC Highways

The proposed development is acceptable, subject to additional details at the
technical consent/future planning consent relating to design and layout of the site
access, details of future management and maintenance of the streets and a review
of street lighting requirements at the site access junction

5.3 FDC Environmental Health

No objection. However, should permission be granted a robust noise assessment
will be required at the Technical Details Stage

5.4 Local Residents/Interested Parties

Nine letters of support have been received from residents on Manea Road (x3),
Eastwood End, Blue Lane, King Street, Norfolk Street and Hospital Road,
Doddington these are summarised below:

- Will not create any additional highway impacts

- Good addition to the local area

- Retention of existing vegetation and screening is commendable

- Small-scale private projects are more suitable for the area than large corporate
house building schemes

- Certainly, a need for more local housing and this proposal is in line with the
growth of the area

- Efficient use of land

- Does not encroach on anyone and will not be visible to existing residents

- Larger building developments have been authorised in the Village

- The transport company is extending its current site

- Continuous growth of the area whereby sufficient infrastructure to cope

- Need to balance the space and tranquillity with encouraging local expenditure.

- Site is more than adequate with an immediate link to the village (including
school and village shop)

One letter of offering comments on the application have been received from a
resident on Morton Way this is summarised below:

- Buildings are going up along the bypass and Eastwood End — if the access is
safe this isn’t going to cause a problem
6 STATUTORY DUTY
6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan

for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014)

7 POLICY FRAMEWORK

Page 82



National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

of minerals

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Context Paragraph: 012 (Reference ID: 58-012-20180615). The scope of
permission in principle is limited to location, land use and amount of
development. Issues relevant to these ‘in principle’ matters should be considered
at the permission in principle stage. Other matters should be considered at the
technical details consent stage. In addition, local authorities cannot list the
information they require for applications for permission in principle in the same
way they can for applications for planning permission but can advise applicants
on the decision notice, where Permission in Principle is granted, what they would
expect to see at Technical Details stage.

National Design Guide 2021

Context

Identity

Built Form

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LPS — Meeting Housing Need

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP13 — Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District
LP19 — The Natural Environment

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in

Page 83



accordance with Paragraph 48 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry

extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP4: Securing Fenland’s Future

LP5: Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8: Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

LP18: Development in the Countryside
LP19: Strategic Infrastructure

LP20: Accessibility and Transport
LP22: Parking Provision

Wimblington and Stonea Neighbourhood Plan (Pre-Submission Draft
October 2024)

Wimblington & Stonea Parish Council has carried out a pre-submission
consultation on the draft plan, as required by Regulation 14 of the Neighbourhood
Planning (General) Regulations 2012. The draft plan has not yet been submitted
for examination. Given the very early stage which the draft plan is therefore at, it is
considered, in accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this

should carry very limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application
are policies:

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014

DM2 — Natural Features and Landscaping Schemes

DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

8 KEY ISSUES
o Location
o Use
o Amount

9 BACKGROUND

9.1 The proposal is an application for Permission in Principle to develop the site for up
to 5 dwellings. The Permission in Principle route has 2 stages: the first stage (or
Permission in Principle Stage) establishes whether the site is suitable in principle
and assesses the principle issues namely:

(1) Location
(2) Use, and
(3) Amount of development proposed

And the second (Technical Details Consent) stage is when the detailed

development proposals are addressed. Technical details consent would need to be
applied for should the application be granted.

Page 84



9.2 Evaluation of a PIP must be restricted to the issues highlighted above; even if
technical issues are apparent from the outset these can form no part of the
determination of Stage 1 of the process, Accordingly, some matters raised via
statutory bodies may not be addressed at this time.

9.3 ltis pertinent to note that this application is a re-submission of a previously refused
application F/YR24/0590/PIP, which was presented to Planning Committee on 30t
October 2024. The application was refused for the following reason:

‘The application site constitutes an area of land located outside the developed
footprint of Wimblington. The development proposal will be in an ‘elsewhere’
location contrary to Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). As
such any residential development on this site will be contrary to the above policy
considerations and thus, in terms of location and use, the Planning in Principle
application fails’

9.4 The amendments proposed as part of this scheme relate to the reduction in the
number of units to be provided from 7 to 5 and a minor alteration to the red line
boundary which now removes land from the northwestern corner and the host
dwelling known as Woodbury.

10 ASSESSMENT
Location

10.1 Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) identifies Wimblington as being a
‘Growth Village’'. For these settlements, development and new service provision
either within the existing urban area or as a small village extension will be
appropriate albeit of a considerably more limited scale than that appropriate to the
Market Towns.

10.2 Policy LP12 identifies that to receive support, the site must be in or adjacent to the
existing developed footprint of the village, defined as the continuous built form of
the village and excludes individual buildings and groups of dispersed, or
intermittent buildings, that are clearly detached from the continuous built-up area of
the settlement. The Local Plan does not rely on defined settlement boundaries but
rather requires a physical assessment to be made to determine whether or not a
site is within a village for the purposes of Policy LP12. This results in a situation
where a site could be considered in general terms to be part of the village but not
be in the village for the purposes of the spatial strategy.

10.3 Policy LP5 sets out the housing targets for the District and the Council has
undertaken a full assessment of the Five Year Housing Land Supply in the District
and has concluded that the Council is able to demonstrate a supply of specific
deliverable sites sufficient to provide for more than Five Years’ worth of housing
against the Council’s identified requirements . This is a material consideration and
means that any application for new development must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

10.4 It is apparent, that in the case of the application site, it is clearly detached from the
remainder of Wimblington by the major road of the A141 and thus outside the
continuous built form of the settlement. Adjacent development consists of only two
residential dwellings and commercial development, with areas to the east rural in

Page 85



nature. As such the proposal would constitute development in an ‘Elsewhere’
location as defined under LP3 which seeks to restrict that to essential rural based
development. The proposal is therefore in conflict with Policies LP3 and LP12.

10.5 It is noted that the services and facilities within the Village would be accessible by
utilising the footpath, and that a number of local residents have supported the
application on this basis. This is not considered sufficient to overcome the harm
identified by providing five residential units, in what is considered a countryside
location, whereby there is no demonstrable need.

10.6 Similarly, it is noted that the Agent has advised of other residential developments
having been approved at Eastwood End, which is also east of the A141. Each
application must be determined on its own merits. Notwithstanding this basic
principle, it is considered that the sites are materially different in that the character
of the area at Eastwood End features existing residential development and does
not benefit from larger commercial uses. Furthermore, these sites are set back
further within the main settlement, whereas the site the subject of this application is
within open countryside, which represents the visual transition into countryside as
travelling along the A141, whereby the eastern side of the road is relatively free
from residential development, when travelling in a southerly direction towards
Chatteris.

Use

10.7 The site is situated close to the edge of the settlement, however as stated above,
it will be contrary to Policy LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy and Policy
LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District.
The introduction of residential units and associated paraphernalia is considered
to erode the character and appearance of the open countryside. It is therefore
considered that the site is not acceptable to use for new dwellings.

10.8 In addition, whilst perhaps being a matter more appropriate for consideration at
Technical Consent stage, the location of the site between commercial activity and
the A141 does raise potential issues around noise and whether a high quality
residential environment would ultimately be created.

Amount of Development Proposed

10.9 The application seeks Permission in Principle for up to five dwellings on a site of
0.38ha which will equate to a density of approximately 14 dwellings per hectare.
This is low density and could comfortably be accommodated on-site without
being considered an overdevelopment of the site. However, the detailed layout
and design will be for consideration at the Technical details stage. In terms of
consideration of amount, the proposal is acceptable.

Matters Raised During Consultation

10.10 It should be noted that a number of supporting letters have commented noting
that the provision of five dwellings will not impact on highway safety or increase
congestion. These comments are noted, and this does form a material
consideration as part of this assessment, but as discussed above there are no
concerns, in respect of highway matters to the amount of development proposed.

Page 86



10.11 Itis also noted that the Parish Council have raised concerns in terms of
congestion and the associated Highways impact of the proposal, however,
Cambridgeshire County Highways have raised no concerns at this stage, with
any additional details being secured at the Technical Details or subject of a
subsequent application. Further given that the proposal relates to Five dwellings
this quantum of development, is unlikely to result in sufficient harm, to justify the
refusal of the application contrary to the Highway Authority’s recommendation.

11 CONCLUSIONS

11.1 As indicated above it is only location, use and amount of development that may
be considered at the first ‘permission in principle stage’ and it is considered that
the location and use of the site for residential development is unacceptable due
to the conflict with the settlement hierarchy of the Local Plan. The amendments
proposed to this scheme (reduction in the number of units to be provided) are not
considered to overcome the harm identified previously and therefore, the
application remains unacceptable in principle.

12 RECOMMENDATION

Refuse; Permission in Principle for the following reason:

1. The application site constitutes an area of land located outside the developed
footprint of Wimblington. The development proposal will be in an ‘elsewhere’
location contrary to Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). As
such any residential development on this site will be contrary to the above policy
considerations and thus, in terms of location and use, the Planning in Principle
application fails.

Page 87



St Peter's Church

I ____ -

4 -

’ Woodbury
[/
N

Created on: 02/04/2025 N

F/YR25/0251/PIP Fenland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

© Crown Copyright and database R
rights 2025 Ordnance Survey 10023778 Scale = 1:1,250 Fenland District Council

Page 88



Agenda Item 9

F/YR25/0328/F

Applicant: Mr John Clark Agent : Mr R Papworth
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd

108 High Street, March, Cambridgeshire, PE15 9LP

Erect 1 x self-build/custom build dwelling involving demolition of shed within a
Conservation Area

Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer
recommendation

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The application seeks full permission for the erection of one self-build/custom
build dwelling involving demolition of shed within a Conservation Area.

1.2 The proposed development would result in the subdivision of the existing curtilage
of No. 108, which forms the setting of the Grade |l Listed Building. The carving up
of the plot would introduce harm to this setting and to the Conservation Area,
exacerbated by the unsympathetic appearance of the proposed dwelling. The
application does not include clear or convincing justification to justify the harm
introduced, nor does the development provide any public benefit. The
development is therefore considered contrary to Policy H2 of the March
Neighbourhood Plan 2017, Policies LP16 and LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan and
Paragraphs 213 and 215 of the NPPF.

1.3 The proposed development would also utilise the existing access associated with
No. 108. The access drive itself is of limited width, as little as 2.9 metres at the
narrowest point. The increase in traffic proposed as a result of the application,
combined with the narrowness of the access road would result in an access drive
that fails to meet the requirements of Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan
2017 and Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

1.4 The Council can demonstrate that the number of permissions for self/custom
builds currently exceeds identified demand. The Council can also demonstrate an
excess of a five-year supply of available housing land. Very limited weight should
therefore be given to these factors when considering the planning balance.

1.5 As such, the application is recommended for refusal.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1 The application site is situated on the eastern side of High Street, within the
market town of March. The site is also situated within March Conservation Area.

Page 89



2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

5.1

5.2

The dwelling to the front of the site is a Grade Il Listed Building and adjacent
Grade Il and Grade II* Listed Buildings are situated to south of the application site.

The Maze (108 High Street) was listed on 16" December 1974. The dwelling on
site is a mid C18 and C19 2-storey, L shaped dwelling constructed of a narrow
gault brick.

To the rear of the dwelling is a long linear rear garden, with an existing

summer house situated adjacent to the northern boundary of the site. An existing
shed is situated adjacent to the southern boundary of the site. The rear garden of
the site is enclosed by a mixture of brick built walls and close boarded fencing.
There is an existing 14 metre high (approx) tree within the rear garden.

The application site is situated within Flood Zone 1.

PROPOSAL

This application seeks to erect one dwelling, including the demolition of the
existing shed.

The proposed dwelling would be a 3 bedroom, U-shaped dwelling. The dwelling
would have a width of 14.9 metres and a maximum depth of 16 metres. The roof
proposed would be dual-pitched with an eaves height of 2.6 metres and a ridge
height of 5 metres.

The materials proposed to the dwelling include a Traditional Brick and Stone
Cambourne Buff Brick, Photovoltaic Tiles/Slate Tiles, Cream uPVC joinery and
Black Cast Aluminium Gutters and Downpipes.

Access to the site would be via the existing access serving No. 108, with parking
and turning detailed on the proposed site plan. 2 parking spaces are also detailed
to the front of the proposed dwelling. Private amenity space would be situated to
the rear of the proposed dwelling.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision
24/0050/PREAPP Erect 1x dwelling Unfavourable
CONSULTATIONS

March Town Council
Recommendation: Approval.
CCC Highways

The highways authority objects to this application and would recommend refusal
for the following reasons:

Page 90



https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

* The existing vehicle access with the highway is not sufficiently wide enough to
allow two vehicles to pass simultaneously. The current accepted standard access
width by the highway authority is 5m for a min of 6m in to the curtilage of the
property. If approved vehicles will have to stop and manoeuvre on the highway to
allow others vehicles entering/leaving the property. This would likely therefore lead
to the determent of safety for users of the highway and highways safety.

CCC Archaeology
No comment or requirement for the scheme.
FDC Conservation Officer

Raised an objection to the scheme and recommended that the application be
refused. The Conservation Officer highlighted that the proposed development
would erode the long linear curtilage, which forms the setting of the Grade Il Listed
Building, thus resulting in harm to the setting of the Listed Building and setting a
precedent for further development.

The Conservation Officer also raised concerns regarding the substantial reduction
in curtilage and the awkward development layout and noted that the design of the
development does not respect or reflect the setting of the host Listed Building.

Within their comments, the Conservation Officer acknowledges that whilst most of
the application site is shielded from public view, the impact upon setting of private
areas is also a factor for consideration when assessing the impact of a
development upon the Conservation Area. The linear curtilage of the application
site and neighbouring sites is an important historic feature. The development is
also considered to therefore cause harm to the character and historic settlement
form of the Conservation Area.

FDC Environmental Health

No objections to the scheme, however, have recommended a working times
condition due to close proximity of existing noise sensitive receptors.

FDC Ecology

No objections to the application. Suggested informatives regarding vegetation
clearance and bats.

FDC Tree Consultant

Raised no objections to the scheme, however acknowledged that no arboricultural
assessment had been submitted. Recommended a pre-commencement condition
be secured requiring an Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Tree Protection
Plan to be submitted.

Historic England

No advice provided. Suggest seeking views of specialist conservation and
archaeological advisors.

Page 91



5.9

5.10

6.1

6.2

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

Environment Agency
No objection to the proposed development on flood risk grounds.
Local Residents/Interested Parties

14 letters of support were received with regard to this application (three from Jobs
Lane and High Street, two from Station Road and one each from The Causeway,
Binnimoor Road, The Avenue, Elwyndene Road, Stonecross Way and St Peters
Road, March). The reasons for support are summarised as follows:

- Ideal site for development

- Would not introduce overlooking
- Character

- Flooding

- Private amenity space

- Proximity to Town Centre

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014) the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local Plan
(2021) and the March Neighbourhood Plan (2017).

Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 require Local Planning Authorities when considering development to pay
special attention to preserving a listed building or its setting and to the desirability
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation area.

POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Chapter 16 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

National Design Guide 2021
Context

Identity

Built Form

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

Page 92



7.5

7.6

9.1

9.2

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP18 — The Historic Environment

LP19 — The Natural Environment

March Neighbourhood Plan 2017
H2 —  Windfall Development

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1:  Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP22: Parking Provision

LP23: Historic Environment

LP24: Natural Environment

LP25: Biodiversity Net Gain

LP32: Flood and Water Management

KEY ISSUES

Principle of Development

Self-build and Five-Year Land Supply

Design, Appearance and Impact on Historic Environment
Residential Amenity

Access and Parking

Flood Risk

Ecology and Trees

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

BACKGROUND

Pre-application advice was sought in August 2024, for the erection of a dwelling
within the rear garden of 104 High Street. The design and layout of the proposed
development under this application differ from that submitted under the pre-app.

Notwithstanding this, the advice provided within this pre-application noted that the
subdivision of the site would result in harm to the setting of the Listed Building due
to the substantial erosion of historic linear curtilage, as well as setting a precedent
for further development within the gardens of the adjacent Listed Buildings.

Page 93



9.3 Additionally, in the interests of transparency it should be noted that the applicant is
an elected Member of Fenland District Council.

10 ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

10.1 The application site is located within the settlement of March which is identified
within the Settlement Hierarchy as a Market Town. Market Towns are identified
within Policy LP3 as the focus for housing growth, therefore, the principle of
residential development is considered acceptable, in view of planning policy.
Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan 2017 supports the provision of
residential development.

10.2 It should be noted that this point of general principle is subject to broader planning
policy and other material considerations which are discussed in more detail in the
following sections.

Self-build and Five-Year Land Supply

10.3 Policy LP5, Part C of the Fenland Local Plan seeks to provide, in appropriate
circumstances, housing solutions that meet market expectations including self
build homes, which is supported by para 62 of the NPPF. Under Section 1 of the
Self Build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015, local authorities are required to
keep a register of those seeking to acquire serviced plots in the area for their own
self-build and custom house building. They are also subject to duties under
sections 2 and 2A of the Act to have regard to this and to give enough suitable
development permissions to meet the identified demand. Weight would therefore
be given to this, the amount dependant on identified demand. The proposal is for
a self/custom build dwelling, however the Council can currently demonstrate that
the number of permissions given for self/custom builds exceeds identified
demand, and as such very limited weight can be afforded to this.

10.4 Additionally, at present the Council can demonstrate in excess of a five-year
supply of available housing land and therefore very limited weight can be afforded
to the delivery of housing when considering the planning balance.

Design, Appearance and Impact on Historic Environment

10.5 Policy LP16 and LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan support the principle of
development subject to development respecting and enhancing the character and
identity of the surrounding area and that the development does not have any
adverse impacts on the surrounding Conservation Area or introduce harm to the
setting of Listed Buildings.

10.6 Policy H2(f) of the March Neighbourhood Plan 2017 requires developments to be
of a high standard of design.

10.7 Paragraph 213 of the NPPF states that ‘Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of

a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from
development within its setting), should require clear and convincing justification’.

Page 94



10.8 Paragraph 215 of the NPPF states that ‘Where a development proposal will lead to
less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this
harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including,
where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

10.9 Setting of a heritage asset is defined within the NPPF as ‘The surroundings in
which a heritage asset is experienced. Its extent is not fixed and may change as
the asset and its surroundings evolve. Elements of a setting may make a positive
or negative contribution to the significance of an asset, may affect the ability to
appreciate that significance or may be neutral.’

10.10 The setting of a Listed Building encompasses the surrounding environment in
which the building is experienced and appreciated, including both its visual and
physical context. The application site is situated within existing garden land,
associated with a Grade |l Listed Building, 108 High Street. The proposed
development would therefore be situated within the setting of this Listed Building.

10.11 The proposed development within the garden land of No. 108, including the
erection of fencing and creation of a driveway would carve up the existing plot,
removing a substantial amount of private amenity space and eroding the long
linear curtilage, which forms part of the setting of the Grade Il Listed Building.

10.12 Whilst it is acknowledged that the original setting of the listed building has been
truncated during the mid to late C20, with the construction of the modern housing
estate to the rear of the site, in comparison to the adjacent Listed Buildings at No
110 and 112, the proposed development would be the furthest incursion into the
curtilage of these Listed Buildings. The loss of the long linear curtilage associated
with the dwelling is therefore considered to introduce harm to the setting of the
Listed Building.

10.13 The proposed development would be somewhat obscured from view from the
wider public realm, when considering the impact upon the Conservation Area, both
public views and the impact on the setting of private areas are factors to be
considered. Consideration should be given to the morphology of the built form of
the Conservation Area. In this case, the linear curtilage of the application site and
neighbouring sites is an important historic feature. It is therefore also considered
that the development would introduce harm to the character and historic
settlement form of the March Conservation Area.

10.14 In terms of the design of the dwelling, the proposed development would be a
modern bungalow, with cladded gables which does not respect or reflect the
design of the host Listed Building. As such, the unsympathetic design of the
proposal is considered to introduce further harm to the setting of the Listed
Building.

10.15 Where a development proposal would lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, the harm should be weighed against
the public benefits of the proposal, as set out within Paragraph 215 of the NPPF.
The application is for a self-build/custom dwelling for the applicants to live in, this
is not considered to be clear or convincing justification to justify the harm
introduced to the significance of the Listed Building. The private occupation of the
development does also not provide any public benefit which would justify the harm
introduced.

Page 95



10.16 As such, the proposed backland development, which would introduce a modern
style dwelling, is considered to significantly erode what is left of the historic linear
curtilage of the Listed Building to the detriment to historic layout and setting,
introducing harm to the setting of the Listed Building and the character of the
March Conservation Area. The development is therefore considered to be contrary
to Policy H2(f) of the March Neighbourhood Plan 2017, Policies LP16 and LP18 of
the Fenland Local Plan and Paragraphs 213 and 215 of the NPPF.

Residential Amenity

10.17 Policy H2(a) of the March Neighbourhood Plan 2017 requires developments to
consider levels of light, privacy and private amenity space for the occupants of the
proposed dwellings.

10.18 Policies LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan seek to ensure that
development does not detrimentally impact upon the residential amenity of
neighbouring or future occupiers.

10.19 Neighbouring buildings are situated to the north, east, south-east, south and west
of the application site. To the north of the site is the Three Lions Sports Bar &
Restaurant. The proposed dwelling would not adversely impact upon this
neighbouring property.

10.20 To the east of the site is private amenity space, which appears to be associated
with No. 46 Elwyndene Road. The proposed development would retain a
clearance of approximately 10 metres between the rear elevation of the dwelling,
and the eastern boundary of the site. Due to the single-storey nature of the
dwelling, the retained clearance and the presence of a 1.8 metre high close
boarded fence, it is unlikely that the proposed development would introduce any
adverse overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking impacts upon this
neighbouring amenity space.

10.21 The dwelling to the south-east of the site, 38 Stonecross Way, would be situated
approximately 7.6 metres from the proposed dwelling. Whilst the proposed
development would be somewhat visible to this neighbouring property, it is unlikely
to introduce any adverse overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking impacts due
to the single-storey nature of development and existing boundary treatments.

10.22 With regard to the dwelling to the south of the development, the proposed
dwelling would be situated adjacent to private amenity space associated with this
dwelling. Similarly, given the existing 2.7m high brick wall separating the sites and
the single-storey nature of development, it is unlikely that any adverse
overbearing, overshadowing or overlooking impacts would be introduced.

10.23 The host dwelling to the west of the site, 108 High Street, would be situated
approximately 61 metres from the proposed dwelling and therefore it is unlikely
that this dwelling would be adversely affected.

10.24 With regard to bin collection, it is acknowledged that bin storage will be in excess
of the recommended 30m drag distance between storage and collection areas.
However, given that this arrangement has been accepted for other dwellings along
High Street, it would in part, be inconsistent to raise issue with this aspect. It does
however have to be acknowledged that this element carries negative weight to be
applied in the planning balance.

Page 96



10.25 The scheme is therefore considered to be compliant with Policy H2 of the March
Neighbourhood Plan 2017 and Policies LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan
2014 in this regard.

Access and Parking

10.26 Policy H2(d) of the March Neighbourhood Plan 2017 requires development to
include a safe and vehicular access that would not result in severe impacts on the
road network.

10.27 Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014 requires development to provide well
designed, safe and convenient access for all and well-designed car parking in
accordance with Appendix A.

10.28 The submitted site plan indicates the provision of 2 parking spaces and turning
space for both the proposed dwelling and the host dwelling on site. This is
considered to be acceptable.

10.29 The proposed development would utilise the existing access to No. 108, including
the provision of a driveway to the new dwelling. The existing access at its
narrowest point measures approximately 2.9 metres.

10.30 CCC Highways have been consulted on this application and have raised an
objection to the scheme on the basis that the access is not wide enough to allow
two vehicles to pass simultaneously. If approved the Highway Authority have
concerns that “vehicles will have to stop and manoeuvre on the highway to allow
others vehicles entering/leaving the property. This would likely therefore lead to
the determent of safety for users of the highway and highways safety”.

10.31 The applicant has submitted a statement in response to these comments,
essentially highlighting the number of similar constrained accesses in the vicinity
as well as planning permission which have been granted. These permissions
appear to be based on somewhat historic decisions, pre-dating the current local
plan. Notwithstanding this, each application should be considered on its own
merits, it is considered that allowing further potentially unsafe accesses to
proliferate in this location is not acceptable, especially given the highway
authority’s concerns regarding this proposal.

10.32 As such, the intensification of the narrow access through the provision of an
additional dwelling would exacerbate the potential for conflict between vehicles
using the access. As such, the application has failed to demonstrate that it is able
to provide convenient and safe access for the proposed dwelling and is therefore
considered contrary to Policy H2(d) of the March Neighbourhood Plan 2017 and
Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

Flood Risk

10.33 The proposal is located within Flood Zone 1 and issues of surface water disposal
will be considered under Building Regulations

Ecology and Trees
10.34 The application is accompanied by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Report. The

report concludes that the habitats on site are of low conservation value and that
no further surveys are required. Mitigation measures are suggested which could

Page 97



be conditioned should permission be granted. Consultation was undertaken with
the FDC Ecology Officer who raised no objections to the application, subject to
suggested informatives and a condition requiring biodiversity enhancement.

10.35 Consultation was also undertaken with the FDC Tree Officer who confirmed that
the proposed development could be implemented without detriment to the retained
trees, however this would be subject to pre commencement conditions should
permission be granted to ensure an Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Tree
Protection Plan are submitted and approved by the LPA.

10.36 As such, there are no issues to address with regard to Policy LP19 in this regard.
Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

10.37 The Environment Act 2021 requires development proposals to deliver a net gain
in biodiversity following a mitigation hierarchy which is focused on avoiding
ecological harm over minimising, rectifying, reducing and then off-setting. This
approach accords with Local Plan policies LP16 and LP19 which outlines a
primary objective for biodiversity to be conserved or enhanced and provides for
the protection of Protected Species, Priority Species and Priority Habitat.

10.38 There are statutory exemptions, transitional arrangements and requirements
relating to irreplaceable habitat which mean that the biodiversity gain condition
does not always apply. In this instance, one or more of the exemptions /
transitional arrangements are considered to apply and a Biodiversity Gain
Condition is not required to be approved before development is begun because
the nature of the development being self / custom build is exempt from statutory
net gain.

11 CONCLUSIONS

11.1 The application seeks full permission for the erection of one self-build/custom build
dwelling involving demolition of shed within a Conservation Area.

11.2 The Council can demonstrate that the number of permissions for self/custom
builds currently exceeds identified demand. The Council can also demonstrate an
excess of a five-year supply of available housing land. Very limited weight should
therefore be given to these factors when considering the planning balance.

11.3 Whilst the proposed development accords with the settlement hierarchy of Policy
LP3 of the Local Plan, both the unsympathetic design and the subdivision of the
existing curtilage of No. 108, would introduce harm to the setting of the Grade |l
Listed Building and the character of the March Conservation Area. The application
does not include clear or convincing justification to justify the harm introduced, nor
does the development provide any public benefit to outweigh that harm and is
therefore considered to be contrary to Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan
2017, Policies LP16 and LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan and Paragraphs 213 and
215 of the NPPF.

11.4 In addition to the above, the proposed utilisation of the existing access is
considered unacceptable due to the increase of traffic proposed and the
narrowness of the existing access road which would result in unacceptable
highway safety impacts. While the development would provide some economic
and social benefits through the delivery of a single dwelling in a largely
sustainable location these would inherently be limited given the scale of

Page 98



development and would not outweigh the harm identified to heritage and highway
safety. The application is therefore considered to be contrary to Policy H2 of the
March Neighbourhood Plan 2017 and Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan
2014.

12 RECOMMENDATION

12. Refuse; for the following reasons:

1 The application would result in development within the setting of a Grade |l
listed building, 108 High Street, and would result in less than substantial
harm to this setting and the Conservation Area, by virtue of introducing built
form into currently undeveloped open land forming the historic context to the
listed building, separating the Listed Building from its historic curtilage,
without adequate justification, and without any public benefits outweighing
this harm. The linear curtilage of the site is an important historic feature and
its loss would also introduce harm to the character and historic settlement of
the Conservation Area. This harm is exacerbated by the modern design of
the proposed dwelling, which does not seek to respect or reflect the design
of the host Listed Building

As such, if permitted, the development would be contrary to Policy H2 of the
March Neighbourhood Plan 2017, Policy LP16 and LP18 of the Fenland
Local Plan 2014 as well as Paragraphs 213 and 215 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

2 Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) requires that developments
provide "well designed, safe and convenient access for all". The access
drive itself is of limited width, as little as 2.9 metres at the narrowest point.
The increase in traffic proposed as a result of the application, combined with
the narrowness of the access road would result in an access drive that fails
to meet the above requirements of policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood
Plan 2017 or Policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

Page 99



7to 11

1924
01 ce

44 to

1t09
AN

R

Place

-,

!

ABBEYGATE
Esss00

88a

STPETER'S

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Fenland

i

F/YR25/0328/F
Scale = 1:1,250

Created on: 29/04/2025
© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2025 Ordnance Survey 10023778

Page 100



Created on: 20/04/2025 FIYR25/0328/F — Fenland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

© Crown Copyright and database —_ . A »
rights 2025 Ordnance Survey 10023778 Scale = 1:1,250 Fenland District Council

Page 101



Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

20T abed

appropriate, BS or EC marks.

'/

Z All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

1.4m The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

/ by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
‘ Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

forward to the Engineer

Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.
ADDITIONAL AREA OF Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
LAND TO EXTEND \ } consulting the Engineers.
PROPOSED GARDEN \ B Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
\ W D s 2 =9 starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt
- BN .. ——— G 7 ) ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.
.
H ’ o Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
Z - . (D 1 specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
’ / the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
< £ i reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
B 7 specification. All work to be in accordance with
el s ORI 2 Z good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
a4 ! 7 3 recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
' Z Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
] .
%

3
CrF

[ rrrrrr

—
m
()]
m
Z
o

CONCRETE SLABS
(NON SLIP)

rrr
rrr
rrr
L I e

PERMEABLE BLOCK
PAVING
(NON SLIP)

TI_TI_VI-I-I_I_I_I_FI_TI-TI_I_FVI-I_I_I_T

T

N

GRASS

T—1.1Tm

,,__ _____ // e el
| GRAVEL

' VEGETATION

Restcot

il
HIGH STREET
b siL
] q E e

Restcot

f- ] g e . o / 3 LOCATION PLAN
T T K//K///%// IGAEI

Elwyn Orchard

Elwyn Orchard

%gug% Eggllng\ 7 1 Gozz':]s”grujm””“ fe“l‘e":iz . ; i )
“““
Building %
| il
T Mr J Clark
110 | =< 110 | | A
ol 112 S 12 oo
“\““\\\ln.., . \\\\\\\\ g
WWWWWWWWWW E\)Ac?:r?t?s PE15 9LP
PATHWAY PATHWAY PATHWAY “ PATHWAY | Existing & Proposed
PATHIAY PATHWAY Site Plans
HI1 GH STREET H|l G H STREET RPpwth
EXISTING SITE PLAN PROPOSED SITE PLAN E—
(1:200) (1:200) = — H10261,/00



AutoCAD SHX Text_151
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
Mr J Clark

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
The Maze

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
108 High Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
Cambs, PE15 9LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
Existing & Proposed

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
Site Plans

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
R.Papworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Mar 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
H10261/00

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
EXISTING SITE PLAN (1:200) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
2.7m HIGH BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
1.8m HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE TO BE DEMOLISHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
1.5m HIGH BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
1.2m - 1.8m HIGH STEPPED BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
H I G H   S T R E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
EXISTING SUMMER HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
14m HIGH TREE TO BE MAINTAINED

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
541750

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
LOCATION PLAN (1:1250) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
LICENCE NUMBER 100022432

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:200) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
2.7m HIGH BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
H I G H   S T R E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
NEW 1.8m HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
1.8m HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
1.8m HIGH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
ADDITIONAL AREA OF LAND TO EXTEND PROPOSED GARDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
10.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
10.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
1.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
1.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
16.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
CONCRETE SLABS  (NON SLIP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
PERMEABLE BLOCK  PAVING (NON SLIP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
WASTE BINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
VEGETATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
17.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
2m x 2m PEDESTRIAN VISIBILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
DRAWING UPDATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
MAR 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
EXISTING PARKING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
EXISTING PARKING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
PROPOSED GATES

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
APR 2025


€0T abed

‘ No.102 ‘ ‘ No.104/106 ‘ ‘ No.108 ‘ ‘ No.110

=

=
=
=

\

No.112

EXISTING STREET SCENE
(1:200)

EXISTING STREET SCENE PHOTOS

No.104/106

No.110

No.108

No.102

=
=
=
|
\

No.112

I

1 [

PROPOSED STREET SCENE
(1:200)

SHED
I
EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION
(SHED TO BE DEMOLISHED) (SHED TO BE DEMOLISHED)
(1:100) (1:100)

—TIMBER
CLAD Z?// —TIMBER

CLAD

|

PROPOSED TIMBER GATE DETAIL
(1:50)

PROPOSED 1.8m HIGH
TIMBER FENCE DETAIL

(1:50)

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

EXISTING REAR FENCE ELEVATION

(FENCE TO BE DEMOLISHED)
(1:50)

EXISTING LHS ELEVATION EXISTING REAR ELEVATION
(SHED TO BE DEMOLISHED) (SHED TO BE DEMOLISHED)
(1:100) (1:100)

NEW GATES TO No.108
(1:20)

A PLANNERS COMMENTS APR 2025

REVISIONS DATE

CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

~ Fenland District Council
Building

LABC” LABC
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .

1102 ® 6002
Y3INNIM AHOO3LVYO

CLIENT

Mr J Clark

PROJECT

The Maze

108 High Street
March

Cambs, PE15 9LP

TITLE

Existing & Proposed
Street Scenes

DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE

R.Papworth

CHECKED

DATE DRAWING NUMBER

Mar 2025

H10261 /03

As Shown



AutoCAD SHX Text_259
EXISTING STREET SCENE (1:200) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
PROPOSED STREET SCENE (1:200) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
No.112

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
No.110

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
No.108

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
No.104/106

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
No.102

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
No.112

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
No.110

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
No.108

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
No.104/106

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
No.102

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN (SHED TO BE DEMOLISHED) (1:100) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
EXISTING REAR ELEVATION (SHED TO BE DEMOLISHED) (1:100) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION (SHED TO BE DEMOLISHED) (1:100) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
EXISTING LHS ELEVATION (SHED TO BE DEMOLISHED) (1:100) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
Mr J Clark

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
The Maze

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
108 High Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
Cambs, PE15 9LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
Existing & Proposed 

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
Street Scenes

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
R.Papworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
Mar 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
H10261/03

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
PROPOSED 1.8m HIGH  TIMBER FENCE DETAIL (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
EXISTING REAR FENCE ELEVATION (FENCE TO BE DEMOLISHED) (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
PROPOSED TIMBER GATE DETAIL (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
TIMBER CLAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
TIMBER CLAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
NEW GATES TO No.108 (1:20)

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
EXISTING STREET SCENE PHOTOS

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
APR 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
A


0T abed

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt
14900 ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.
Wh terials, duct d k hi t full
ELEVATION 3 speegi?‘iergotﬁg)? Zreprt% ubceso?nthewgzo:qdoonrz Igps:gprr;gte L’:oy
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
4L specification. All work to be in accordance with
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
z y ~ ; recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
o Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
L%é;é%ﬁﬂ British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
S I ——— appropriate, BS or EC marks.
4300— b pA L L 3250 3250 3100 .
All product d materials to be handled, stored, d
LLLLLLLLL{E\EttttEk S —— ondpLoieL:ic zrqf?xed:?r]('eggcsord%ncee w?tnh (tahe Srncc’:lzeufoftzerzcl]';e
[ current recommendations.
A S 1 O I O B R ; . ;
INEENEREEERERENENE ERERERERNEREN B te B0G or N et e quiea b She g
I 1 1 N I A I O G O O R R Regulations and is ‘to obtain completion certificate and
Lttt bbbl g L L UTIUTY L L forward to the Engineer
I I Y Y R N N B | [
A T 1 Y O e
A A O I Y ) I Y R B BEI
A O I Y ) I Y R B
A ) ) O g Ly
A ) ) Y O ) O Y O
7LLL LLLLLL | | | | | | | | | | |
LLL&&@EB@E@@LLLMLLﬁﬁEELL 4
N O O Y O A IO | iy - 11001
N B A B [l 2 c 8
,LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL T
Y Y B B LLLL
9 A Y ) I B 7 W\x 17
IR 6600
A Y O )y °
A Y O ) ey LL
I N ) .
A O )
Y Y Y e Y O O O | Z L
00 Wuuu —_— CCCLSPELF
SAS = CLUCLCCC JCfd
= L
f? i? Y Y O |
zzzz) | Ll
/ i %z e 74 ¢ e s I
- BATHROOM & |
A A |
I A |} J
E // \\{ 4: LEVATION 2 §
g N % L PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
7 7 7 1:100
LLC 1C ( )
L L]
- —LOG BURNER L LLLLL L L0 I
BY SPECIALIST Aftﬁﬁﬁ%i L,k:k:kigft
— L Ly
<:f L CCCCEE
A I O O A A |
(@] — ) O S N Ly
S LOUNGE 4: ELEVATION 6 7 :
DAY ELEVATION 5 |:>
-
, N
4300
%
4300
3m 5000 A CLIENTS COMMENTS MAR 2025
7 ) REVISIONS DATE
ﬁf o . MoRTON & HALL
ELEVATION 1 CONSULT|NG LiMITED
CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS i ‘
1 Gordon A , Tel: 01354 655454
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN | Sodon e fo: 013t es3ast
(1:50) Cambridgeshire. e neers.couk
Fenland District Council 8%
LABC™ LABC™ o T
Building |3
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .
Mr J Clark
The Maze
108 High Street
March
Cambs, PE1S 9LP
Proposed Ground
Floor Plan
DRAWN R-Popworth DATE OF ISSUE
DATE Mor 2025 DRAWING NUMBER
E—— H10261,/01x



AutoCAD SHX Text_345
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Mr J Clark

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
The Maze

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
108 High Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
Cambs, PE15 9LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
Proposed Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
Floor Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
R.Papworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
Mar 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
H10261/01

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
4300

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
6000

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
2900

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
2050

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
3250

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
3100

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
5300

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
4100

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
2900

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
1800

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
3100

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
4300

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
1700

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
900

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
BEDROOM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
BEDROOM 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
W.C

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
BATHROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
EN-SUITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
4300

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
8300

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
ELEVATION 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
ELEVATION 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
ELEVATION 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
ELEVATION 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
ELEVATION 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
ELEVATION 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN (1:50) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN (1:100) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
14900

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
15100

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
16000

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
5000

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
5000

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
6600

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
1.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
KITCHEN/DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
CLIENTS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
MAR 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
LOG BURNER BY SPECIALIST


Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
consulting the Engineers.

without their written permission.

CATEGORY WINNER
2009 & 2011

¢

APR 2025
APR 2025
DATE

MAR 2025

o
=
O
=)
m

»
°
—
s
<
c
2
7
oy
o

H10261/02¢

01354 655454
Building Excellence in Fenland

w
c
S
o

)

kS
=

L2

(@]

T
c

x
c
o

L

DATE OF ISSUE
DRAWING NUMBER

lia

q

Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

Fax: 01354 660467
E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

Tel:

LABC

CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

PLANNERS COMMENTS
PLANNERS COMMENTS
CLIENTS COMMENTS

REVISIONS
R.Papworth
Mar 2025

Mr J Clark

The Maze

108 High Street
March

Cambs, PE15 9LP
Proposed Elevations

1 Gordon Avenue,

March,
Cambridgeshire.

ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.
PE15 8AJ

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the

recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared

and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
current recommendations.

British Standards and EOTA standards with, where

appropriate, BS or EC marks.
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
forward to the Engineer

specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt
specification. All work to be in accordance with

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building

LAl
CLIENT
PROJECT
TITLE
DRAWN
CHECKED
DATE

BLACK CAST ALUMINUM

5 5

= = N

ST <© wy

238 23 ‘ lilil

WO 5 L O S ———
= — = I

N < - Nn< o

L > = L > = T

o= o= - : e
Lo Lol i T HARF

o ~— N — 1| LR HA A

O O H HHA Y

o o H HHH M

(A A

CREAM UPVC

100)
TRADTIONAL BRICK AND STONE CAMBOURNE BUFF

PHOTOVOLTAIC TILES/SLATE TILES

.
.

.
.

GUTTERS AND DOWNPIPES

MATERIALS
WALLS
ROOF
JOINERY

DOUGLAS FIR
CLADDING

T

I

I

I

50)

(1

(ELEVATION 4)

BLACK LOG
BURNER FLUE

PROPOSED LHS ELEVATION

Ho's wo'c NNNNNNNNMM HHH]
S 9°¢C AR HHAARAAA AR LY
ALLLLhEREREEELE T
Il Il ppupapupupupupupupe (SIS — o akahaly
T I HHHH IR HHHE (i g RLELELGT e
SHEREESYY AHHHHHHRHHHHHHHEHH HHH HHHH Annrrnrnnnn HHHH
H O HHHHHHHHHHHHEHK Il AR A [HHH
\\\\\\\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ \\\\\\ \\\\\\\ \ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ \\\\\\\
HHH A H R ity A Y
i N R A A H AR H A A LHH HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHEH]
p il Z  EMEERNU T e ipiain CHHHESS NN HHE
I i = ittt fig! T N{aliatfalishiahifatiihi} ity
m <C N L HHHHH A O L A
. HHH > RN e | il HHH = R A iy
| i N GGG T = T HHE LHH
‘ il NI - = i .
————| ~g=p-aipigigipipigininininin iginin <€ HH A A
i — = Z SHRHHHHHHHHHH HHHE
8 i Z0Q B T o~ il x Z ~
W I P i i e
‘ s>z I HHHTHHE Z ~ T o <
I iy L P | S S | g e E AR RER N Eninly n O o HHHH >
\ [ oz < [ T I IEw® [~ L
H EpEEEE Ll ~— L IBEEEEEREEERRE Iigly X <C ;.I. IpEpE L LJ
| L %2 m \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ v ~— inEpEpe Q) ~
I i O |l - o« T ©
i . O ~ .o I O
] 4 ipipipinininininintuininin @) 4
il o I a HHH o
H HHHH I HHHHHHH O iyl
L] HHH o S o Iyiaigl
2 I o
igigial S R pininl HHH
LI O bttt Lo LI L HH M H
uEnEEEE A ittt e \\\\\\\
pigiall ORI L Y Y pininl alnln
2 N L HHH
HHH] || EEEEEEEEEEEE HHH| iy
SR S A H A A
1H] T

DOUGLAS FIR
CLADDING

Page 105

As Shown

SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text_454
5.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
2.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
2.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
5.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (ELEVATION 1) (1:50) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
PROPOSED REAR ELVATION (ELEVATION 3) (1:50) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
PROPOSED RHS ELEVATION (ELEVATION 2) (1:50) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
PROPOSED LHS ELEVATION (ELEVATION 4) (1:50) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
PROPOSED ELEVATION (ELEVATION 5) (1:100) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
PROPOSED ELEVATION (ELEVATION 6) (1:100) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
starts or materials are ordered. Do not scale, if in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
Mr J Clark

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
The Maze

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
108 High Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
Cambs, PE15 9LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
Proposed Elevations

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
R.Papworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
Mar 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
H10261/02

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
4.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
2.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
2.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
4.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
FROSTED GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
FROSTED GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
MATERIALS WALLS : TRADTIONAL BRICK AND STONE CAMBOURNE BUFF ROOF : PHOTOVOLTAIC TILES/SLATE TILES JOINERY : CREAM UPVC GUTTERS AND DOWNPIPES : BLACK CAST ALUMINUM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
CLIENTS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
MAR 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
BLACK LOG BURNER FLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
DOUGLAS FIR CLADDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
DOUGLAS FIR CLADDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
APR 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
APR 2025


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

F/YR25/0347/F
Applicant: Mr Chris White Agent: Mr G Boreham
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd
20 Nene Parade, March, Cambridgeshire, PE15 8TD

Erect 2x self-build/custom build dwellings involving demolition of existing
dwelling and garage within a Conservation Area

Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer
recommendation

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of an existing
five-bedroom bungalow on Nene Parade, March, and its replacement with two
chalet-style bungalows. The site lies within the March Conservation Area and is
located in a sustainable location within Flood Zone 1.

1.2 While the principle of residential development is supported by both the Fenland
Local Plan and the March Neighbourhood Plan, the proposed design is
considered to lack architectural merit and fails to respond positively to the historic
character of the conservation area. The scale, form, and detailing—particularly the
use of shallow-pitched roofs, oversized dormers, and integral garages—are not
reflective of the traditional built form along Nene Parade. As such, the proposal is
considered contrary to Policies LP16 and LP18 of the Local Plan and relevant
sections of the NPPF (2024), which seek to protect and enhance the special
character of the Conservation Area.

1.3 Other aspects of the proposal, including residential amenity, flood risk, ecology,
and highways, raise no significant concerns. However, these do not outweigh the
identified harm to the character and appearance of the conservation area.

1.4 Accordingly, the application is recommended for refusal.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1 The application site sits to the northern side of Nene Parade and falls within the
March Conservation Area. The site is currently occupied by a large, detached
bungalow with a detached garage to the western boundary. The existing dwelling
benefits from five bedrooms, a kitchen, dining room and living room. The existing
dwelling is not listed. To the south of the site is the River Nene and to the west is a
public footpath. The surrounding area is predominately residential in nature
consisting or terrace dwellings fronting the Road.

2.2 The site sits in Flood Zone 1 and the March Conservation Area.

Page 107



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

PROPOSAL

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing bungalow and
garage and the construction of two residential chalet-style bungalows on the site.
These will be set back slightly further than the existing built form on site.

Plot 1 would have a maximum height of 7.75 metres with an eaves height of 3.3
metres, a width of 8.1 metres and a depth of 10.7 metres. Also included is an
attached garage to the western side of the dwelling which would have a maximum
height of 6.1 metres with an eaves height of 2.95 metres, a width of 6.35 metres
and a depth of 7.7 metres. (internally this is 6 and 7 metres respectively). This
would provide a lounge, open plan kitchen/diner and utility room at ground floor,
alongside the parking of two vehicles with three bedrooms (one en-suite) and a
bathroom at first floor. The dwelling itself would benefit two gable dormer roof
alterations to the front and two to the rear of the proposed dwelling. With another
two to the rear of the garage.

Plot 2 would have a maximum height of 7.75 metres with an eaves height of 3.3
metres, a width of 8.5 metres and a depth of 10.7 metres. This would provide a
lounge, open plan kitchen/diner, utility room and integral garage at ground floor
with three bedrooms (one en-suite) and a bathroom at first floor. This dwelling
would feature two gable dormer roof alterations to the front and two to the rear of
the proposed dwelling.

The proposal would utilise the existing accesses off Nene Parade, however, these
would be widened. Two parking spaces per dwelling are proposed.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:

https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

There is no recent site history relevant to the determination of this application.
CONSULTATIONS

March Town Council

Recommends approval although notes serious concerns regarding the structural
integrity of the bank, subsequent issues with the road and traffic. Construction
traffic would exacerbate these existing issues

Arboricultural Consultant

No objection to the proposal subject to the inclusion of a suitably worded condition
to ensure a tree protection method statement is provided

CCC Highways
No objection subject to the relocation of the access serving plot 1

CCC Archaeology

Page 108



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

No comment or requirement for the scheme.
FDC Conservation Officer

Objects to the proposal due to the scale, form and architectural detailing being
insufficient and jarring, therefore, detracting from the character and appearance of
the conservation area

FDC Environmental Health

No objection subject to the inclusion of a condition in regard to limiting the hours of
demolition/construction

FDC Ecologist
No objection to the proposal subject to the following informatives:

- If bats are found at any time during the works, this must cease, and advice
sought from a qualified person

- 2 x bat roosting boxes should be installed on site, post-completion

- Care should be taken to avoid the spread of Wall Cotoneaster, which has
been recorded on site

Local Residents/Interested Parties

11 letters of support have been received from residents on Berryfield (x2), Elwyn
Road, Boundary Drive, Wisbech Road, Pits Lane, Knights End Road, Cypress
Close, Upwell Road, Gull Road and Curlew Avenue; these are summarised below:

- The proposal would be of a benefit to Nene Parade given issues with
subsidence and potential for it to become derelict drawing on anti-social and
homelessness activities.

- Asset to the area/ streetscene

- Better than existing property which is an eyesore

- Benefit to the Town giving opportunity for two families to live next to the river

- No justification to support repair of existing building given how unsafe it is.

- Increases the local housing stock which is desperately required.

One letter of objection has been received from residents on Nene Parade

- The proposal would result in the driveway being inaccessible — this driveway is
utilised by other residents to complete 2-point turns to leave the parade in a
safe manner.

- Devalue neighbouring properties

- Effects of lorries using Nene Parade — highway safety — vehicular and
pedestrian alongside concerns for riverbank

One letter of offering comments on the application have been received from a
resident on Nene Parade this is summarised below:

- An agreement needs to be met with the owner regarding retaining the
existing use of the driveway as a turning point for other residents and users of
the road.

- This is an opportunity for a more appropriate design and build as existing
dwelling does not fit in well

Page 109



- Consideration needs to be given to the construction route to be utilised.
STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014) the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local Plan
(2021) and the March Neighbourhood Plan (2017)

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires Local Planning Authorities when considering development to pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance
of a conservation area.

POLICY FRAMEWORK
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 8 — Promoting healthy and safe communities

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Chapter 16 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application
National Design Guide 2021

Context

|dentity

Built Form
Movement

Uses

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside
LP4 — Housing

LP5 — Meeting Housing Need

LP9 — March
LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in

Page 110



9.1

Fenland
LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District
LP18 — The Historic Environment
LP19 — The Natural Environment

March Neighbourhood Plan 2017
H2 —  Windfall Development
H3 — Local Housing Need

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014

DM2 — Natural Features and Landscaping Schemes

DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1:  Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs
LP22: Parking Provision

LP23: Historic Environment

LP25: Biodiversity Net Gain

LP27: Trees and Planting

LP28: Landscape

LP32: Flood and Water Management

KEY ISSUES

. Design

o Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area
. Residential Amenity and Amenity Space

. Landscaping and Ecology

. Parking, Access and Highway Safety

o Flood Risk

. Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

. Planning Balance

ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

Policy LP1 is the overarching policy supporting a presumption in favour of
sustainable development; planning applications that accord with the policies within

Page 111



9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

the Local Development Plan (LDP) will be approved without delay unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014)
sets out the settlement hierarchy within the District, setting out the scale of
development appropriate to each level of the hierarchy. Furthermore, Policy LP9
confirms that March is a focus for housing, employment and retail growth. This
stance is supported in Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan. The
application site is located within March whereby the majority of the District's new
housing, employment and retail growth should be directed.

Policy LP5 sets out the housing targets for the District and the Council has
undertaken a full assessment of the Five Year Housing Land Supply in the District
and has concluded that the Council is able to demonstrate a supply of specific
deliverable sites sufficient to provide for more than Five Years’ worth of housing
against the Council’s identified requirements. This is a material consideration and
means that any application for new development must be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Similarly, Policy H3 of the March Local Plan requires all housing
proposals to contribute towards meeting local housing need, which includes starter
homes, family homes, executive homes and self-build homes; and mixed tenure
that will result in a diverse community, where this is reasonably achievable

The Housing Needs Assessment 2021 identified a greater need of 2-3 bedroom
market units for the District. The proposal would provide two three-bedroom
dwellings and therefore would meet this identified need. Furthermore, the proposal
would result in the loss of a five-bedroom property (of which there is not great
identified need for in the District).

Given the sites location within the sustainable location of March Town Centre, with
good accessibility via sustainable modes of transport to everyday services and
facilities, it is considered the principle of development would be acceptable and in
accordance with Policies LP1 and LP3 of the LDP. Other Material considerations
will be discussed below.

Self-Build and Custom Housing

Policy LP5 of the Local Plan also seeks to ensure that housing solutions are
provided which meet market expectations, this includes self-build homes. This
stance is reflected by Policy H3 of the March Neighbourhood Plan. Under Section

1 of the Self Build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015, Local Authorities are
required to keep a register of those seeking to acquire serviced plots in the area for
their own self-build and custom house building. They are also subject to duties
under Sections 2 and 2A of that Act to have regard to this and to give enough
suitable development permissions to meet the identified demand.

As set out in the Regulations, Part 1 of a register comprises those people and
organisations who meet all the eligibility criteria, including the local connection test.
Part 2 comprises those people and organisations who meet most, but not
necessarily all, the eligibility criteria. The Council has a duty to ‘give suitable
development permission in respect of enough serviced plots of land to meet the
demand for self-build and custom housebuilding in the authority’s area’ (i.e. to
meet the demand for the number of applicants on Part 1 of their register) within a 3
year period, post the end of the base period.

The permissions granted demonstrate that the demand for self-build and custom
housing (as identified by the register) is comfortably being met in Fenland.

Page 112



Therefore, no weight will be given to the delivery of self/ custom build housing at
this time.

Design and Impact on Character and Appearance of the Area

9.8 Policies LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, set out a number of criteria that
proposals are required to meet to ensure that high quality environments are
provided and protected. Policy LP12 focuses on development in rural areas with
Policy LP16 focusing specifically on design criteria. This stance is also supported
by Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan. The site sits within the March
Conservation Area and therefore the requirements of Policy LP18 in respect of
preserving and enhancing the special character of the Conservation Area are
relevant.

9.9 Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires Local Planning Authorities when considering development to pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance
of a conservation area.

9.10 The surrounding area is characterised by residential development, featuring both
single-storey cottages with attic dormers and two-storey terraced properties.
Surrounding properties tend to abut the road and feature relatively narrow long
plots. The existing site is relatively unique in its own right given the scale form and
set back from Nene Parade. It is somewhat at odds with the 1.5 and 2 storey
traditional cottages that sit on the back edge of the footway which gives Nene
Parade its character. Furthermore, the existing building is a mid C20 bungalow and
not considered to be architecturally or historically significant.

9.11 The form and detailing of the proposed dwellings are considered to lack
architectural merit, in that they lack architectural detail and would appear awkward
within the street scene. The design is neither in-keeping with the single-storey
cottages with attic dormers or the two-storey terraced properties that form the
immediate and positive character of Nene Parade. The very deep floorplan of the
proposed dwellings gives a shallow raking roof which appears very much like a
chalet bungalow in terms of form, which is uncharacteristic of the current
residential development in the immediate vicinity. Additionally, the dormers are
substantially out of scale. Furthermore, integral garaging is not considered to
provide positive frontage to the public realm but rather serves to detract from the
special character of the conservation area.

9.12 There are indeed poor examples of development found along Nene Parade and
that the existing dwelling is of limited architectural merit, which is going to be the
case for a road that has evolved over the course of several centuries. However,
poor examples should serve to guide what should not be perpetuated, rather than
seen as a justification for further poor development that does not respond
positively to the conservation area. The proposal should take reference from
positive traditional buildings along Nene Parade and West End, in relation to scale,
proportionality, brickwork detailing (gauged arches, banding, cogged brickwork,
recessed windows, proportionate dormers, quality bricks and tiles/slates).

9.13 Taking into account the above assessment, it is considered the proposed
development by way of form, scale and detailing would fail conserve or enhance
the special character of the conservation area, of which the LPA have a statutory
duty to protect. Therefore, the application is considered to be contrary to Policies

Page 113



LP16 and LP18 of the LDP and Paragraphs 210, 212, 213, 215, 216, 219 and 221
of the NPPF (2024).

Residential Amenity and Amenity Space

9.14 Policy LP2 of the Fenland Local Plan seeks to promote high levels of residential
amenity. Similarly, Policy LP16 requires development proposals to not adversely
impact on the amenity of neighbouring users such as noise, light pollution, loss of
privacy and loss of light.

9.15 Each of the proposed dwellings would benefit from a usable amenity space of at
least a third of the plot, in line with the requirements of Policy LP16 (h). This is
considered to be sufficient in terms of privacy and usability.

9.16 Furthermore, given the proposal relates to the provision of two bungalows, largely
utilising the existing footprint of the existing dwelling on site, alongside the degree
of separation from neighbouring properties boundaries, it is not considered the
proposal would have a detrimental impact on neighbouring amenity by way of loss
of light, privacy or an overbearing nature. Similarly, each habitable room would be
served by sufficient openings, (although the bedrooms would only benefit from a
single north facing window) to provide an acceptable level of light and given the
orientation of the buildings in regard to the dedicated amenity space, there are no
concerns in regard to the amenity to be afforded to the future occupants.
Therefore, there are no objections to the proposal on these grounds.

Landscaping and Ecology

9.17 Policy LP16 requires all development to contribute to high quality environments; in
respect of landscaping criterion c) and d) requires proposals to retain and
incorporate nature and historic features of the site, such as trees, hedgerow and
field patterns, to retain and preserve landscape character and settlement pattern of
the surrounding area.

9.18 Furthermore, Policy LP12 (g) requires development proposals to ensure that the
site retains and respects ecological, heritage and biodiversity features.
Furthermore, policy LP19 requires development proposals to conserve, enhance
and promote the biodiversity and geological interest of the natural environment
throughout Fenland.

9.19 A number of trees which are considered to be of high public amenity value site
adjacent to the sites western and northern boundary’s, with the tree to the west
subject to a Tree Preservation Order. The Arboricultural Officer has been
consulted in regard to this proposal and confirms that the supporting arboricultural
report satisfactorily identifies the quality and constraints of the existing trees. The
only proposed arboricultural intervention is minor crown lifting to T1, which is
considered minimal and acceptable. The report concludes that the development is
acceptable within arboricultural parameters, subject to the implementation of
appropriate methodologies.

9.20 However, a robust Tree Protection Method Statement will be required to set out
how works within the Root Protection Areas (RPAs) and associated protection
measures will be managed in accordance with BS5837:2012. Therefore, should
the application be approved, and confirmation from the Agent that this is
acceptable given the trigger point for details would be prior to commencement, it is

Page 114



considered a suitably worded condition could be included to ensure the retention
and protection of trees.

9.21 Similarly, the accompanying preliminary ecological appraisal concludes that the
proposal would not impact on any protected or priority species, subject to
appropriate mitigation and enhancement measures. The Council’s Ecologist is
satisfied that this is the case and therefore, should the application be approved, a
condition would be included to ensure the proposed development is carried out in
accordance with the details and recommendations contained within this supporting
document.

Parking, Access and Highway Safety

9.22 Policy LP15 requires all new development proposals to contribute to the delivery of
the sustainable transport network by providing well designed, safe, convenient
access for all. Development proposals should provide well designed car and cycle
parking appropriate to the amount of development proposed, ensuring parking
provision is provided in accordance with the standards. Appendix A sets out that
two parking spaces are required for a three-bedroom unit. Appendix A also sets
out that a garage can be counted as a parking space provided the size of the
garage exceeds 7.0m x 3.0m (internal dimensions).

9.23 Each dwelling would benefit from a minimum of 2 parking spaces, including the
integral/attached garages and therefore, there are no objections to the proposal in
terms of parking provision.

9.24 Nene Parade is a narrow road, whereby on street parking is common. It is
acknowledged that this makes accessibility difficult and may result in congestion
and awkward manoeuvres for car users. However, the road does benefit from
parking restrictions and given the proposal relates to the provision of one additional
unit. It is not considered that the proposal would result in a material intensification
of the use of this road by future residents, to the detriment of highway safety.
Furthermore, the Highways Authority have raised no objection to the proposal in
this respect.

9.25 The Highways Authority have raised no objection to the proposal, subject to
revisions to the access serving Plot 1. It is therefore considered that the proposal,
would be acceptable, subject to minor amendments in this respect, in terms of
highway safety. Should this application have been considered acceptable against
all other material considerations, amendments would have been sought in
accordance with the Highway Authority’s recommendations. However, as the
application is recommended for refusal, whereby any amendments would result in
a significant material change to the scheme, these amendments have not been
sought.

9.26 It is noted that a number of neighbouring representations have been received
which raise concerns in respect of the additional traffic and highway safety which
has been discussed above. Given the temporary nature of construction, this is not
considered to materially weigh against the scheme. Similarly, reference is also
made to road users, including other residents, utilising the current drive to
maneuverer and turn around to exist the road in forward gear. Whilst this is
appreciated and acknowledged, this is an informal agreement with the current
occupants/owners and would not form a material planning consideration in the
determination of this application.

Page 115



Flood Risk

9.27 Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and Paragraphs 170-182 of the National
Planning Policy Framework set out the approach to developing land in relation to
flood risk, with both documents steering development in the first instance towards
land at a lower risk of flooding. The application site sits within Flood Zone 1 and
therefore, there are no objections to the proposal in this respect.

9.28 Furthermore, appropriate details in terms of surface water drainage and foul
drainage can be secured by appropriately worded conditions should the application
be approved.

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

9.29 The Environment Act 2021 requires development proposals to deliver a net gain in
biodiversity following a mitigation hierarchy which is focused on avoiding ecological
harm over minimising, rectifying, reducing and then off-setting. This approach
accords with Local Plan policies LP16 and LP19 which outlines a primary objective
for biodiversity to be conserved or enhanced and provides for the protection of
Protected Species, Priority Species and Priority Habitat.

9.30 There are statutory exemptions, transitional arrangements and requirements
relating to irreplaceable habitat which mean that the biodiversity gain condition
does not always apply. In this instance, one or more of the exemptions /
transitional arrangements are considered to apply and a Biodiversity Gain
Condition is not required to be approved before development is begun because the
nature of the development being self / custom build is exempt from statutory net
gain.

Planning Balance

9.31 In terms of sustainability the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states
that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of
sustainable development. Achieving sustainable development means that the
planning system has three overarching objectives; economic, social and
environmental, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually
supportive ways (so that opportunities can be taken to secure net gains across
each of the different objectives)

9.32 This stance is supported by Local Plan Policy LP1. In respect of the first of these,
the current proposal would provide economic benefits, for example in respect of
employment during the construction phase, as well as support for existing and
future businesses, services, and facilities by introducing additional residents that
would make use of them and provide future spend in the local economy. However,
given this relates to the provision of two self-build dwellings, with a net gain of just
one dwelling, this is considered to be negligible.

9.33 In respect of the social objective, it is noted that a number of minor benefits would
be provided, including the provision of two three-bedroom units, which meets the
identified need for market housing in the district. However, given this relates to just
two dwellings this is considered to be negligible. Representations have been made
advising that the proposal would be of benefit to the area given subsidence issues
alongside potential anti-social behaviour. These are noted however, in the absence
of any such reports/evidence, it is not considered this would weigh in favour of the
scheme to an extent that would overcome the harm identified.

Page 116



9.34 Lastly, in terms of the environmental objective, as discussed above, it is
considered the proposed scheme, it is considered the proposed development by
way of form, scale and detailing would fail conserve or enhance the special
character of the conservation area, of which the LPA have a statutory duty to
protect. Therefore, the application is considered to be contrary to Policies LP16
and LP18 of the LDP and Paragraphs 210, 212, 213, 215, 216, 219 and 221 of the
NPPF 2024. It is noted that the drawings provided indicate that solar panels are
proposed to the front roof slope of each dwelling, whilst we encourage renewable
energy provision, this would not overcome the harm identified above.

9.35 It is not considered that the negligible benefits as outlined above, would overcome
the identified harm in respect of the impact of the proposal on the character and
appearance of the site and surrounding character and appearance of the
conservation area.

10 CONCLUSIONS

10.1 Taking into account the above assessment, it is considered the proposed
development by way of form, scale and detailing would fail preserve or enhance
the special architectural character of the conservation area, of which the LPA have
a statutory duty to protect. Therefore, the application is considered to be contrary
to Policies LP16 and LP18 of the Local Development Plan and Paragraphs 210,
212, 213, 215, 216, 219 and 221 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2024.

10.2 It is acknowledged that the proposal would result in some minor benefits, however
as discussed above, these are not considered to overcome the harm identified.

11 RECOMMENDATION

Refuse, for the following reason:

1. The proposed development, by virtue of its form, scale, and detailing, fails to
reflect the established character and architectural quality of the surrounding built
environment along Nene Parade. The dwellings are considered to lack
architectural merit, presenting dwellings which lack architectural detail and would
appear awkward within the street scene and would be at odds with the positive
vernacular of the area, including the nearby single-storey cottages with attic
dormers and two-storey terraced properties. The deep floorplans and resulting
shallow roof pitch give rise to a chalet-style form, which is uncharacteristic of the
locality, while the oversized dormers and integral garages further detract from
the street scene and fail to contribute positively to the public realm.

Rather than drawing inspiration from the area's traditional detailing — such as
gauged brick arches, banding, cogged brickwork, recessed windows, and
proportionate dormers — the design disregards these qualities, and instead
perpetuates poor-quality development that undermines the character of the
conservation area. As such, the proposal fails to preserve or enhance the
special architectural or historic interest of the Nene Parade Conservation Area,
contrary to Policies LP16 and LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan and Paragraphs
210, 212, 213, 215, 216, 219 and 221 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (2024 ), which collectively seek to ensure high-quality design and the
protection of the special architectural or historic interest of the conservation
area.

Page 117



Page 118



Superstore

Pocklington

_N" ourt
2

Created on: 02/05/2025

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2025 Ordnance Survey 10023778

F/YR25/0347/F

Scale = 1:1,250

Fenland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Fenland District Council

Page 119




02T abed

,_‘77///1\\\"1‘

A

onee

W

= I\\
o

S|
\\\

e

14m HIGH ASH TREE
NOT ON OWNED LAND

2

REFUSE COLLECTION
POINT FOR PLOT 1

TO INCREASE SPLAY
MOVE ACCESS TO

0.9m

VERTICAL FENCING
BOARDS NAILED
TO ARRIS RAILS

100x100 R.C CONCRETE
POSTS SET 900mm INTO
GROUND WITH CONCRETE
SURROUND AT 2.0m
CENTRES

ARRIS RAILS SET
BEHIND BOARDING

\— TIMBER GRAVEL
0.9m HIGH FENCE DETAIL

(1:50)

BOARDING

PERMEABLE BLOCK

SITE KEY: PAVING (NON SLIP)

VERTICAL FENCING
BOARDS NAILED
TO ARRIS RAILS

100x100 R.C CONCRETE
POSTS SET 900mm INTO
GROUND WITH CONCRETE

SURROUND AT 2.0m
‘ ‘ CENTRES

ARRIS RAILS SET
/ BEHIND BOARDING

I

1.8m HIGH FENCE DETAIL

\— TIMBER GRAVEL

BOARDING

(1:50)

o

1.8m Hj
BOARD TIN

FENCE |

)

CLOS
TIMBER FEN%

-
e

Z3
=

WIDENED,

ENSURE ACCESS IS TO
C.C.C GUIDELINES AND
SET TO FALL AND DRAH
AWAY FROM HIGHWA

Bt
N ;‘a’m“\y‘o"

REFUSE STORAGE
POINT FOR PLOT 2

REFUSE COLLECTION
POINT FOR PLOT 2

29

EXISTING ACCESS TO BE
WIDENED,
ENSURE ACCESS IS TO
C.C.C GUIDELIN A

PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:200)

GRAVEL TARMAC GRASS

i

No 14 No 16

[T

=
=

|

=

SLAB PAVING

TN
‘ VEGETATION \ \ CiR gpén(iEX 2.75m
\ e
D

EXISTING
DWELLINGS

~—No 2+—==—No 22——=—=No 23

PROPOSED STREET SCENE (1:200)

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
details

C | UPDATED FOR PLANNING APR 2025

B | CLIENTS COMMENTS OCT 2024

A | CLIENTS COMMENTS OCT 2024
REVISIONS DATE

CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467

Cambridgeshire. E—mail: info®@mortonandhall.co.uk
Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

PE15 8AJ
‘ Fenland District Council | sz
LABC” LABC" o 52
Building |3
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .
Mr C White

PROJECT

20 Nene Parade,

March,
Cambs,
PE15 8TD

TITLE

Proposed Site Plan &
Street Scene

DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE

J.Scotcher

CHECKED

DATE DRAWING NUMBER

Oct 2024

— H9928 /05

As Shown



AutoCAD SHX Text_537
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
NENE PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
SLAB PAVING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
PERMEABLE BLOCK  PAVING (NON SLIP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
VEGETATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
EXISTING  DWELLINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
SITE KEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:200)

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
PROPOSED STREET SCENE (1:200)

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
EXISTING PUBLIC FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
EXISTING PUBLIC FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
PLOT 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
PLOT 1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
REFUSE COLLECTION POINT FOR PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
Mr C White 

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
20 Nene Parade,

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
March,

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
Cambs,

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
PE15 8TD

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
Proposed Site Plan &

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
Street Scene 

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
J.Scotcher

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
Oct 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
H9928/05

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
REFUSE STORAGE POINT FOR PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
REFUSE STORAGE POINT FOR PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
14m HIGH ASH TREE  NOT ON OWNED LAND  

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
EXISTING 2.0m HIGH BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
REFUSE COLLECTION POINT FOR PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
EXISTING ACCESS TO BE WIDENED, ENSURE ACCESS IS TO C.C.C GUIDELINES AND SET TO FALL AND DRAIN AWAY FROM HIGHWAY  

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
EXISTING 2.0m HIGH BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
1.8m HIGH CLOSE  BOARD TIMBER FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
1.8m HIGH CLOSE  BOARD TIMBER FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
0.6m HIGH FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
NENE PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
1.8m HIGH CLOSE  BOARD TIMBER FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
1.8m TIMBER  FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
1.8m TIMBER  FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
1.8m TIMBER  FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
100x100 R.C CONCRETE POSTS SET 900mm INTO GROUND WITH CONCRETE SURROUND AT 2.0m CENTRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
ARRIS RAILS SET BEHIND BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
TIMBER GRAVEL BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
VERTICAL FENCING  BOARDS NAILED TO ARRIS RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
1.8m HIGH FENCE DETAIL (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
TO INCREASE SPLAY  MOVE ACCESS TO DRIVE OVER FOR 2m x 2m PEDESTRIAN SPLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
CAR SPACE  = 5.5m X 2.75m5.5m X 2.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
RIVER NENE

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
EXISTING ACCESS TO BE WIDENED, ENSURE ACCESS IS TO C.C.C GUIDELINES AND SET TO FALL AND DRAIN AWAY FROM HIGHWAY  

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
100x100 R.C CONCRETE POSTS SET 900mm INTO GROUND WITH CONCRETE SURROUND AT 2.0m CENTRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
ARRIS RAILS SET BEHIND BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
TIMBER GRAVEL BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
VERTICAL FENCING  BOARDS NAILED TO ARRIS RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
0.9m HIGH FENCE DETAIL (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
OCT 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
EXTERNAL ROOF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
OCT 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
No 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
No 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
No 23

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
No 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
No 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
APR 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
UPDATED FOR PLANNING

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
5.55m

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
5.85m

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
2.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
6.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
16.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
34.5m


T2T abed

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
:\K consulting the Engineers.
8100 \ Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.
R\!V)P ‘ , — \I/ P R\!V)P Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
- Y O : ;
T A A M Y Chectfiction: Al work to. be in aecordance with-
bes0 fLLLLLLLLLLLLL&%‘L‘L‘L‘L‘L‘L‘L‘L‘L‘LP‘LE good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; —— LLLLLLILE Sl =CCCCCOOOnin recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
- aterials products and workmanship to comply with a
2300 :LLLLtttttttttttL /LLLLLLLLELLBLLLLLLLLULL British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
B N AN E AR RN ER S N AR A o, 8 or B
Ll Ll -y, L 12430 B
o ) O O | | I O O All duct d terials to be handled, stored, d
6350 7L Lttt!['}lHtKLLLLLL | DlNlNG L O O | ondpLoseliIc cs>r qf?xedm?n_eggcsord%ncz w?tnh :he Srn%;eufoc?’czerzge
we| JEAEEEE R Ele e M RooM  |lebEEEEEES i
@) I Y ) I O O IR B L Ll L[t L The contractor is to qrrange inspections of the works
A ) ) I I O A IR L CL L by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
L L L[ LLLLLLLL@LL@LLLLLLLLLLLL Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
M ishon ioton o
6000 :ttttttEEEELLLELLLEEEEEEEL[LL égtglirslshes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect's
| 6000
| R R B v NN NN PROPOSED RIGHT HAND SIDE PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION
———————————————————————— I ) . S B 7
:_ T _: (OO CCLELllr A EEEEEE ELEVATION (1 1 OO) (1 1 OO)
I I I == EH\‘N‘CLEEE U L LLLLLL—
| | | }LLLL Numiviid] INEEEE NN CCCCCL |
: : e e
| T [
i | i o P e
l l l 1 Y Y I I I I
I I I ey e e ) 10700
I I | C ey )
| | | 5 e e ) )
' ' ' Y
7700 7000: DOU:BI_E : Ll %‘%
i GARAGE ) BEEEEE i
I I I 11 |
: : : 10 ‘ 7.75m
I I I 09 |
: : o =
07 | 5400 I
| | | o8 | i
| | | 05 |
I I I 04 |
| 3900
L JI_ J' 03 | _ LOUNGE
________________________ 02 |
01 |
- PROPOSED LEFT HAND SIDE PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION
2350 4950 ELEVATION (1 1 OO) (1 1 OO)
Z C 7
RWP$
6350 7$0
W ‘ ‘ 0
RWP RWP
s /
8100
LA
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
(1:50)
z
-
8100 A S
O {\ 8
-
RWP RWP s
Q Q 5
l_
>
A
VOID
Il MX! PM i i i i M)M W LN
| | | |
3350 t t 3950 |
I I I I
I I I I
I I I I
6350 2m_HEADROOM
I b e 1 b /1 pl2m _HEADR( DOM
RWP g C | UPDATED FOR PLANNING APR 2025
B | CLIENTS COMMENTS OCT 2024
A | CLIENTS COMMENTS OCT 2024
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN (1:100) LENTS SOV L2028
41?
""" BEDROOM 3
] ] ] ]
I I I I
I a0 | D BEDROOM 1 4
: : : : , CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
I I I I CUPD 1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454
-—- b——————— - L rr—————- March, Fax: 01354 660467
Cambridgeshire. E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk
PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk
| 3
| ~ Fenland District Council |
E\/ZEM 10700 %&"W LABC™ o %g
Building |3
|| DOWN ’ Design Awards \
7700 5490 01 | — > METRE HEADROOM 5 IMETRE HEADROOM — Building Excellence in Fenland ‘
B BEDROOM 2 « 0 c | W e
03
/\: 04 I s AL IR N S Mr C Whlte
05 e CLLCNCOZLCLLLD EENCET R / N
A ¢ |[CCCsozZiiiriey EEENCA R 7 BEDROOM 1 EN—SUITE ~ 7.75m
06 | | Ll [
‘ Y 7 I O O O B IR AREEE
__________________________ ] 07 ‘ A Y B B O IR
’ 08 | T o et e e IR NN —— ——
CUP’D  EiRE i A e e e ‘ ‘
09 | = (L L L L = 20 N
. CLCCL] ) ene Parade
o | BATHROOM || EN—SUITE | s | ’
—11————1-2 LA L L L S e T L L mimi—t =k —+ H + £k} 42m _HEADROOM March,
12 TALLLLLLLD ey e
N e A B I Cambs,
] ey Ane e ! PE15 87D
[ L I
.  H ,LLLLLLLL I LL LLL[ L 3.3m
SRR RN EuE e E | (e R ] DINING CITCHEN LOUNGE |
i i W i i i I I NN i i ROOM e
RWP P . .
roposed Buildin
S350 7+o A P t g
rrangements
e A J
PLOT 1
81 00 /A DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE
LA PROPOSED SECTION A—A (1:50) J.Scotcher
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
P L O T /‘ (1 :50> DATE DRAWING NUMBER
Oct 2024
— H9928,/03c



AutoCAD SHX Text_676
01

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
02

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
03

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
04

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
05

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
06

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
07

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
08

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
09

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
LOUNGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
BEDROOM 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
EN-SUITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
BEDROOM 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
BATHROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
VOID

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
5970

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
2830

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
4120

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
3900

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
6000

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
2650

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
4650

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
5400

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
1250

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
2450

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
2350

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
4950

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
6000

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
7000

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
PROPOSED RIGHT HAND SIDE ELEVATION (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
PROPOSED LEFT HAND SIDE ELEVATION (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
EN-SUITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
BEDROOM 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
LOUNGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
2 METRE HEADROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
2 METRE HEADROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
DOUBLE GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
PLOT 1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
PROPOSED SECTION A-A (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
Mr C White 

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
20 Nene Parade,

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
March,

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
Cambs,

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
PE15 8TD

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
Proposed Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
Arrangements 

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
J.Scotcher

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
Oct 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
H9928/03

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
01

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
02

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
03

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
04

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
05

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
06

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
07

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
08

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
09

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
01

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
02

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
5490

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
4700

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
BEDROOM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
CUP'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
CUP'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
3470

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
3950

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
3350

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
2m HEADROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
2m HEADROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
2895

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
OCT 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
EXTERNAL ROOF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
OCT 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
7700

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
6350

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
8100

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
10700

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
8100

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
6350

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
700

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
7700

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
6350

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
8100

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
10700

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
8100

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
6350

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
700

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
APR 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
UPDATED FOR PLANNING

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
3.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
7.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
7.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
3.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
2.95m

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
6.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
6.25m

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
2.95m

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
3.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
7.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
7.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
3.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
2.95m

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
6.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
7.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
3.3m


221 abed

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION (1:50)

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (1:50)

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN (1:100)

SLOT 2

EXTERNAL ROOF LINE

PROPOSED LEFT HAND SIDE
ELEVATION (1:50)

PROPOSED RIGHT HAND SIDE
FLEVATION (1:50)

N

2 METRE _HEADROOM

2 _METRE _HEADROOM

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 1

C——HC—>

-— - s

A]

LOUNGE

KITCHEN

DINING
ROOM

PROPOSED SECTION A—A (1:50)

8500
RWP RWP
9?@
5050 °2u56 |
1900
DINING UTILITY
@] ROOM [ﬁ %
LW C | |
5820 — ==
a
o |l 3000
KITCHEN
10700
550
HVE N
3550 fzi
——
7000
e GARAGE
08
07
| 06
|05
4080 LOUNGE ;m
R — }8;
01
up
)
RWP RWP
ROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
(1:50)
v\'& 8500
RWP RWP
X NX#
I
I
I
I
__“__j 3450
|
L
b
517
L BEDROOM
c 10700
. DOWN -
| 01
| 02
| 03
3550 ~ 90004 3150
| 05
[}/ % D
; 07
@5 BEDROOM 3 e BEDROOM ZD
4563
1, ] | _ _ | {Jom Heabroom _
| | b | "
I I | |
| | ! |
! ! | l
N il LI I I [ 0l
VOID
RWP RWP

A PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
A (1:50)

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
details

C | UPDATED FOR PLANNING APR 2025

B | CLIENTS COMMENTS OCT 2024

A | CLIENTS COMMENTS OCT 2024
REVISIONS DATE

MoRToN & HALL
CoNsULTING LIMITED

CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Cambridgeshire. E—mail: info®mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

Fenland District Council
Building

LABC” LABC
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .

1102 8 6002
HINNIM AHOOILYO

CLIENT

Mr C White

PROJECT

20 Nene Parade,
March,

Cambs,
PE15 8TD

TITLE

Proposed Building
Arrangements
PLOT 2

DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE

J.Scotcher

CHECKED

DATE DRAWING NUMBER

Oct 2024

— H9928 /04

As Shown



AutoCAD SHX Text_875
01

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
02

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
03

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
04

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
05

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
06

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
07

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
08

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
09

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
LOUNGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
BEDROOM 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
BEDROOM 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
BATHROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
EN- SUITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
VOID

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
VOID

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
01

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
02

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
03

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
04

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
05

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
06

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
07

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
08

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
09

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
2650

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
5050

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
4563

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
3695

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
5170

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
3450

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
1650

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
2500

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
4121

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
PROPOSED LEFT HAND SIDE ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
PROPOSED RIGHT HAND SIDE ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
Mr C White 

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
20 Nene Parade,

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
March,

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
Cambs,

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
PE15 8TD

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
Proposed Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
Arrangements 

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
J.Scotcher

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
Oct 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
H9928/04

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
PLOT 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
BEDROOM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
BEDROOM 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
DINING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
LOUNGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
2 METRE HEADROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
2 METRE HEADROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
PROPOSED SECTION A-A (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
2m HEADROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
2m HEADROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
3000

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
4550

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
5820

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
4080

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
7000

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
3550

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
900

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
1900

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
3150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
BEDROOM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
900

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
3550

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
OCT 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
EXTERNAL ROOF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
CLIENTS COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
OCT 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
3.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
7.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
7.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
3.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
3.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
7.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
7.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
3.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
8500

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
10700

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
8500

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
10700

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
APR 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
UPDATED FOR PLANNING


	Agenda
	2 Previous Minutes
	5 F/YR23/0648/F<br/>Land South Of 127-141, Coates Road, Coates<br/>Hybrid application: Full planning permission to erect 18 x dwellings (2 x single-storey 2-bed, 1 x 2-storey 2-bed, 2 x single-storey 3-bed, 4 x 3-storey 3-bed, 7 x 2-storey 4-bed 1 x 2-storey 6-bed and 1 x 3-storey 6-bed) including 2 x self-build dwellings and the formation of 3 x accesses and a pedestrian footpath.  Outline application with matters committed in respect of access to erect 2 x self-build dwellings
	23 0648 Ctte Report FINAL AD
	23 0648 FDC Plan
	23 0648 Site Plan

	6 F/YR25/0238/O<br/>North West Of Cherrytree House, Fallow Corner Drove, Manea<br/>Erect up to 6no dwellings (outline application with all matters reserved) involving the demolition of existing buildings
	25 0238 Draft Committee Report FINAL
	25 0238 FDC Loc Plan
	25 0238 Plans
	Sheets and Views
	SE-2144 - Planning-PP1000



	7 F/YR25/0206/F<br/>Land West Of Cross Road, Knights End Road, March<br/>Erect 1x self-build/custom build dwelling and detached garage
	YR25-0206 - Land West of Cross Road FINAL
	25-0206 - Location Plan
	25-0206 - Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	003 Proposed Site Plan


	25-0206 - Streetscene and Sections
	Sheets and Views
	006 Site Sections & Street Scene


	25-0206 - Proposed Elevations and Floor Dwelling
	Sheets and Views
	004 Proposed GAs & Elevations


	25-0206 - Elevations and Floor Plan - Garage
	Sheets and Views
	005 Garage



	8 F/YR25/0251/PIP<br/>Land South West Of Woodbury, Manea Road, Wimblington<br/>Permission in Principle for 5 x dwellings
	25-0251-PiP FINAL
	25-0251-PIP - Location Plan

	9 F/YR25/0328/F<br/>108 High Street, March<br/>Erect 1 x self-build/custom build dwelling involving demolition of shed within a Conservation Area
	YR25-0328-F committee report FINAL
	947443-FDC Location Plan-
	947445-FDC Aerial Photo-
	943997-Drawing-LOCATION PLAN; EXISTING AND PROPOSED SITE PLANS
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	943999-Drawing-EXISTING AND PROPOSED STREET SCENE; EXISTING SHED AND PROPOSED FENCING
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	942423-Drawing-PROPOSED FLOOR AND ROOF PLANS
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	944059-Drawing-PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	10 F/YR25/0347/F<br/>20 Nene Parade, March<br/>Erect 2x self-build/custom build dwellings involving demolition of existing dwelling and garage within a Conservation Area
	25-0347-F - 20 Nene Parade FINAL AD
	25-0347 - Location Plan
	25-0347 -Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	25-0347 - Plot 1 plans
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	25-0347 - Plot 2 Plans
	Sheets and Views
	Model




